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S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited (the “"Company” or “"We",
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)is a rapidly growing
provider of property management services in China. We have been
providing property management services in China for more than 25
years. According to China Index Academy (the “CIA")statistics, for
years in a row, we are among the top property services enterprises
of a growing nature in China. In addition, according to the list of top
100 Chinese property management services enterprises announced
by the CIA, our ranking moved up from the 34th in 2010 to 11th in
2021. As of 31 December 2021, the property management services
agreements we signed covered 185 cities in 31 provinces, accounting
for a total contracted gross floor area (“GFA") of 278.8 million square
metres (“sq.m.”), and projects under management covered 145 cities
with GFA under management of 153.5 million sq.m. in total. We
provide extensive property management services and value-added
services for property developers as well as residents and tenants from
the communities managed by us. We have also developed a one-
stop information services platform called Orange APP. Our residents
and customers can enjoy the services we provide through their
mobile devices. Based on our excellent services and enhanced market
reputation, we have built a property services brand emphasizing
quality and customers.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

During the track record period, our revenue has been primarily
derived from two business lines — property management services and
value-added services. Our value-added services cover three business
categories comprising developer-related value-added services,

community-related value-added services and smart community services.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We provide an extensive range of property management services to
residents and tenants, including property and facilities maintenance,
security services, maintenance and cleaning services, gardening
services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property
management related services. We manage diverse property portfolios,
including residential and non-residential properties, from office
buildings, multi-purpose complexes and factories to parks and
industrial zones. During the track record period, the majority of our
revenue came from providing property management services.

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Our value-added services encompass three types of services: developer-
related value-added services, community-related value-added services
and smart community services.

> Developer-related value-added services: We provide
related services to property developers during the property
development.

> Community-related value-added services: We provide value-
added services to residents and customers in the projects we
manage, including public resources management services,
community engineering services, extensive decoration services,
asset management services, catering services, facility and
equipment management and various other home living services.

> Smart community services: We provide one-stop smart solutions

for communities and various business projects.
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mEXE COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE
BENAMBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ARETT RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
9N Revenue 866,370 1,173,388 2,024,026 2,866,447 4,350,735
FRMN% Annual growth % 51.1% 35.4% 72.5% 41.6% 51.8%
E Gross profit 242,246 345,022 599,879 880,765 1,341,547
FHM% Annual growth % 49.6% 42.4% 73.9% 46.8% 52.3%
ERE Gross margin 28.0% 29.4% 29.6% 30.7% 30.8%
FHEMN% Annual growth % 0.2% 1.4% 0.2% 1.1% 0.1%
ADRERRRELFFE  Net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 73,406 152,154 282,011 452,387 525,455
FHEM% Annual growth % 69.4% 107.3% 85.3% 60.4% 16.2%
BREE Net profit margin 10.6% 14.1% 14.9% 17.1% 12.8%
FEM% Annual growth % 1.5% 3.5% 0.8% 2.2% -4.3%
DEBHIRELS PERFORMANCE BY SEGMENTS
BENAMBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
AREFIL RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
MEEE RBRA Revenue from property management 567,177 732,025 848,955 1,255,136 2,100,212
services
FHEMN% Annual growth % 42.1% 29.1% 16.0% 47.8% 67.3%
BERERA Revenue from value-added services 299,193 441,363 1,175,071 1,611,311 2,250,523
FRMN% Annual growth % 71.8% 47.5% 166.2% 37.1% 39.7%
Hrp Including
MR EEERERA Revenue from developer-related
value-added services 175,497 296,746 647,748 724,731 815,257
FHEMN% Annual growth % 61.5% 69.1% 118.3% 11.9% 12.5%
HBEERBRA Revenue from community-related
value-added services 43,304 47,890 227,701 497,660 915,603
FHEM% Annual growth % 58.8% 10.6% 375.5% 118.6% 84.0%
BEEERY Revenue from smart community
9N services 80,392 96,727 299,622 388,920 519,663
FHEMN% Annual growth % 110.1% 20.3% 209.8% 29.8% 33.6%
MEEEREER Gross profit from property
management services 143,468 203,503 242,343 392,623 631,870
ERGLL Percentage of gross profit 59.2% 59.0% 40.4% 44.6% 47.1%
BERBER Gross profit from value-added services 98,778 141,519 357,536 488,142 709,677
EMEL Percentage of gross profit 40.8% 41.0% 59.6% 55.4% 52.9%
Het Including
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BZ1N2A3MBLEE
For the year ended 31 December

AREFT RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RREEEREEN Gross profit from developer-related

value-added services 38,529 75,718 180,428 210,447 236,016
EREE Percentage of gross profit 15.9% 22.0% 30.1% 23.9% 17.6%
HBEERBES Gross profit from community-related

value-added services 36,803 39,118 128,935 214,014 387,805
ERGE Percentage of gross profit 15.2% 11.3% 21.5% 24.3% 28.9%
BERERBER Gross profit from smart community

services 23,446 26,683 438,173 63,681 85,856
EREE Percentage of gross profit 9.7% 7.7% 8.0% 7.2% 6.4%
MEEERBERE Gross margin of property management

services 25.3% 27.8% 28.5% 31.3% 30.1%
BEREENE Gross margin of value-added services 33.0% 32.1% 30.4% 30.3% 31.5%
Hrp Including
HEBEEREENE Gross margin of developer-related

value-added services 22.0% 25.5% 27.9% 29.0% 28.9%
HERERBERNE Gross margin of community-related

value-added services 85.0% 81.7% 56.6% 43.0% 42.4%
EEEERBERNE Gross margin of smart community

services 29.2% 27.6% 16.1% 16.4% 16.5%
EERERREE SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET

BEN2A3MALEFE
For the year ended 31 December

AREFT RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ReRAELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 633,456 1,281,269 1,339,092 1,882,136 2,504,102
B EWRE Trade receivables 76,918 129,118 262,767 356,568 622,758
RBEE Current assets 759,830 1,517,513 2,051,971 2,985,376 4,336,382
wnEE Total assets 813,573 1,572,198 2,199,567 3,314,052 5,409,645
RRERE Contract liabilities 180,714 248,764 390,342 628,073 776,038
BoREMEMTE Trade and other payables 345,327 416,746 773,760 1,134,655 1,822,217
wem Total liabilities 624,529 694,307 1,232,697 1,904,463 2,885,013
EREm Total equity 189,044 877,891 966,870 1,409,589 2,524,632
MENEL % Liquidity ratios 121.8% 220.4% 168.9% 160.8% 161.7%
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REeERERBE SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BENAMBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ARETT RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RETHEENRLRE Net cash generated from business
operations 198,253 185,586 544,683 787,028 755,334
RETH (FR)/ Net cash (used in)/generated from
EENREFE investments (7,719) 9,261 (263,579) (95,324)  (591,094)
RETBHEE /(ER) Net cash generated from/(used in)
MBS FE financing - 429,926 (224,867) (143,246) 468,217
BEeRERSEEY Net (decrease)/increase of cash and
(R%),/ BmFE cash equivalents 190,534 624,773 56,237 548,458 632,457
XBEYERE SUMMARY OF BUSINESS FIGURES
BENAMBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
TERK 1,000 sq.m. 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HEER GFA under management
nEE Handover 8,874 7,530 18,524 44,303 56,593
Hrh Including
FERE - IRE Handover - Seazen Group 5,375 4,295 12,350 17,575 20,936
TEE-£=5 Handover - Third parties 3,499 3,235 6,174 26,728 35,657
1k Terminations 87 920 1,259 3,040 4,477
BREERR GFA under management as at the end
of the period 36,277 42,887 60,152 101,415 153,531
EEEE - FEM% GFA under management — Net increase % 32.0% 18.2% 40.3% 68.6% 51.4%
Hrp Including
EEBE - R E GFA under management - Seazen Group 26,178 30,473 42,797 60,152 80,604
KEBE-5=7 GFA under management — Third parties 10,099 12,414 17,355 41,263 72,927
BRENER Contracted GFA as at the end of the
period 67,808 112,199 152,777 203,138 278,846
BHERE —FEM% Contracted GFA - Net increase % 42.3% 65.5% 36.2% 33.0% 37.3%
Hrp Including
BHEE - A Contracted GFA - Seazen Group 51,673 87,689 119,413 138,194 166,246
BHERE-$=5 Contracted GFA - Third parties 16,135 24,510 33,364 64,944 112,600

1
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The COVID-19 pandemic is still underway throughout the world, and
there is no sign of ending for the time being. In 2021, Mainland China
adopted a dynamic zero-COVID policy, which, coupled with a high
vaccination rate, enabled domestic economic activities and people’s
living conditions to remain normal. People have gradually adapted to
the new living habits brought by the pandemic, including washing
hands frequently, wearing masks, maintaining social distancing, etc.

In 2021, the real estate industry faced a huge storm. Due to the
overleveraging of some real estate companies in the past five years
and the further tightening of regulation in relation to the real estate
industry by governments and financial institutions at all levels in 2021,
many large and medium-sized real estate companies defaulted on their
debts. Some real estate companies had to sell assets to ease financial
pressure, with some of them selling their property management
companies. The drastic changes in the real estate industry caused
wild fluctuations in the prices of stocks and bonds in the real estate
and property management industries. The valuation of some property
management companies with real estate development background
dropped by more than 50% from the high level after the 2021 interim
results. Property management and real estate development belong
to the same industry chain and are correlated in business operations.
However, the business attributes of the property management industry
are significantly different from those of the real estate industry: 1)
from the perspective of policy orientation, property management is
an industry encouraged by policies. Since the COVID-19 outbreak in
2020, due to the significant role of the property management industry
in grass-roots administration, the macro policies have become more
friendly to the property management industry. For example, ten
ministries and commissions jointly issued the Notice on Strengthening
and Improving Residential Property Management, and “property
management” is mentioned six times in the 14th Five-Year Plan for
the first time; 2) from the perspective of growth model, property
management is an industry based on existing projects which generate
stable income every year, while the revenue brought by newly added
GFA will drive the overall revenue growth of a company; and 3) from
the perspective of business model, property management companies
do not need to incur debts, and some property management
services are prepaid, so they have decent operating cashflows. The
above three points indicate a very small operational risk of the
property management industry. We believe that with the continuous
implementation of favorable policies for the property management
industry, the property management industry will continue to develop
healthily and better manifest the characteristics of high growth
certainty, low operating risks and solid cashflows.
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In 2021, with the efforts of all employees, the Group achieved an
increase of over 50% in GFA under management, revenue and
Owners’ Core Net Profit in a disturbing industry environment. The
Company also received high recognition from the public. On 26
February 2021, S-Enjoy Service was included in the Hang Seng
Composite Index, and was selected into six stock indexes including
the Hang Seng Composite Small Cap Index. On 15 March 2021, it was
officially added to Southbound Stock Connect. In 2021, the Company
received a series of awards and honors from the China Property
Management Institute, China Index Academy and China Property
Management Research Institution, including the “2021 Top 100
Property Management Companies in China by Growth”, the “11th of
2021 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China”, the “Top
15 of 2021 Top 100 Property Management Companies by Services”,
the “2021 Leading Residential Property Management Company in
China”, the “2021 Leading Property Management Company in China
by Quality”, the “2021 Best Employer in China’s Property Management
Industry”, the “2020-2021 Top 20 Property Management Companies
in China by Digital Power”, and “2021 Excellent Property Management
Companies in China by Alignment with the Party and the Masses”,
etc.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continued to deepen its high-quality growth strategy of
“one core and two increments”. In 2021, the Group preliminarily
completed the expansion of property services in various sectors
through acquisitions, and being equipped to serve office buildings,
shopping malls, industrial parks, hospitals, schools, public buildings,
etc. In addition, the Group further strengthened its capabilities in
value-added services through acquisitions: 1) in terms of community
services, we acquired parcel locker assets, and successfully integrated
the frequently used parcel locker service with value-added services
such as community fresh retail and home-to-home service; and 2)
in terms of catering services, we acquired Shanghai Xuefu Catering
Management Services Company Limited (“Shanghai Xuefu”) which
has great brand influence in Shanghai, thereby entering the catering
service market covering hospitals, schools and office buildings.

13
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The Group continued to make great efforts in improving the quality of
property services, organizational construction and digital development.
In terms of improving service capacity, we further optimized the
management mechanism for improving service responsiveness based
on the efficient coordination of facilities and equipment, home owner
feedback and customer service personnel’s mobile terminals on our
smart platform. In addition, we cooperated with the International
Butler Academy China to build a high-end residential service system
and applied it in the Puyue Chungiu Project in Changzhou, which has
brought the high-end residential property services in Jiangsu Province
to a new height. In terms of organizational construction, first of all, we
further improved the quality model requirements for the management
team, and systematically enhanced the capabilities of the management
team through recruitment, selection, training, etc.; secondly, we
further improved the stability of the workforce and increased the
sources of high-quality junior employees through caring the frontline
employees and employing a fresh graduate training system; moreover,
we completed the construction of human resources sharing platform
to connect the HR information system and the business information
system, greatly improving the efficiency of basic human resources
services. In terms of digital development, Jiangsu Ruohong Intelligent
Technology Co., Ltd., our smart community technology arm, obtained
the "High-tech Enterprise” certificate. In addition, after months of
discussions in 2021, we determined and launched the project for
building a full-service SAP-based ERP system. The new ERP system
will enable more efficient communication of the Company’s business,
financial and management needs, greatly improve the Company’s
management and decision-making efficiency, and substantially
reduce the workload of mid-level managers and frontline operators in
information collection and analysis, thereby saving labor costs.

In 2021, the Group's revenue reached approximately RMB4,350.7
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 51.8%,
mainly driven by a year-on-year increase of approximately 67.3%
in revenue from property management services to approximately
RMB2,100.2 million and a year-on-year increase of approximately
84.0% in revenue from community-related value-added services to
approximately RMB915.6 million. In 2021, the net profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Group reached approximately RMB525.5
million, a year-on-year increase of approximately 16.2%; and Owners’
Core Net Profit had a year-on-year increase of approximately 55.4%.
In 2021, the Group used part of its surplus funds to invest in real
estate USD bonds. The USD bond market fluctuated violently in the
second half of the year, resulting in a loss of approximately RMB199.0
million.
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In terms of property management services, in 2021, the Group’s
revenue from property management services reached approximately
RMB2,100.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 67.3%. As at the end of 2021, the Company had
a total GFA under management of approximately 153.5 million
sg.m., a year-on-year increase of approximately 51.4%, and a total
contracted GFA of approximately 278.8 million sg.m., a year-on-year
increase of approximately 37.3%. In 2021, the Company’s contracted
GFA increased by over approximately 80.6 million sq.m., of which
approximately 35% was contributed by related parties, approximately
38% was obtained through mergers and acquisitions, and
approximately 27% came from third party project expansion. In 2021,
the Group acquired a total of six property management companies,
among them, the projects of the five acquisition targets are mainly
located in Shandong, Jiangsu and Zhejiang where the Group’s projects
are concentrated. In 2021, the gross profit margin of our property
management services decreased by approximately 1.2 percentage
points to approximately 30.1% as the Company was no longer entitled
to the social security subsidies.

In terms of community-related value-added services, in 2021, our
revenue from community-related value-added services amounted to
approximately RMB915.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 84.0% and accounting for approximately 21.0%
of the Company’'s total revenue; the gross profit of the business
segment reached approximately RMB387.8 million, accounting for
approximately 28.9% of the Company’s total gross profit. Community-
related value-added services have become the Company’s second
largest segment in terms of both revenue and gross profit. The rapid
growth of revenue and gross profit from community-related value-
added services was mainly driven by: 1) the merger of the Company’s
Xinchengshe business (community life service segment) with parcel
locker business; and 2) the rapid growth in the number of elevators
managed by the Company under its facility management services
(mainly elevator maintenance and repairs services), which had
exceeded 25,000 units as of the end of 2021.

In terms of other value-added services, the proportion of revenue
and gross profit of the Group's services related to real estate
development further decreased. Particularly, the revenue from
smart community services reached approximately RMB519.7 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 33.6% and
accounting for approximately 6.4% of the total gross profit, and
the revenue from developer-related value-added services reached
approximately RMB815.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 12.5% and accounting for approximately 17.6% of
the total gross profit.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will strengthen the collaboration with the
acquisition of target companies in non-residential sectors to nurture
capabilities in serving office buildings, industrial parks, shopping malls,
hospitals, public buildings, etc. The business development network of
the Group's regional companies will work closely with non-residential
service companies to expand business.

Based on the current landscape of the property industry, the Group
will continue to probe into the potential of value-added services. For
individual customers (mainly from residential sectors), the Company
will continue to explore the needs of home owners for community
life services, and provide cost-effective products and services to home
owners in high-density areas covering high-frequency express delivery
services. For business customers (mainly from non-residential sectors),
the Company will provide overall solutions to help them improve
efficiency and save costs through professional companies such as
smart community companies, elevator companies, group catering
companies, etc. At present, the Group’'s GFA under management and
contracted GFA in Jiangsu, Shandong and Zhejiang provinces both
account for more than 50% of the Group's total GFA. In these regions
with a high density of projects, the Group can create a great synergy
between property management and value-added services. In particular,
the catering service business of the Group will witness rapid growth
in 2022 due to the consolidation of Shanghai Xuefu (the annual
revenue of Shanghai Xuefu in 2021 was about RMB200 million). With
many successful cases, Shanghai Xuefu will be able to achieve rapid
expansion leveraging the Group’s brand influence in Jiangsu. On the
basis of the comprehensive strategic partnership with Guangzhou-
based Hitachi Elevator built in 2021, the Group is also seeking
to establish a comprehensive strategic partnership with Shanghai
Mitsubishi for its elevator business. If both strategic partnerships
are realized, it will greatly enhance the market influence of S-Enjoy
Service's elevator division and break the ceiling for its high growth in
the future.

All employees of the Group uphold the camel spirit of Seazen
Group, embrace the future, and live up to their mission. We are
disciplined and hard-working; we head in the right direction to focus
on the property management industry and create value to cater for
customer needs; we remain customer-centric and enhance employee
engagement, and will never forget our original aspiration.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
Qi Xiaoming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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The Group is a fast-growing national property management service
provider and has been ranked among the Leading Growth Enterprises
of the Top 100 Property Management Service Providers in China
selected by China Index Academy. At the same time, the Group
ranked 11th among the Top 100 Property Management Service
Providers in China in 2021. In 2021, the Group's business continued
to flourish. During the year, the net increase of each of our GFA under
management and contracted GFA reached a record high. As the two
most important business sectors of the Group, property management
services and community-related value-added services have contributed
great growth drivers to the Group and are an integral part of the
Group’s high-quality development.

REVENUE

In 2021, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,350.7 million, representing an increase of 51.8% from
approximately RMB2,866.4 million for the corresponding period in
2020.

The revenue of the Group is derived from four sectors: (i) property
management services; (ii) community-related value-added services;
(iii) smart community services; and (iv) developer-related value-added
services.

BZE12A318LFE
For the year ended 31 December

20214 HRE 20204

2021 Growth rate 2020

AR%FT % ARBTFIT

RMB’000 % RMB’000

Y EEEIRG Property management services 2,100,212 67.3 1,255,136
[ 1 (B PR 75 Community-related value-added services 915,603 84.0 497,660
BEERRS Smart community services 519,663 33.6 388,920
B P IR E AR TS Developer-related value-added services 815,257 12.5 724,731
A&t Total 4,350,735 51.8 2,866,447
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o Property management services
ZHAESRAFPRE7EEZNMRERE We provide an extensive range of property management
R BRUMEERERE  RLR services to residents and tenants, including property and
B RE2RS  BERS - AXEE%E facilities maintenance, security services, cleaning services,
& L H ALY EE AR RS - horticulture services, public areas repair and maintenance and
other property management related services.
2021 FAKENKEERBNKRAR In 2021, revenue from property management services of
MARM2,1002B 87T HRKAD the Group amounted to approximately RMB2,100.2 million,
EPIRKI48.4% @ #2020 F REHIA accounting for approximately 48.4% of the total revenue,
R#1,255. 1588 RA67.3% ° i representing an increase of approximately 67.3% as compared
202112 A31H » AEENEEERE to approximately RMB1,255.1 million for the corresponding
BH153.5ABF K - B2020F K F period in 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the GFA under
WINKS52 1 BEFHARHAS51.4% management of the Group was approximately 153.5 million
EEEETPREF=FTHEEMHLLAS sq.m., representing a net increase of approximately 52.1
#47.5% - FRAAEERBEZEREBER million sq.m. or approximately 51.4% from the end of 2020.
RBIRSEIFEE XM IR 8 ) IR R BE The GFA under management from third parties accounted for
710 R2021F 128318 - NEEEEF approximately 47.5%. During the year, the Group continued
EHBEEEERRMLHIRK18.9% - to enhance its service and expansion ability in non-residential
segments through various channels. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s non-residential projects accounted for
approximately 18.9% of the GFA under management.
TREIAEENEEMBEE LB The following table sets forth the changes in the GFA under
management of the Group:
BZA0FNANALER EE20F12831BILFR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2020
NEER hxER
BRHRA RHUA
HEER ARl ot N BR% EERE AL it
Percentage Percentage
of revenue of revenue
from property from property
GFA under Area  management GFA under Area management
management proportion services  Netincrease  Growthrate  management proportion services
FEER % % FEEAR % FEIR % %
thousand thousand thousand
5q.m. % % 5q.m. % sq.m. % %
e Seazen Group 80,604 52,5 63.0 20,452 34.0 60,152 593 72.2
£ZH Third parties 12,927 415 31.0 31,664 76.7 41,263 407 278
aif Total 153,531 100.0 100.0 52,116 514 101,415 100.0 100.0
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GFA under management of the Group:

The following table sets forth the breakdown of changes in the

HZ12A31BLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2021%
2021

FEBK

thousand sq.m.

2020
2020
FEHK

thousand sq.m.

RF A At the beginning of the year 101,415 60,152
R Handover 56,593 44,303
Hr Including
MEE — MR Handover — Seazen Group 20,936 17,575
EE -F=F Handover — Third parties 35,657 26,728
Ak Termination 4,477 3,040
RER At the end of the year 153,531 101,415

TREIAKEEEEENREDMAIF

o GFA under management of the Group:

The following table sets forth the regional distribution of the

R20215$12831H
REBEZBLFE

As at or for the year ended
31 December 2021

72020612 A31H
FEEZBLFE

As at or for the year ended
31 December 2020

MEER MEER

B EEERMGL PR W A 45t EEEEAL RIS
Percentage Percentage

of revenue of revenue

Percentage from Percentage from

of GFA property of GFA property

under management under management

Region management services management services
% % % %

% % % %

) Jiangsu Province 38.3 37.6 45.5 49.7
) Shandong Province 12.7 6.9 5.2 32
pipaE) Zhejiang Province 9.3 13.3 11.1 13.4
aPlIES Sichuan Province 5.2 7.5 7.3 7.2
ZHAE Anhui Province 4.0 3.9 46 3.1
Hfth [ 13 Other regions 30.5 30.8 26.3 234
At Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
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The Group has entered into property management contracts with
1,333 projects in 185 cities with a contracted GFA of approximately
278.8 million sq.m., representing a net increase of approximately
75.7 million sq.m. or 37.3% from the end of 2020, among which
the contracted GFA from third parties accounted for approximately
40.4%. The proportion of GFA from third parties increased rapidly
during the year, and we continued to make breakthroughs in the
expansion of third parties and accomplished a total of over 52.1
million sq.m. of third party project expansion in 2021. During the year,
we made further deployment in the non-residential business through
active strategies, and successfully acquired six property management
enterprises with excellent track records and expansion ability in various
non-residential segments such as hospitals, industrial parks, public
buildings and shopping malls.

Most of the projects contracted by the property management
companies acquired by the Group are in Jiangsu Province, Shandong
Province and Zhejiang Province, exactly the key areas where our
projects are located. This has further improved our project density
in the eastern coastal economic belt and along the Yangtze River
economic belt, and created more opportunities for synergy and
cross selling of value-added services. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s contracted GFA in key provinces has further increased.
Jiangsu Province, Shandong Province and Zhejiang Province, the top
three provinces in terms of contracted GFA, had a contracted GFA of
approximately 88.6 million sgq.m., approximately 33.0 million sq.m.
and approximately 25.7 million sg.m., respectively. In addition, the
Group has a contracted GFA of over 5 million sq.m. in nine (as at 31
December 2020: three) cities, being Changzhou, Suzhou, Chengdu,
Tianjin, Yantai, Xuzhou, Wuhan, Wenzhou and Nanjing.



EEEWR O

FHIR BB EBERAR 2021 F 5
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TR AKENENERELIBR

The following table sets forth the changes in the contracted

GFA of the Group:

BZE2021F12A318LEE
For the year ended
31 December 2021

HE2020%
12A3NBIEFE
For the year ended
31 December 2020

EHEE EEGL R0 BEX BHEE EEET
Contracted Area Net Growth Contracted Area
GFA proportion increase rate GFA proportion
FEIH %  TEEK %  FEIK %
thousand thousand thousand
sq.m. % sq.m. % sq.m. %
EIPIES Seazen Group 166,246 59.6 28,052 20.3 138,194 68.0
BE=H Third parties 112,600 40.4 47,656 73.4 64,944 32.0
At Total 278,846 100.0 75,708 37.3 203,138 100.0

The following table sets forth the regional distribution of the

TRHFEIREESOEEN RS MHIE
5

contracted GFA of the Group:

M2021%12A831H

H2020F12831H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

E 15 AREEGL SHEBEGL
Percentage of Percentage of

Region contracted GFA contracted GFA
% %

% %

L8 Jiangsu Province 31.8 35.2
e Shandong Province 11.8 7.6
HTE Zhejiang Province 9.2 9.7
B} Hubei Province 4.7 4.1
ZHAE Anhui Province 4.0 5.1
H At @ Other regions 38.5 38.3
&t Total 100.0 100.0
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Community-related value-added services

We render public resources management services, community
engineering services, extensive decoration services, asset
management services, catering services, facility management
and various other home living services to property owners
and customers, with a view to providing them with a more
comfortable and convenient living and working environment.

During the year, community-related value-added services
maintained a high growth momentum and remained the
sector with fastest growth within the Group. In 2021, revenue
from community-related value-added services amounted to
approximately RMB915.6 million, accounting for approximately
21.0% of the total revenue, representing an increase of
approximately 84.0% as compared to approximately RMB497.7
million for the corresponding period in 2020. The rapid growth
was mainly driven by the robust development of businesses
that the Group laid strategic emphasis on during the year. In
particular, revenue from catering services of the Group was
approximately RMB81.9 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 67.0%; revenue related to facility
management services was approximately RMB157.3 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 112.0%;
the revenue from community life services was approximately
RMB195.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 206.2%.

Smart community services

Smart community services mainly provide one-stop smart
solutions for various projects, covering residential properties,
office buildings and complexes.

In 2021, revenue from smart community services of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB519.7 million, accounting
for approximately 11.9% of the total revenue of the Group,
representing an increase of approximately 33.6% as compared
to approximately RMB388.9 million for the corresponding
period in 2020. During the year, the amount of project
completion of the Group's customers maintained a steady
growth, leading to further increase in the demand for smart
services.

Developer-related value-added services

We mainly provide three types of services related to property
developers, namely on-site sale assistance services, consulting
services and house inspection services.

During the year, revenue from developer-related value-
added services amounted to approximately RMB815.3 million,
accounting for approximately 18.7% of the total revenue of
the Group, representing an increase of 12.5% as compared to
approximately RMB724.7 million for the corresponding period
in 2020.
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Cost of sales and services

During the year, the cost of sales and services of the Group was
approximately RMB3,009.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 51.5% as compared to approximately RMB1,985.7
million for the corresponding period in 2020. The increase in cost of
sales and services was mainly due to the rapid growth of the business
scale of the Group.

ENRERR Gross profit and gross profit margin
B0 F 1A BLEE HE200F 12831 BILFE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
ER%
2l £ Eflft 28 EH k7S D1l
Change
Gross Percentage in gross Gross Percentage
Gross profit of gross profit Gross profit of gross
profit margin profit margin profit margin profit
AEETR % % EpE NEETT % %
RMB'000 % % ppt RMB'000 % %
NEEERE Property management services 631,870 30.1 411 12 392,623 313 44.6
HERERE Community-related value-added services 387,805 04 289 0.6 214,014 430 23
BERERY Smart community services 85,856 16.5 6.4 0.1 63,681 16.4 72
REFLERS  Developer-elated value-added services 236,016 289 17.6 0.1 210,447 29.0 239
aif Total 1,341,547 308 100.0 0.1 880,765 307 100.0

REBHE2021F12A31BILFENEF A
PARE1,341.588 T E2020FFHHA
R#880.8 BB ILALLIERA52.3% - EFEA
30.8%  #2020F A AIAI30.7 % A LLIRF0.1
(EIERa -

MEBERBOEFNBHARE631.95E T
B2020FRAMHARKE3IN 6 BB TERY
60.9% * EFIRE#30.1% @ R TE1.2MEHF
DEBAMETERBOHERN KRS =2
RARARGTBZEEZFZEMNLREAR

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately RMB1,341.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 52.3% as compared to approximately
RMB880.8 million for the corresponding period in 2020. Gross profit
margin was 30.8%, representing an increase of 0.1 percentage point
as compared to 30.7% for the corresponding period in 2020.

Gross profit of property management services was approximately
RMB631.9 million, representing an increase of approximately 60.9%
as compared to approximately RMB392.6 million for the corresponding
period in 2020, and gross profit margin was 30.1%, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 1.2 percentage points. The decline in gross
profit margin of property management services during the period was
mainly because the Company was no longer entitled to social security
subsidies that it had enjoyed in the preceding year.
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Gross profit of community-related value-added services was
approximately RMB387.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 81.2% as compared to approximately RMB214.0 million
for the corresponding period in 2020, and gross profit margin was
42.4%, representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.6 percentage point.

Gross profit of smart community services was approximately RMB85.9
million, representing an increase of approximately 34.8% as compared
to approximately RMB63.7 million for the corresponding period in
2020, and gross profit margin was approximately 16.5%, remaining
stable compared to the preceding year.

Gross profit of developer-related value-added services was
approximately RMB236.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately 12.1% as compared to approximately RMB210.4
million for the corresponding period in 2020, and gross profit margin
was approximately 28.9%, basically remaining flat compared to the
preceding year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately RMB424.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 64.2% as compared to
approximately RMB258.2 million for the corresponding period in 2020.
The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to: (i) the rapid
growth of the scale of the Group; (ii) the benefits from social security
subsidies policies in the year ended 31 December 2020 causing a
lower base for the corresponding period; and (iii) reserve of talents for
the rapid development of various businesses.

Income tax expense

Income tax amounted to approximately RMB182.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 24.2% as compared to
approximately RMB147.3 million for the corresponding period in
2020. The increase in tax expense was mainly due to the continuous
growth of the Group’s profit before income tax. The tax rate was
approximately 24.7% which was slightly higher as compared to
approximately 23.2% for the corresponding period in 2020.

Under the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
exempted from income tax in the Cayman Islands.

For the Group entities incorporated in Hong Kong, as the Group did
not derive any revenue subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not make provision for Hong
Kong profits tax accordingly.
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Profit for the year

Profit for the year of the Group was approximately RMB558.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately 14.2% from approximately
RMB489.1 million in 2020; profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB525.5 million, representing an
increase of approximately 16.2% as compared to that in 2020; and
net profit margin was approximately 12.8%, down 4.3 percentage
points over that in 2020.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

As of 31 December 2021, the Group maintained a sound financial
position. As at 31 December 2021, the current assets of Group were
RMB4,336.3 million, representing an increase of 45.3% as compared
to RMB2,985.4 million as at 31 December 2020. The cash and cash
equivalents of the Group were RMB2,504.1 million, representing
an increase of 33.0% as compared to RM1,882.1 million as at 31
December 2020. The Group’s total equity as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB2,524.6 million, representing an increase of 79.1% as compared
to RMB1,409.6 million as at 31 December 2020. The Group has borne
no bank loans and is in net cash position. As at 31 December 2021,
the current ratio of the Group was 161.7%, which was at a very stable
level.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong and healthy
liquidity position to ensure that the Group is well placed to take
advantage of future growth opportunities.

Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB622.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 74.6%
as compared to approximately RMB356.6 million at the end of last
year, which was mainly due to the rapid growth of business scale. The
trade receivables of the Group have always been in a healthy position.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal
Connected transaction — acquisition of assets

On 8 February 2021, Nanjing Yungui Network Technology Co., Ltd.*
(AREEBERIEARAF]), a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an asset acquisition agreement with Jiangsu Yungui Network
Technology Co., Ltd.* (TEREEMLLFLMERAF]), a subsidiary of
Seazen Group Limited (“Seazen Group”), and agreed to acquire
the assets (including courier lockers and their spare parts inventory
and intangible assets relating to courier lockers) at a consideration
of RMB32,931,300. For details of the acquisition, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 8 February 2021.

Connected transaction — formation of joint venture
company

On 9 August 2021, Xinchengyue (Chengdu) Property Service Co., Ltd.*
GBS (A ER) W3 AR %5 B PR 2 7)) (a subsidiary of the Group), Wusheng
(Shanghai) Energy Equipment Technology Co., Ltd.* (ZE(L/8)EER
FAERHEBPRAF]) (an associate of Mr. Wang Zhenhua, a controlling
shareholder of the Company (the "Controlling Shareholder"), and
a connected person of the Company), and GCIP Chunshu Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (X FHMEHIRE S B EE(BRE®))
entered into a cooperation investment agreement, pursuant to which
the Company will invest RMB8 million for the purpose of developing
applications in automobile and bicycle charging scenarios based on
urban space. For details of the formation of joint venture company,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 August
2021.
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Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income of approximately RMB450.9 million
and approximately RMB52.4 million respectively, accounting for
approximately 9.3% in aggregate of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2021. Such financial assets include investments in
various wealth management products of licensed banks and unlisted
trust plans, as well as investments in listed bonds denominated
in US Dollars. The Board considers any single investment with
fair value accounting for more than 5% of the total assets of the
Group as significant investment. As the Group did not have any
single investment accounting for 5% or more of the total assets of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
significant investments.

20215128318 BZ2021512A310LEE
As at For the year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2021
BEE FABRE
BEEML NAREE
DAEE  WENEIN  WE(BE) Hitig A
Approximate Fair value
percentage gains/
of the total (losses)
assets of through Other
Fair value the Group  profit or loss income
ARETFT % ARETFT ARBTTT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
BRAABEGABENEREE Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BEER Wealth management products 8,083 0.1 - 83
EER Trust products 102,834 1.9 - 11,254
EnLmES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 217,822 4.0 (126,582) 30,667
FEMAREERIEREE Investments in preferred shares and debts
of unlisted companies 122,166 2.3 - 2,166
&t Total 450,905 8.3 (126,582) 44,170
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Approximate Accrued

percentage expected

of the total credit
assets of  impairment Other
Fair value the Group loss income
AR®FTT % ARETR AREFTT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000

RAREBESFARMEEZE Financial assets at fair value
BAHERMEE through other comprehensive income

£ LEWES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 52,390 1.0 (71,949) 4,980

HARERESERKA - RARREE2021F12 A Due to higher price fluctuations, fair value losses and accrued expected

BSTEBLEFEBERAAEBEEEREAEHEE credit impairment losses were recognised by the Company for the year
WEEBE EEBEEERERESWEL A ended 31 December 202 1. The Directors will continuously monitor the
RN A BERE - price movements and make fair value adjustments accordingly.
BEEERH Pledge of Assets

M2021F12 A31H - REE I EEHE(AE As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledge any assets.
o
HMEE B B Foreign Exchange Risk

20215612 A31 0 - AEERK AR S ERT As at 31 December 2021, the cash balances held by the Group are as
I follows:

M20215F 720204

12H31H 12A31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

AR#FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ETT usD 16,879 28,644
AR RMB 2,427,371 1,830,031
BT HKD 59,852 23,461

A&t Total 2,504,102 1,882,136
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* EHER

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated in Renminbi. The
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from the exposure
of U.S. dollars and Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi as a result of
certain cash balances. We have made currency swap arrangements for
exchange rate fluctuations to hedge part of the corresponding risks.

Subsequent Event

In March 2022, the Group entered into an equity acquisition
agreement with Runhong (Shandong) Enterprise Management Co.,
Ltd., agreeing to acquire 70% equity of Suzhou Health Catering
Management Service Co., Ltd. from it, which became a subsidiary
of the Group since the acquisition date. Up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements by the Board, the initial
accounting for such acquired subsidiaries is incomplete and is still
under review by the management and thus no relevant financial
information is disclosed.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, aged 53, is our chairman, executive Director, chief
executive officer and general manager. He also serves as the chairman
and executive director of Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co., Ltd.
("Tibet Xinchengyue”). Mr. Qi joined the Group in January 2015 and
has been responsible for the overall business operation of the Group,
directly managing project development and customer service. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Qi served as the assistant to the manager of
the executive management department in Jiangsu Seazen Co., Ltd.
("Jiangsu Seazen”), a subsidiary of Seazen Group and the assistant
president and general manager in Changzhou Future Land Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Future Land”), Chengzhong
Branch from September 2002 to March 2015. He also served as the
assistant president of Seazen Group Limited (stock code: 1030, a
company which is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”)) from March 2015
to June 2016. Jiangsu Seazen and Changzhou Future Land are the
subsidiaries of the Seazen Group.

In July 1992, Mr. Qi graduated from Hefei University of Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
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Mr. Gao Xinli, aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Company in July 2021. Mr. Gao
joined the Group in November 2020, and has been responsible for
operation management and customer service management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Gao served as executive deputy
general manager in the Planning Management Centre of Seazen
Holdings Co., Ltd.* (BTiiZAX & B A5 B R 2 5]) (“Seazen Holdings”)
from July 2008 to December 2016, served as general manager in
Taixing Future Land Wanbo Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (=5
I EEEEMZEERAF]) from January 2017 to December 2018,
and served as member of the 13th CPPCC of Taixing, Jiangsu in 2017.
He also served as general manager in the Planning Management
Centre of Seazen Holdings from January 2019 to October 2020.

Mr. Gao graduated from School of Civil Engineering of Southeast
University with a master's degree in management in June 2008,
majoring in management science and engineering.

Ms. Wu Qiangian, aged 38, is an executive Director and has been
responsible for the Group's post-investment management. Ms. Wu
joined the Group in August 2012 and has assumed multiple positions,
including the Company’s deputy general manager (share responsibility
for customer service) and regional general manager of Suzhou. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Wu served as the customer service manager
and sales manager of Changzhou Future Land from June 2007 to July
2012.

In June 2006, Ms. Wu graduated from Yancheng Teachers University
with a bachelor’s degree in management.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong, aged 34, joined the Group in July 2019 as a
non-executive Director. Mr. Wang joined Jiangsu Seazen in 2009, as a
civil engineer and subsequently as a project manager. From November
2011 to January 2013, Mr. Wang became the vice president and
general manager of the marketing department of Jiangsu Seazen,
responsible for and gained valuable experience in sales and market
research. Mr. Wang has served as a director of Jiangsu Seazen since
April 2013. In February 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as president of
Jiangsu Seazen, and has been responsible for its general management;
and from 14 December 2015 to 26 October 2016, he served as the
general manager of Seazen Holdings, a subsidiary of the Seazen
Group listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601155).
Since March 2015, Mr. Wang has been a director of Seazen Holdings.
He was appointed as the president of Seazen Holdings on 24 August
2018. He served as the chairman of Seazen Holdings since 3 July
2019. Mr. Wang has acted as a non-executive director of the Seazen
Group since October 2013.

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University with a bachelor’s degree
in Environmental Sciences in 2009.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping, aged 60, has been serving as our non-executive
Director since April 2018. Before joining the Group, he served as
the deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xincheng Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd. from September 2001 to August 2004, and as the general
manager of Seazen Holdings from 30 March 2015 to 15 December
2015. From August 2004 to February 2013, Mr. Lv served as a director
and the president of Jiangsu Seazen, principally responsible for the
overall management of the Group's residential property development
business carried out by Jiangsu Seazen. From February 2013 to January
2016, Mr. Lv served as the vice chairman of Jiangsu Seazen and has
been acting as a director of Seazen Holdings since December 2015. In
November 2012, Mr. Lv was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Seazen Group. He was appointed as an executive director and CEO
in January 2016 and has been holding the positions until now.

Mr. Lv graduated from Naval University of Engineering in July 1983
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering and graduated from China
Europe International Business School with an MBA degree in June
2007.
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Mr. Lu Zhongming, aged 50, has been serving as our non-executive
Director since April 2018. From December 2001 to May 2010, he
served as the general manager of the finance department of Jiangsu
Seazen. From June 2010 to March 2015, he was holding the position
of vice president of Seazen Holdings. In March 2015, Mr. Lu joined the
Seazen Group and has been serving as the vice president.

In June 1999, Mr. Lu graduated from Nanjing Institute of Economics
and was conferred an MBA degree by Tongji University in December
2013.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 52, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Zhang worked
for Changzhou Accounting Firm as a clerk, deputy director and
director between August 1992 and December 1998. From January
1999 to December 2000, she served as the chairman and chief
accountant of Changzhou Zhengda Accounting Firm Co., Ltd. Later,
she joined Jiangsu Gongzheng Accounting Firm in January 2001
and had been serving as the managing deputy chief accountant and
director of the firm’s Changzhou branch until August 2008. Since
August 2008, Ms. Zhang has been an associate professor at Business
School of Jiangsu University of Technology. From December 2011 to
December 2017, Ms. Zhang served as an independent non-executive
director of EGing Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 600537), and has been
an independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Changhai Composite
Materials Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
SZSE stock code: 300196) since February 2016 and an independent
non-executive director of Changchai Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, SZSE stock code: 000570) since April 2020.

In June 1992, Ms. Zhang graduated from Finance and Economics
School of Soochow University with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
She was certified as a senior accountant and registered appraiser in
2002 and 2011 respectively.
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Mr. Zhu Wei, aged 60, is our independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhu was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Since June 1994, Mr. Zhu has been working
in Jiangsu Zhuhui Law Firm and has served as a partner, director and
the chairman of partners’ meetings. Since December 2002, Mr. Zhu
has also been serving as a postgraduate tutor in Soochow University.
Since October 2015, Mr. Zhu has been an independent non-executive
director of Changzhou Langbo Sealing Technology Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 603655).

In July 1983, Mr. Zhu graduated from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor’'s degree in law. He was conferred
a diploma in law by University of London in December 1997 and
a doctoral degree in constitutional law and administrative law by
Soochow University in June 2007 respectively. In August 1998, Mr.
Zhu was certified as a national first-grade lawyer.

Mr. Xu Xinmin, aged 71, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Xu has the title of economist and has accumulated over 21 years
of experience in the real estate industry. Mr. Xu served as the deputy
secretary general of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
where he was in charge of the work under the research committee
for community services from December 2014 to December 2017.
From August 1992 to February 2001, Mr. Xu acted as the director of
the department of housing management of Changzhou Real Estate
Administration Bureau in Jiangsu and subsequently the director of the
property management office of Changzhou Real Estate Administration
Bureau in Jiangsu. From March 2001 to April 2010, Mr. Xu served
as the director of the general affairs department of China Property
Management Institute. Mr. Xu served as the deputy secretary
general of China Property Management Institute from March 2001
to April 2010, where he was mainly responsible for overseeing the
organization and implementation of nationwide property management
demonstration evaluation and acceptance. In July 2001, Mr. Xu
was appointed as a senior consultant of the Property Management
Committee of Chinese Universities. Since September 2014, Mr. Xu has
been an independent non-executive director of Colour Life Services
Group Co., Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1778).

In June 2005, Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Forestry University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zuo Wei, aged 44, is the chief financial officer of the Company.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for
the finance and accounting of the Group. Mr. Zuo has over 21 years
of experience in professional accounting and financial management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zuo served as multiple financial
management positions in Shanghai, Nanjing, Chongging and other
regional branches of Vanke Group from July 2001 to August 2015.
From August 2015 to October 2017, he served as deputy general
manager in Shanghai business division of CIFI Holdings Group. From
October 2017 to April 2019, Mr. Zuo served as general manager of
financial management department in residential development business
division of Seazen Holdings.

Mr. Zuo graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
with a bachelor’'s degree in management in July 2001, majoring in
accounting, and completed the MBA study at Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law, obtaining his master's degree of MBA in
December 2012.

Mr. You Jianfeng, aged 43, is the chief strategy officer of the
Company. Mr. You joined the Group in January 2016 and has been
responsible for strategic management and investor relationship of
the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. You worked in Adfaith
Management Consulting Inc. from July 2002 to August 2006, and
served as a senior analyst in Shanghai Huijiang Real Estate Consulting
Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to February 2011. From February 2011 to
April 2012, he was the product management director of Noah Private
Wealth Management Co., Ltd. and the product management director
of Shanghai Fanghui Equity Investment Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. from April 2012 to November 2013. From November 2013 to
December 2015, he served as the financing director and vice general
manager of the financial management department of Jiangsu Seazen.

In July 2002, Mr. You graduated from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University with a bachelor’'s degree in
economics majoring in finance, and obtained his bachelor’s degree in
management by finishing a minor in e-commerce in Department of
Computer Science and Technology. In June 2008, he was conferred a
master’s degree of MBA by Fudan University.
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Ms. Liu Xiyue, aged 40, is the chief human resource officer of the
Company. Ms. Liu joined the Group in September 2019 and has been
responsible for human resources, organization and administration
of the Group. Ms. Liu has over 10 years of experience in the field of
human resources management. Before joining the Group, Ms. Liu held
the human resources management position in Seazen Group, and
served as assistant general manager of human resources in residential
development department, deputy general manager of marketing
company and human resources center of the group from January 2014
to August 2019. From January 2011 to January 2014, Ms. Liu held
the human resources management position in headquarter of Shui
On Land in Shanghai. From July 2006 to June 2008, Ms. Liu served as
market research analyst in Consumer Behavior Research Co., Ltd.

In July 2006, Ms. Liu graduated from School of Business, University
of Shanghai for Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in
management, and in June 2011, Ms. Liu graduated from School of
Law, Shanghai University with a master’s degree in law.

Mr. Yang Bo, aged 37, is the chief marketing officer of the Company.
Mr. Yang joined the Group in March 2021 and has been responsible
for community-related value-added services of the Group. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Yang served as a design manager and an
assistant general manager of the design management department
of Seazen Holdings from July 2008 to March 2014, the assistant
general manager of Shanghai branch of Seazen Holdings from April
2014 to May 2014, and the general manager of Shanghai Chengbei
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (L/8#% B E&EMAR2AE]) under
the Seazen Group from June 2014 to May 2015. From June 2015 to
February 2021, he served as the general manager of Jiangsu Yungui
Network Technology Co., Ltd. (I&HEBHEBFIM AR AF]) under
Seazen Group.

Mr. Yang graduated from the School of Geography and Ocean
Science, Nanjing University with a bachelor’s degree in science
majoring in urban planning in July 2008.
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Mr. Hu Zixuan, aged 33, is the chief digital officer of the Company.
Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for
the Group's information and smart community business. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Hu assumed asset management and information
management positions in Seazen Group from March 2015 to April
2019, and successively served as director in asset management center
and deputy general manager in information management center.
From March 2014 to February 2015, he served as general manager of
Beijing Fengle Technology Company Limited* (1t R 4R AR A A)).
From March 2013 to February 2014, he served as product manager in
Lenovo Corporate Research & Development in Beijing.

Mr. Hu graduated from University of Toronto in Canada in June 2012
with a bachelor's degree in applied science majoring in electronic
engineering.

Mr. Dong Jiahua, aged 44, is the deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Dong joined the Group in March 2021 and has been
responsible for the management of the Group's elevator business.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong worked in Jiangsu Xincheng
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. from July 2000 to June 2002, Guangdong
Yida Textile Co., Ltd. (BHR&EFHMABR AR from July 2002 to
August 2003, Shanghai Dafeng Computer Co., Ltd. (F/8ZEL S KGR
2 A]) from September 2003 to August 2004, and Shanghai Oasis Real
Estate Group Co., Ltd. (L84 MEHESEBR AT from September
2004 to October 2008. From October 2008 to May 2019, he served
as financing manager, assistant general manager and deputy general
manager of the financial management center and deputy general
manager of the financing management center of Jiangsu Seazen. From
May 2019 to February 2021, he served as the executive deputy general
manager of Yungui branch under the Seazen Group.

Mr. Dong graduated from the School of Finance and Management,
South-Central Minzu University with a bachelor's degree in accounting
in July 2000 and a master's degree in business administration of
Wuhan University in September 2012.
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Ms. Xie Yong, aged 44, is the chief development officer of the
Company. Ms. Xie joined the Group in March 2019 and has been
responsible for the Group's project expansion and merger and
acquisition. Before joining the Group, Ms. Xie assumed the position
of investment and expansion in the Enterprise Development Centre
of A-Living Property Management Group (fEAEMEREEE) from
November 2017 to February 2019, and successively served as deputy
general manager in the Enterprise Development Centre of A-Living
Property Management Group (HEEMERHEEE) and general
manager of the Enterprise Development Centre of Greenland Property.
From June 2016 to November 2017, she served as head of Tianjin
Longfor Property. From March 2012 to May 2016, she served as
general manager in Real Estate Division of Shanxi Mingliang Group
(IU7aRA =42 ®]) and served as deputy general manager in Real Estate
Company of Shanxi Zhuoyi International Investment Group (IL78£1E
W& 5 E) from March 2008 to March 2012.

Ms. Xie graduated from Sapporo University in Japan in September
2002 majoring in business administration.

Mr. Lu Bingli, aged 40, is the chief information officer of the
Company. Mr. Lu joined the Group in April 2019 and has been
responsible for the Group’s information management business.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Lu assumed real estate information
management position in Seazen Group from April 2008 to April 2019
and served as assistant general manager in information management
center.

Mr. Lu graduated from lJiujiang University in June 2006 majoring in
computer network engineering and graduated from Fudan University
in 2020 with a bachelor’s degree majoring in business management.
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The Board is pleased to submit the report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended on 31 December
2021 (the "Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are property management
services, including property and equipment maintenance, security
services, cleaning services, gardening services, public area maintenance
and other property management related services, and value-added
services, including developer-related value-added services, community-
related value-added services and smart community services. For the
analysis of the Group's principal activities for the year ended 31
December 2021, see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

For the Group’s results of the year ended 31 December 2021, see
the section headed “Financial and Business Summary” of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.155
per share for the year ended 31 December 2021. The final dividend
is still subject to approval by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 28 June 2022 (the “AGM"), and is expected to be paid on 18
July 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 5 July 2022.
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Our dividend policy

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, through a
general meeting we may declare dividends in any currency but no
dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The articles of association of the Company (the "Articles
of Association”) provide that dividends may be declared and paid
out of our profit, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve of the
Company lawfully available for distribution including share premium.

The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Directors, and the amounts of dividends actually declared and paid will
also depend upon the following factors:

. our general business conditions;

° our financial results;

° our capital requirements;

. interests of our Shareholders; and

° any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Our future dividend payments to our Shareholders will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries in the
PRC. PRC laws require that dividends be paid out of the net profit
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in
certain aspects from HKFRSs. PRC laws also require enterprises located
in the PRC to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves
before they distribute the net proceeds. These statutory reserves
are not available for distribution as cash dividends. Furthermore,
distributions from our subsidiaries may be restricted if they incur debts
or losses or as a result of any restrictive covenants in bank credit
facilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter
into in the future.

Any final dividend for a fiscal year will be subject to our Shareholders’
approval. The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year of 2021 and the
discussion regarding the future business development of the Group,
the principal risks and uncertainties which the Group is exposed
to and the compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group are set out in the section
of “Chairman’s Statement” on page 12 to page 16 of this annual
report. The analysis of the Group’s performance in the year of 2021
with key financial performance indicators is set out in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 17 to page 29 of this
annual report.

The Group firmly believes that sustainability plays an important role
in its development and is actively applying its ideas to every detail
of the business operations and devoted to delivering a better future
for the society and the Company as well. The Group will publish an
independent environmental, social and governance report according
to Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results and summary of assets and liabilities of the Group during
the last five financial years are set out on page 9 to page 11 of this
annual report. The summary shall not constitute a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 6 November 2018 (the “Listing Date”) with the issue
of 220,000,000 new shares (including the issue of 20,000,000 new
shares upon the partial exercise of the over-allotment option), with
total net proceeds from the listing of approximately RMB538.4 million
after deducting underwriting fees and related expenses.
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As at 31 December 2021, the proceeds from listing had been
used up in accordance with the plans as disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds”of
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 October 2018 (the
“Prospectus”), namely:

FIBRERE(EBEARY)
Net proceeds (RMB million)

HE BOL AE A [E) REA
Available

Items Percentage to utilize Utilized Unutilized

ERMEERIER 60% 323.0 323.0 -

Acquisition of property management projects

EORIZ(E RS 15% 80.8 80.8 -

Expansion of the value-added services

REFERMRESR 15% 80.8 80.8 -

Investment in advanced technology and employees

BEE R —ROEERE 10% 53.8 53.8 -

Working capital and general corporate purpose

EESEEMERERR

20213 A16H - KA F] K& Citigroup Global
Markets Limited R FEEREZHFER AR ([E
ERBDITRERS Bt  BERERE
LAE R (m3E R IR3E R BB R ) H 2 - 1238
EATREE LI EAR20.80 B TNERE S ([EBE
E1E |) &%50,000,000 B8 T@ M ([ EER
#7]) - IR ERMHAAETE(EA500,000FET © M
Fe 5 B3 58 (FOBRAARARK R R A8 B AR R B &R
AX&) N ASR2064E T -EERE BE
EHEBERECUBERNEEM BN - 2
RN E AN B R AR N EANER U EER
REERE - LARIEINAR D H R A M o

Use of proceeds from Placing

On 16 March 2021, the Company and Citigroup Global Markets
Limited and CLSA Limited (the “Placing Agents”) entered into the
placing agreement, pursuant to which the Placing Agents agreed on
an individual (rather than joint nor joint and individual) basis to place
(the “Placing”) up to 50,000,000 new ordinary shares (the “Placing
Shares”) on a best efforts basis at a price of HK$20.80 per share.
The aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares is US$500,000,
while the net placing price (after deducting related costs and expenses
to be borne by the Company) is approximately HK$20.64 per share.
The Directors believe that the Placing will raise funds to consolidate
the financial position of the Group, provide a good opportunity to
broaden the Shareholders’ base and capital base of the Group to
facilitate future development, and increase the liquidity of the shares.
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The Placing had been completed on 23 March 2021. A total of
50,000,000 Placing Shares had been successfully placed to not less
than 6 independent professional, institutional and/or other investors at
a placing price of HK$20.80 per Placing Share. The market price of the
shares was HK$23.75 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
15 March 2021, being the date on which the terms of the issue were
fixed. The Company has received the net proceeds from the Placing
of approximately HK$1,032 million (after deducting the relevant
costs and expenses borne by the Company), which is equivalent
to approximately RMB864.3 million. As of 31 December 2021, the
Company had utilized the net proceeds in accordance with the plan
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17 March 2021, the
particulars of which are as follows:

FBREFE(ABEARYE)
Net proceeds (RMB million)

HE ERald A& A 2EBA REA RBAFRSRENAERNERRERD
Available Expected time of using
Items Percentage to utilize Utilized Unutilized unutilized proceeds
WEEY X EIR N A 60% 518.6 2932 2254 Z—E-=F+ZA=+—HszH]
Acquisition of property On or before 31 December 2023
management companies
Wb BB AR A R [ (B BRAS 7 30% 259.3 156.7 102.6 ZEZ=HFTZA=t—HHZA
REMNTHAR On or before 31 December 2023
Acquisition of downstream
companies that are
complementary to the
Company’s community-
related value-added
service businesses
FRE SRR ARG 10% 86.4 12.7 737 ZEZ=HF+ZA=1+—H%ZA

Upgrade information
technology infrastructure

FEREFRHEER

FERF

HE2021F12A31MALFE  AEBARA
EPHNRZEMAEEBLKARI5.5% (2020:
43.7%) MAEB 2 E—HRKEFPMZ 5L
NEFEWARIZ4.5% (2020: 42.9%) °

On or before 31 December 2023

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the turnover with the top
5 customers of the Group accounts for 35.5% of the Group's total
revenue (2020: 43.7%), while the turnover with the largest single
customer of the Group accounts for 34.5% of the Group's revenue
(2020: 42.9%).
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During the Reporting Period, except Mr. Wang Zhenhua, none of the
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the turnover with the top 5
suppliers of the Group accounts for 12.6% of the Group's cost of
sales for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 17.0%), while the
turnover with the largest single supplier of the Group accounts for
5.8% of the Group’s total purchase amount (2020: 8.6%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, or any of their
close associates, or any of the Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of
the Company) had any interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group always adheres to a people-oriented approach, respects
labor and talents, and regards employees as one of the key partners
in promoting the sustainable development of the Group. The Group
provides all employees with a fair and equitable scope of employment,
a healthy and safe working environment, a competitive remuneration
and welfare system, a scientific and sound training system, multi-
channel promotion opportunities and rich and colourful employee
activities, to enhance their sense of belonging and happiness, and to
achieve mutual growth of the employees and the Group.

The Group also understood that it was important to maintain good
relationship with customers, suppliers and other business partners
to achieve its long-term goals, therefore, our management had
established effective communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them when appropriate. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its customers, suppliers or other business partners.

GEARING RATIO

Our gearing ratio was calculated based on total borrowings divided by
total equity as at the respective date. As at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, the gearing ratio were 0% and 0% respectively. The
Group did not have any borrowings.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out on note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out on note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out on note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Gao Xinli (Appointed on 5 July 2021)
Mr. Lan Ziyong (Resigned on 5 July 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin
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In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, the
Board shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint a person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall be
eligible to be re-elected as a Director at that meeting.

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall retain
office until the close of the meeting at which he retires and shall be
eligible for re-election thereat.

Therefore, Ms. Wu Qiangian, Mr. Lv Xiaoping and Mr. Zhu Wei
shall retire from office by rotation and have offered themselves for
re-election at the AGM. Mr. Gao Xinli, who was appointed as an
executive Director by the Board in July 2021, will also be subject to re-
election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out on the
circular to be sent to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on page 30 to page 38 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director made in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent during the year ended 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with a term of three years. The respective executive
Directors or the Company may terminate the contract by a prior
written notice of at least three months. The appointment of an
executive Director shall be in accordance with the requirements on
Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association and
applicable Listing Rules.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with
a term of three years. In accordance with their respective letters of
appointment, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to receive a fixed amount of director’s emoluments while the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any remuneration.
Relevant appointments shall be in accordance with the requirements
on Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association
and applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with any members of the Group, excluding
the contracts expiring within a year or may be terminated by the
employers without paying any compensation (legal compensations
excluded).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

On 28 October 2021, Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings Company Limited
(an indirect subsidiary of the Company) (“Jiangsu Xinchengyue”)
entered into an agreement with Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as attorney
for and on behalf of Mr. Wang Zhenhua, a Controlling Shareholder)
in relation to the provision of certain property management related
services to companies (including the Seazen Group) in which Mr.
Wang Zhenhua can exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of
the voting power at their general meetings and their subsidiaries (the
“2022 Services Framework Agreement”). Mr. Wang Xiaosong is the
son of Mr. Wang Zhenhua, thus, was considered as having a material
interest in the 2022 Services Framework Agreement. Such transactions
were approved by the independent Shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 22 December 2021.

Save for the transactions, arrangements or contracts set out above
and in the sections titled “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions”
under “Directors’ Report”of this annual report and note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other transaction, arrangement
or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a person who was a Director or his or her connected entity had,
directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at any time during

the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’ Report,
no Controlling Shareholders or its subsidiary had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for
the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 21,073 full time
employees in the PRC. Total employee benefit expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB1,357.7
million, which included (i) wages, salaries and bonuses, (ii) pension
costs, (iii) housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances, (iv) other employee benefits and (v) share option scheme,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”.

The Company persists in establishing and optimizing a value-oriented
unified remuneration system based on a proactive and effective
incentive mechanism, materializing optimization of resources allocation
and maximization of corporate efficiency; adhering to the philosophy
of market allocation based on value of position, contribution in terms
of capability and performance difference; maintaining competitiveness
of remuneration, attracting, motivating and retaining core staff. Staff
remuneration is mainly comprised of wages of different positions,
wages in terms of performance, allowances and grants, and social
insurance.

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
remuneration policy and structure for the remunerations of all
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance of the Directors and
senior management and comparable market practices.



EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BN BERNEFRAMUESHHMA L
BB BNR & TSR LS -

RARESERE

ARRBRAKKREB B EFBHNERE P
TWRHIES ©

EERBRETRABERNZE2E

202167 A58 - BFBERERETIELHRT
WITEEHEETHETARRRE -tk
EREZBERE  MEHMLERRBEZE
ARTESRARQRARE HekEREET

B EETH AN EERIRMEERARE
FHRAIE13.51B()IETIARKE -

gﬁ&%%%&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂZﬁ

K2021F7 850 - MERZTAEM TIELHE
EREARABEARWMERRBREE®
MAFBRXLTREBEZE AR AR QA
WERERERE -

EERBETHRAERERND - HE
ROREEIEFEANERER AR

R2021F12831H  EERAQNRESITEHA
BERARBISEMAEEB (EERFESRPE
EBIEXVESD) 2Bt ~ HERMD REEZFE
ERBEFLFLAEGD ([HFFRBEHRH]) 5
XVEBE 7 M B 87 #b /B & AN &) K Bt 22 B 2 #E
mMEKE (BIEEREES MEEGIIEBIEX
WEESIRBEB ZEENAR)  IRIEES
REIEIEME 352 AR ARREFE 2 &M
ZHERmBKE - IR EMBITAZESTETE
HRSHFLESFR| ([BESFA ) BIMEFE R
NEIREER T2 m MR BT

FHIR BB EBERAR 2021 F 5
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

Details of the remunerations of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out on note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT
PROGRAMS

AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

The details of the Company’s retirement and employee benefit
programs are set out on note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES

On 5 July 2021, Mr. Lan Ziyong resigned as an executive Director and
ceased to be a member of the environmental, social and governance
committee of the Company due to work arrangements, and Mr. Gao
Xinli was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the
environment, social and governance committee of the Company on
the same day.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that no information
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION ON JOINT
COMPANY SECRETARY AND AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVES

On 5 July 2021, Ms. Lam Yuk Ling resigned as a joint company
secretary and an authorized representative of the Company due to
other work arrangements, and Ms. Ng Sau Mei was appointed as
a joint company secretary and an authorized representative of the
Company on the same day.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of SFO, to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code")
were as follows:

49



50

IR REEBERD T 2021FF W
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

RAQTBBERZHER Long position in the Company’s ordinary shares
EEpE BORERME FEROHE REBVEDIE
Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Directors Identity and nature of interest shares held shareholding

/N BEaiB AREEZRA 4,660,000 0.54%

Qi Xiaoming Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary

RFH BEaEB AREGEEZREA 2,100,000? 0.24%

Gao Xinli Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary

RfEE BEnfE AREFRZRA 1,237,022 0.14%

Wu Qiangian Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary
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On 30 June 2020, Mr. Qi Xiaoming was granted 1,000,000 award shares by the
Company under the share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme") adopted
by the Company on 15 November 2019. On 2 September 2019, Mr. Qi Xiaoming
was granted 1,500,000 share options by the Company under the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 20 October
2018.

Mr. Gao Xinli has an interest in 1,350,000 share options under the Share Option
Scheme and 750,000 award shares under the Share Award Scheme.

On 30 June 2020, Ms. Wu Qiangian was granted 250,000 awarded shares by
the Company under the Share Award Scheme. On 2 September 2019, Ms. Wu
Qiangian was granted 1,000,000 share options by the Company under the Share

Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

5 Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including

interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of SFO, to be entered into the register stated herein, or

which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Model Code.



EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EERERONEEZNER

BRAFHAREEIN  RBEHMA - HEEM
BEERAREZTAZEBRARFE FRERESE
BEARRBBROREEIEMGSE  TEESE
TTEEMZSERN - MARRKETMEERA
Al RIRNE AR MM B QR ERT %
B BEEFA RS EAEMARZZETEN -

FERRRRORAEBRD FHE
mMRE

B2021F12A31H UM TALZ(BEEHARQF
EETERABRIN RIRGH SABERG B IR
BEAMHEENEXVIBE2RI3DEBERARD
AIRBRAEE  HBLRERARRREES
RS KFIE 336K EFEN T MR

A
KB

REQXRDEBERZER

FHIR BB EBERAR 2021 F 5
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were there any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
controlled companies, or affiliates and their subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Company’s ordinary shares

BREREH

SORERME

FREROBE RESOEIL

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholders Identity and nature of interest shares held  shareholding
FIRE(TERED 2REFERAIEA (FIEE1) 600,000,000 68.95%
Wang Zhenhua (“Mr. Wang") Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited ZFEA (FisE2) 600,000,000 68.95%
Trustee (Note 2)
Infinity Fortune Development Limited Ry EEEm (fEE2) 600,000,000 68.95%
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
First Priority Group Limited 2y EEER (FisE2) 600,000,000 68.95%
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
Wealth Zone Hong Kong Ry A E e (HFE3) 600,000,000 68.95%
Investments Limited Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3)
Innovative Hero Limited BEEAA (HFE4) 600,000,000 68.95%

Beneficial owner (Note 4)
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Investments Limited & A
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang was the founder of Hua Sheng Trust, through which, Chen Ting Sen
(PTC) Limited held long position in 600,000,000 shares through its controlled
corporations in its capacity as the trustee.

2. Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited, as trustee of Hua Sheng Trust, which was established
by Mr. Wang as settlor in favor of his family members, held 100% of the issued
share capital of Infinity Fortune Development Limited, which in turn held 100% of
the issued share capital of First Priority Group Limited.

3. Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is 100% held by First Priority Group
Limited.

4. Innovative Hero Limited is 100% held by Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2021, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any persons
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by a written
resolution of the Shareholders on 20 October 2018 (the “Adoption
Date”). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
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Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at their absolute discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants to take up
options to subscribe for Shares:

Any employee (whether full time or part time) of our Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which our Group
holds any equity interest, including:

(a) any executive Director of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive Director) of our Company, its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(c) any senior management of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the options may
be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants. For the
avoidance of doubt, any person who falls within any of the above
classes shall not, by itself, unless the Board otherwise determines, be
construed as a grantee of option under the Share Option Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to our
Company as consideration for the grant.

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”), being 10% of
the shares in issue on the Listing Date (but taking no account of any
Shares which may be issued under the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option (as defined in the Prospectus), being 800,000,000 shares.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible
person in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of our Company for the time being (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant must be subject to the issue of a circular to the Shareholders
and the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of our Company
with such eligible person and its associates abstaining from voting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of Option

An option may be accepted by an eligible person within 15 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option.

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions on
the exercise of the option, an option may be exercised one year after
the date on which the option is granted and shall expire on the earlier
of the last day of (i) a six-year period from the date of such grant; and
(i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price (the “Subscription Price”) for shares under the
Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations on the date of grant
of that option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of that
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.
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Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of six years
commencing from the Adoption Date.

As at 1 January 2021, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 18,361,000. As at 31 December 2021,
the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
21,195,000, representing approximately 2.44% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this annual report is
72,225,000, which is approximately 8.30% of the issued share capital
as at the date of this annual report.

For further information regarding the Share Option Scheme, see
“Statutory and General Information — Share Option Scheme” of the
Prospectus. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is around 2
years and 7 months.

On 2 September 2019 (the "Date of First Granting”), a total of
16,000,000 share options (the “First Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 3 executive Directors and 29 employees of the Company.
Closing price per share immediately preceding the Date of First
Granting amounted to HK$5.86. The First Batch Share Options are
valid for a period commencing from the Date of First Granting until
19 October 2024, and vesting of the First Batch Share Options is
conditional upon the fulfilment of the following conditions:



56

BB EEERDR 2021 FF8

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(i) RE—XFLBHER12@A% - &F
EREARRELVEHERIEL BB
FHE IR EREN40% ;

iy RE-RAERERBRE24EAPE - RF
BEEAXRRELERIARIEH BB
FHEREEREN30% - &

iy RE—XELBHB36MEAR  kF
BEEAARREVERIAKISH  BE
FHRERIEEEMN30% -

M2020F6 A30H ([E-XRIEBHE]) - &H
2,960,000 FE I ([SE-HEBRE ) BT
FARARI0ELEES  WHORBESF NEHA
HARTA W (B A19.548 70 - - HIEREAS
TRFE EEEE2024F10 8198 IFHREIANA
o WA TIEHEREFRE

(i) upon 12 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
40% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options;

(i) upon 24 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
30% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options; and

(iii) upon 36 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
30% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options.

On 30 June 2020 (the “Date of Second Granting”), a total of
2,960,000 share options (the “Second Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 10 employees of the Company. Closing price per share
immediately preceding the Date of Second Granting amounted to
HK$19.54. The Second Batch Share Options are valid for a period
commencing from the Date of Second Granting until 19 October
2024, and vesting of the Second Batch Share Options is conditional
upon the fulfilment of the following conditions:

EoHBRERE BEAM
No. of Second Batch
Share Options Vesting Date

BERGE

Vesting Conditions

30% MY — HEBE AR A 202146 A30H

30% of the Second 30 June 2021
Batch Share Options

30% B —HEBERRRE 202246 A30H

30% of the Second Batch30 June 2022
Share Options

40% HY 5 — #EBE R 2023F6 A30H

40% of the Second Batch30 June 2023
Share Options

HZE2020F12 A31BIEFEHEHEE2019F 12 31 AL FEAREIERBR
JEAEEREAELL - BIEED40% RFERAXRREDERIAKB]IER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has an increment of at least 40% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HZE2021F12A31HIEFEHEEE2019F 12 31 BIEFEARBERBRR
FEAEEREAELL - BIEE D 120% RFEEAXRREDERTABIER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has an increment of at least 120% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HE2022F12 A31 BIEFEHEEZE2019F12 A31 B IEFEARR AIEERR
FEAESFREMALL - BIBEED230% RFERAARREDEBRIEE]ER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2022 has an increment of at least 230% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”
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On 10 November 2020 (the “"Date of Third Granting”), a total
of 1,350,000 share options (the “Third Batch Share Options”)
were granted to 1 employee of the Company. Closing price per
share immediately preceding the Date of Third Granting amounted
to HK$20.75. The Third Batch Share Options are valid for a period
commencing from the Date of Third Granting until 19 October 2024,
and vesting of the Third Batch Share Options is conditional upon the
fulfilment of the following conditions:

FEMBREHE FEAN BERYT

No. of Third Batch

Share Options Vesting Date Vesting Conditions

30% M) BE AR 1 202146 A30H HZE2020F12 A31 AILFEEBZE2019412 A31 B IEFERA AR

30% of share options 30 June 2021

30% HHE I 202246 A30H

30% of share options 30 June 2022

40% ) B A% 1 2023F6 A30H

40% of share options 30 June 2023

JEAEEREAELL - BIEED40% RFERAXRREDERIAB]IER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has an increment of at least 40% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HZE2021F 12 A31HIEFEHEEE2019F 12 31 I FEARBERBRR
FEAEEREAELL - BIEE D 120% RFEEAXRREDERTABIER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has an increment of at least 120% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HE2022F12 A31 BIEFEHEEZE2019F12 A31 B IEFEARA AIEERR
FEAESFREMALL - BIBED230% RFERAARREDEBRIEE]ER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2022 has an increment of at least 230% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

57
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On 1 July 2021 (the "Date of Fourth Granting”), a total of
7,700,000 share options (the “Fourth Batch Share Options”)
were granted to 13 employees of the Company. Closing price per
share immediately preceding the Date of Fourth Granting amounted
to HK$23.6. The Fourth Batch Share Options are valid for a period
commencing from the Date of Fourth Granting until 19 October 2024,
and vesting of the Fourth Batch Share Options is conditional upon the
fulfilment of the following conditions:

FEMMtERESER FEAN BERYT

No. of Fourth Batch

Share Options Vesting Date Vesting Conditions

30% M) BE AR 1 202247H1H HE2021F12 A31 ALFEEBZE2020612 A31 B IEFERA AR

30% of share options 1 July 2022

30% Y HE % 2023 7H1H

30% of share options 1 July 2023

40% ) B A% 1 20247 A1 H

40% of share options 1 July 2024

JEAEERNEEL BEIETERRFREBAARREVERIER]IER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 reaches certain goals as compared with that
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HZE2022F 12 A31HIEFEHEEE2020F 12 A31 B FEARBERBRR
FEAEEREEL BEETERRFREEAARREVER[ER ISR

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2022 reaches certain goals as compared with that
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HE2023F12 A31 BIEFEHEEZE2020F12 A31 B IEFEARAAIEERR
EAEEFEEL BEETEERFREAARREVER[ERIER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2023 reaches certain goals as compared with that
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “pass”
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REZE2021F12A831BIEFER - BREZE During the year ended 31 December 2021, changes of the share

BN options are as follows:
REgHE
R021E1818 H2021£12A318 fiERMZAN
BEREYRH %8 BRESRH EFSRTE
BRESEALE  BAAH RtéE EREH (1) ERfE ER&H EpaE LUk (1)
Weighted average
closing price
Number of shares Number of shares  immediately before
involved in the share Granted Exercised Canceled involved in the share ~the date of exercise
Name of share options on 1 January  during the Exercise price  during the Lapsed during during options on  of the share options
options holders Date of grant 2021 year (HKD) year the year theyear 31 December 2021 (HKD)
EIEE
Executive Directors
FAEE 201959728 900,000 - 6.18 450,000 - - 450,000 13.68
Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2 September 2019
REERT 2019928 1,000,000 - 6.18 - - - 1,000,000 -
Ms. Wu Qiangian 2 September 2019
i 20205117108 1,350,000 - 20.85 - - - 1,350,000 -
Mr. Gao Xinli 10 November 2020
RTERE 201959728 1,000,000 - 6.18 200,000 - - 800,000 13.26
Mr. Lan Ziyong" 2 September 2019
gt - 4,250,000 - - 650,000 - - 3,600,000 13.55
Sub-total
HAtERA 201959728 11,151,000 - 6.18 3,136,000 480,000 - 7,535,000 2014
Other Grantees 2 September 2019
20206430 2,960,000 - 19.90 - 600,000 - 2,360,000 -
30 June 2020
202157718 - 7,700,000 23.60 - - - 7,700,000 -
1 July 2021
I - 14,111,000 7,700,000 - 3,136,000 1,080,000 - 17,595,000 -
Sub-total
@it - 18,361,000 7,700,000 - 3,786,000 1,080,000 - 21,195,000 19.01
Total
BT Note:

1. MFBEER2021F7 ASABHINITES - 1. Mr. Lan Ziyong resigned as an executive Director on 5 July 2021.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a Share Award Scheme with effect from 15
November 2019, to recognize the contribution of certain employees
and to provide incentives for them to continuously make greater
contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in the future, details
of which were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
15 November 2019. Pursuant to which, the Company will entrust the
trustee of the Share Award Scheme to purchase existing shares in the
open market based on the overall remuneration incentive plan. The
said trustee will hold such shares on behalf of certain employees on
trust, until such shares are vested with them. The maximum number of
shares involved under all relevant grants made pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme (excluding awarded shares that have been forfeited
in accordance with the Share Award Scheme) in aggregate must not
exceed 1.25% of the total issued share capital of the Company as
at 15 November 2019. The Share Award Scheme was amended on
1 July 2021 and 23 August 2021 to adjust the maximum number of
shares involved in the relevant grant (excluding award shares that have
been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to an
aggregate not exceeding 5.0% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 23 August 2021.

The Share Award Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of
2,300,000 award shares were granted under the Share Award Scheme
to certain employees for their contribution to the Group.
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REE2021F12A31BLEFEAN - BERHZ During the year ended 31 December 2021, details for changes of

FE)FFIBWT ¢ award shares are set out as follows:
R2021E1818 R2021%128318
RERBIRH ZRRBIRH
HRRAFEARS Rt A RHGHE ERBRY  FRERE FRAM FREH R E
Number of shares Number of shares
in respect of award Granted Vested Cancelled in respect of award
Name of award shares on during the  during the Lapsed during  during the shares on
shares holders Date of grant 1 January 2021 year year the year year 31 December 2021
HiTES
Executive Directors
BNAEE 2020F6 4308 1,000,000 - 300,000 - - 700,000
Mr. Qi Xiaoming 30 June 2020
REELL 2020F6 4308 250,000 - 75,000 - - 175,000
Ms. Wu Qiangian 30 June 2020
RHMEE 2020114108 750,000 - 225,000 - - 525,000
Mr. Gao Xinli 10 November 2020
[ RRbial 2020F6 4308 120,000 - 36,000 - - 84,000
Mr. Lan Ziyong® 30 June 2020
Nt - 2,120,000 - 636,000 - - 1,484,000
Sub-total
HEfERA 20206 A30H 3,630,000 - 1,089,000 280,000 - 2,261,000
Other grantees 30 June 2020
20217818 - 2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000
1 July 2021
Nt - 3,630,000 2,300,000 1,089,000 280,000 - 4,561,000
Sub-total
o - 5,750,000 2,300,000 1,725,000 280,000 - 6,045,000
Total
B 5E Note:
1. MFBAER2021F7 ASABHINITES - 1. Mr. Lan Ziyong resigned as an executive Director on 5 July 2021.
BREHERRHERR S Grant of Award Shares after the Reporting Period

M202293 A28 8 » AR RIERIEMKMD LEE T
M3 REE 3557 EE T 5,030,000 % 2/
f&fn - BRAK L EREIRMOFFE  S2EARQ
BIHEA2022F3 A28 HMAE ©

B LR BN - A AT A AR R
LB ESGEDREE

On 28 March 2022, the Company has granted 5,030,000 award shares
to 3 Directors and 35 employees under the Share Award Scheme. For
details of the grant of award shares, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, no other Share Option Schemes or Share
Award Schemes were entered into by the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period, or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALES OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company repurchased
a total of 3,701,000 ordinary shares listed on the Stock Exchange,
totalling HK$58,409,820. As at the date of this annual report,
all repurchased shares had been cancelled. Details of the shares
repurchased during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

ENERERK
REE TR Price paid per share
Bm A 6 RO E &&= (Br) &IE (Bx) ENERECER)
Number of shares Total consideration
repurchased on the paid

Month of repurchase

Stock Exchange

Highest (HK$) Lowest (HK$) (HKS)

20214 9A
September 2021
2021410 A
October 2021

2,049,000

1,652,000

16.87 13.80 31,778,380.00

16.54 15.30 26,631,440.00

EEgRA - LADETRSSRBRONEE
FEN RERAF - WEEHAD R RREE
BAEF - B EXFEEEN  REE2021F12
A31BIEFE  AQARISKETMNE QR HE
BE B HERARREMLEMES -

The Board believes that the above repurchases will enhance the net
asset value and/or earnings per share and will be beneficial to the
Company and Shareholders as a whole. Save as disclosed above,
during the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and Company Law of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 20 October 2018, our Controlling Shareholders entered into a deed
of non-competition in favor of the Company (for itself and on behalf
of all members of the Group) (the “Deed of Non-Competition”),
pursuant to which they have undertaken that they would not and,
would procure none of their associates (other than any member of
the Group) to directly or indirectly, engage in any business which
competes or is like to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC or any other places
where the Group carries on business (the “Restricted Business”).

For details regarding the Deed of Non-Competition, see “Deed of
Non-competition” in the section of “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders and Future Land Group”in the Prospectus.

Each of our Controlling Shareholders has made a declaration (the
"Declaration”) as to the compliance with the terms of the Deed
of Non-Competition for the year ended 31 December 2021. In
determining whether the Controlling Shareholders had fully complied
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the Reporting Period, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company (the “INEDs")
noted that: (i) each of the Controlling Shareholders has made the
Declaration; (ii) no Restricted Business was reported to be undertaken
by the Controlling Shareholders (other than, for the avoidance of
doubt, through the Group) during the Reporting Period; and (iii)
there was no particular situation rendering the compliance with, and
enforcement of, the Deed of Non-Competition being questionable. The
INEDs were satisfied with the Controlling Shareholders’ compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2021, none of the Directors or their associates had any
interest in any business which competes or may compete with, directly
or indirectly, the Group's business.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transaction — acquisition of assets

On 8 February 2021, Nanjing Yungui Network Technology Co., Ltd.*
(MREBEERILBBR AR, a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an asset acquisition agreement with Jiangsu Yungui Network
Technology Co., Ltd.* (L&%EMBALEMAER AT (a subsidiary
of Seazen Group, and therefore an associate of Mr. Wang and a
connected person of the Company), and agreed to acquire the
assets (including courier lockers and their spare parts inventory and
intangible assets relating to courier lockers), at a consideration of
RMB32,931,300. For details of the acquisition, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 8 February 2021.

Connected transaction - formation of joint venture
company

On 9 August 2021, Xinchengyue (Chengdu) Property Management Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, Wusheng (Shanghai) Energy Equipment
Technology Co., Ltd.* (B8 (L&) EERZEEF AR AF]), an associate
of Mr. Wang and a connected person of the Company, and GCIP
Chunshu Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (& ERIEE
AR E(BRAE)) entered into a cooperative investment agreement,
pursuant to which, the Company will invest RMB8 million to develop
applications for car and bicycle charging scenarios based on urban
space. For details of the formation of the joint venture company, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 August 2021.

Connected Transactions — 2022 Office Lease Agreements

On 14 December 2021, Shanghai Boyi Property Consultancy Co.,
Ltd.* (EEABEEFZAMNAER2AF) (“Shanghai Boyi”) and Tibet
Xinchengyue, both being the subsidiaries of the Company, entered
into the 2022 Office Lease Agreements (including 2022 Office Lease
Agreement A and 2022 Office Lease Agreement B) with Shanghai
Jiamu Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (L/BEMIREERERELD
7l) (“Shanghai Jiamu") (a subsidiary of Seazen Group, and therefore
an associate of Mr. Wang and a connected person of the Company)
(as lessor), pursuant to which, Shanghai Boyi and Tibet Xinchengyue
agreed to lease from Shanghai Jiamu the office premises.
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The 2022 Office Lease Agreement A has a term of three years from 17
December 2021 to 16 December 2024 (including the rent free period
for a total of three months) with a monthly rent of RMB269,309.17.
The 2022 Office Lease Agreement B has a term of three years from 1
March 2022 to 28 February 2025 (including the rent free period for a
total of two months) with a monthly rent of RMB106,309.29.

In accordance with HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise right-of-use
assets in its consolidated statement of financial position in respect of
the lease of Office Premises under the 2022 Office Lease Agreements.
For details of the lease of Office Premises, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 December 2021.

Continuing connected transactions
The 2021 Services Framework Agreement

On 29 October 2020, the Company entered into the 2021 Services
Framework Agreement with Mr. Wang (for details, please refer the
announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2020).

° Parties: Tibet Xinchengyue and Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as attorney
for and on behalf of Mr. Wang);

° Connected relationship: Mr. Wang is a Controlling Shareholder;

° Transaction purpose: entering into an annual services
framework agreement in relation to the provision of certain
property management related services to certain companies
(including the Seazen Group) in which Mr. Wang can exercise
or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power
of its subsidiaries (“Mr. Wang's Associated Companies”) at
these general meetings, and agreeing on the annual cap on
such connected transactions;

° Total consideration and terms: providing property management
services and value-added services for Mr. Wang's Associated
Companies, with the maximum aggregate annual transaction
amount of RMB1,500 million;

o Term: effective from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive); and

o The transactions were approved by the independent
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 21
December 2020.
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The 2022 Services Framework Agreement and the Seazen
Framework Agreement

As the 2021 Services Framework Agreement was to expire on 31
December 2021, on 28 October 2021, Jiangsu Xinchengyue (an
indirect subsidiary of the Company) has entered into the 2022 Services
Framework Agreement with Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as attorney for
and on behalf of Mr. Wang) to renew the 2021 Services Framework
Agreement for a period of one year commencing on 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2022. Pursuant to the 2022 Services Framework
Agreement, Jiangsu Xinchengyue provides property management
services and value-added services for Mr. Wang's Associated
Companies, with the maximum aggregate annual transaction amount
of RMB2,000 million.

To govern the transactions contemplated between the Group and
Seazen Group more specifically, Jiangsu Xinchengyue has also entered
into the Seazen Framework Agreement with Seazen Holdings, which
is a subsidiary agreement pursuant to the 2022 Services Framework
Agreement. The annual cap of the service fees under the Seazen
Framework Agreement of RMB1,650 million was already included
in the annual cap of RMB2,000 million under the 2022 Services
Framework Agreement.

The 2022 Services Framework Agreement, the Seazen Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
approved by the independent Shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 21 December 2021. For details relating to
the 2022 Services Framework Agreement, the Seazen Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 28 October 2021 and 1
November 2021, and the circular of the Company dated 3 December
2021.
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As disclosed in the Company’s circulars dated 30 November 2020

and 3 December 2021, in order to ensure that the transactions

contemplated under the 2021 Services Framework Agreement, the
2022 Services Framework Agreement and the Seazen Framework
Agreement will be on normal commercial terms, and that the relevant
fees will not fall below the prevailing market rate, the guidance price
of such services for similar type of development projects issued by

the local government (if applicable) and the fees charged to the third

party customers independent of the Group, the Group will adopt the
following measures:

)

(if)

(iii)

the finance department of the Group, will be responsible for
regular monitoring of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Services Framework Agreement,
the 2022 Services Framework Agreement and the Seazen
Framework Agreement to ensure that the annual cap will
not be exceeded, in particular, the Group will cease to enter
into any new subsidiary agreement if such will cause the total
contractual income to exceed the annual cap for that financial
year;

internal review will be conducted by the Group to assess, on a
monthly basis, whether the provision of property management
services and value-added services has been made in accordance
with the terms of the 2021 Services Framework Agreement,
the 2022 Services Framework Agreement and the Seazen
Framework Agreement and in accordance with the aforesaid

pricing policy;

prior to entering into any subsidiary agreements, the personnel
of various departments including the legal department, finance
department and operation department of the Company
will review and assess the specific terms and conditions of
the transactions to ensure their consistency with the 2021
Service Framework Agreement, the 2022 Services Framework
Agreement and the Seazen Framework Agreement. During
such internal review process, the relevant personnel will
examine, among others, (a) information of the parties; (b) the
term of the agreement; (c) the type and scope of services to
be provided by the Group thereunder; and (d) whether the
contract price is in line with the aforesaid pricing policy, in
order to ensure comment (if any) from various departments of
the Group will be properly addressed;
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the Company will engage its auditor to conduct an annual
review of the continuing connected transactions to be
conducted pursuant to the 2021 Services Framework
Agreement, the 2022 Services Framework Agreement and the
Seazen Framework Agreement;

the independent non-executive Directors will review the
continuing connected transactions to be conducted pursuant
to the 2021 Services Framework Agreement, the 2022 Services
Framework Agreement and the Seazen Framework Agreement
on an annual basis and confirm in the annual reports of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2021 and ending
31 December 2022 on whether such continuing connected
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better, and in accordance with the 2021 Services Framework
Agreement, the 2022 Services Framework Agreement and
the Seazen Framework Agreement on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole;
and

the compliance and legal department and finance department
of the Company are jointly responsible for, among others,
gathering information in relation to factors in determining
the service fee in provision of property management services
and value-added services. During the annual review of the
transactions to be taken place in accordance with the 2022
Services Framework Agreement, the Company would compile
and provide a summary of the relevant transaction details,
information referred to in determining the transaction prices,
and other relevant supporting documents as required by the
external auditors of the Company and the independent non-
executive Directors for their review, to ensure the transactions
are in accordance with the terms of the 2022 Services
Framework Agreement and the pricing policies adopted.
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During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which took place during the year ended 31 December
2021 and confirmed that such transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor has carried out a number of scheduled
auditing procedures for the continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
confirmed that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe the continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the
Prospectus and the relevant announcements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (if applicable).

Save as disclosed in the related-party transactions described in note
35(b) provision of services to the financial statements, the Board
confirmed that none of the related-party transactions constitute
nonexempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group have complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed by the Company in
accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

MATERIAL LEGAL ACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any
material legal actions or arbitrations. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company was not involved in any unsettled material
legal actions or claims or in any such material legal actions or claims
that might threaten the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY CLAUSES

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
no former or current permitted indemnity clauses have benefited
the Directors (whether entered into by the Company or others) or
any directors of their affiliated companies (if entered into by the
Company). The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering
director and officer liabilities for its Directors, Supervisors and senior
officers.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company had no material
acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee (“Audit committee”), together with
the management and external auditors, has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The information regarding the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
corporate governance report on page 72 to page 93 of this annual
report.
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DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float approved by the Stock Exchange and allowed by
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021. PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited
the attached financial statements, which were prepared pursuant to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Qi Xiaoming

Chairman

Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the "CG code”) as its own code of corporate governance. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the
Reporting Period. The Company will continue to review and enhance
its corporate governance practices to ensure the compliance with the
CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the
senior management of the Group. To oversee the particular affairs
of the Company, the Board has established four Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee
(the “"Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) and Environmental, social and
governance committee (the "ESG Committee”) (collectively, the
“"Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees the responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and Shareholders at all times.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance covering
any legal actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Gao Xinli (appointed on 5 July 2021)
Mr. Lan Ziyong (resigned on 5 July 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management”.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
(among which, at least one independent non-executive Director shall
possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise).

The Company has also met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company believes that a diversified board of Directors will be
beneficial to the Company's performance. Therefore, the Company
has adopted a board diversity policy, specifying that the diversification
of the Board members will be considered in multiple respects while
determining the composition of the Board, including (but not limited
to) age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All appointments of the Board will be based on
the principle of “the best person for the job” and take into account
the objective conditions and the benefits of a diversified Board in
selection of candidates. The summary of the board diversity policy is as
follows:

1. Policy vision

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial
to the improvement of the Company’s performance. The
differences in ideas, background, ways of thinking and working
methods may create values for our stakeholders, particularly for
our customers, Shareholders, employees and the communities
managed by us.

2. Measurable targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
categories.
policy of equal opportunity for all in all respects, without

The Company undertakes to implement the

discrimination due to gender, age, cultural and educational
background,
and service term or other factors.

race, professional experience, skills, knowledge

3. Supervision and report

The Nomination Committee will annually report the
composition of the Board in terms of diversification in the
corporate governance report of the annual report and supervise
the implementation of the policy.
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For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Board comprises nine Directors, two of which are female;
and
2. The members of the Board have different cultural and

educational background; some of them have obtained
diversified professional qualifications.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of Directors in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, no
Directors have any personal relations (including financial, business,
family or other material relations/correlations) with any other Directors
or the chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, and Nomination Committee.

In regards to the CG Code provision of requiring Directors to
disclose to the issuer the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments, as well
as their identity and the time involved in the issuer, all the Directors
have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.



76

BB EEERDR 2021 FF8

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

.I/J'_\\ 'H‘-/D#&m

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABREFEEXERR

MBEFZENESTORREHROENABEIR
AR UHRAHADANEEREFARE
RIBRER AR RAIRGH THEENE
TEEERENER ARRMERREFTL
PRt a e L‘AK%?%?&%TE@H:W%EE'J&E@
HEEZRNEERESTERIEPNENE
e §$NE%Z%$E{%EE§$A I3
LEASNEFREN FEFTEERLIIERSE
NEITRENRBE -

ARARBBEREFTETHEZELRRE  #it
RN E A E M MR o AR BEFE QM
ETHEHLREHERESZAG  BELEE
& ESE DI

RIBFZFEREMNER - REE2021F12831H
IEFEHE  BEEBESHOEIITOT

Induction and continuous professional development

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide all Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to
time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to seek continuous professional
development and thus develop and update their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries, from time to time, update and provide
written training materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of
directors.

According to the information provided by the Directors, they have
accepted the training as follows during the year ended 31 December
2021:

HESXRREREME
Nature of courses for
continuous professional

EEnE Name of Directors development
BNBR S A Mr. Qi Xiaoming B/C/D
REFER L Ms. Wu Qiangian A/C/D
RHIFNGE (R20214F7 A5 HEZ(T) Mr. Gao Xinli (appointed on 5 July 2021) B/C/D
BTBEEE (R20214F7A5HEHT) Mr. Lan Ziyong (resigned on 5 July 2021) C/D
FREMSTAE Mr. Wang Xiaosong C/D
BN FERE Mr. Lv Xiaoping C/D
PR RR S A Mr. Lu Zhongming C/D
SRE A+ Ms. Zhang Yan C/D
RERE Mr. Zhu Wei C/D
AETR A Mr. Xu Xinmin C/D
Mt Notes:
A HEFAER KBRS HRER S A RE A: Attend seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings
& Rt &R HEER S KB B: Address at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums
¢ e Al G ANDE S e 2 C: Attend training courses provided by law firms and related to the Company’s business
b: BBz BRFAB K - RECELXES EF D: Read documents covering a wide range of topics, including corporate governance,

BE - LRI REAMIERED

director responsibilities, Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code (previous code provision
A.2.1), the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and performed by different individuals.

Mr. Qi Xiaoming is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the overall management of the Group
and guides the Group's strategic development and business plans.
Considering the Group's current development status, the Board
believes that the structure of the same person holding the two
positions of chairman and chief executive officer can provide the
Company with a strong and consistent leadership and benefit the
implementation and execution of the Group’s business strategies.
Nonetheless, we will review the structure from time to time based on
the circumstances at that time. The Board will continue to evaluate
relevant situations and separate the two roles of chairman and chief
executive officer at a proper time taking into account the Group's
overall status.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with a term of three years. The respective executive
Directors or the Company may terminate the contract by serving
not less than three months’ written notice to the other party. The
appointment of an executive Director shall be in accordance with
requirements on Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of
Association.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with
a term of three years. In accordance with their respective letters of
appointment, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to receive a fixed amount of director's emoluments while the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any remuneration.
Relevant appointments shall be made in accordance with the
requirements on Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of
Association and applicable Listing Rules.
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Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contracts with any members of the Group, excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or the nearest number but no less than one-third of the
Directors, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three (3)) are
subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting and
each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years
at an annual general meeting. Any Director newly appointed by the
Board to fill a causal vacancy of the Board or serve as a new Director
shall submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the next
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
and offering proposals regarding the appointment, re-election and
succession plans of Directors to the Board.

Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately one time each quarter.
Notices of not less than 14 days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend regular
meetings and discuss the matters on the agenda.

For other Board and Board Committees meetings, reasonable notices
are given. The agenda and accompanying meeting papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committees members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
meetings. When any Directors or Board Committees members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings should be kept
by the joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors
for information and records.
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ExegukTEaegdNeRLEe AL Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings are
BEFEREEELEEMERNEERME recorded in sufficient detail including the matters considered by the
BRRTE  BREFRINTIMNEE ZES Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, and
AN EZRLERRRNERLBERA any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board

g

EREZRTENCERERNTEESES meeting and Board Committees meeting are sent to the Directors for
NHBEER EFEEZNERLHELFAMH consideration within a reasonable time after the meeting is held. The
FBEEEMH - minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by all Directors.

REBERR  EEFURTIRNESETEH - I During the Reporting Period, the Board held 9 Board meetings and

BR2AKEEARG - A EELRFEEZSERENR 2 general meetings were held. Information regarding the attendance

RRREHIEREHN T of Board meetings and general meetings by individual Directors is as
follows:

EHEEE|RE EHERRAERE
EHEESERH™ EHERRAKERE
Number of attendance/ Number of attendance/
number of attendance  number of attendance

required of Board required of general
== Directors meetings meetings
B NER S A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 9/9 2/2
REERL Ms. Wu Qiangian 9/9 0/2
REFNEAE (R2021467 A5 AEZ(T) Mr. Gao Xinli 5/5 0/2
(appointed on
5 July 2021)
BT BALE (R2021F7H5HET) Mr. Lan Ziyong 5/5 0/2
(resigned on
5 July 2021)
FREMEE Mr. Wang Xiaosong 9/9 0/2
B/ NEEA Mr. Lv Xiaoping 9/9 0/2
PR AR ST A Mr. Lu Zhongming 9/9 172
SR+ Ms. Zhang Yan 9/9 2/2
KRIZSELE Mr. Zhu Wei 9/9 0/2

AT E Mr. Xu Xinmin 9/9 1/2
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Model code for securities transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific inquiries with all the Directors, each of the Directors has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the required standards as set
out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its right to decide all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors could
have recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access
and consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate governance functions

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance
functions include:

. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with laws and regulatory requirements;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manuals applicable to the employees and Directors;

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and offer proposals and report relevant
matters to the Board;
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o to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance rules and disclosure in its corporate governance
reports; and

° to review and monitor the Company's compliance with the
Company’s whistle-blowing policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Lu Zhongming, our
non-executive Director, and Ms. Zhang Yan and Mr. Zhu Wei, our
independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Zhang Yan is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-
executive directors only, and at least one of them is an independent
non-executive director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Our Directors confirm that we had complied with
such requirements during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include:

° to oversee the Company's relations with the external auditor
and be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and deal with
any questions of its resignation or dismissal,

° to review and monitor the Company’s financial statements and
reports, including the significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them, and to consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

° to review and discuss financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting function.
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The full text of written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee convened 2 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021 to discuss and consider the followings:

o to review the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the financial year, and the audit report prepared by the
external auditor on accounting matters and major findings
during the audit process;

o to review the interim results of the Company and its

A3081ENEA 2P ERZELS subsidiaries for the six months ended 30 June 2021;

. 1T57T7I%EF'#&?@ CARERF - NEPEE . to review the financial reporting systems, compliance
(BEARAAFGH RV BRBEFIES procedures, internal controls (including the adequacy of
HEIR ﬁﬁ BIRELREERES resources, qualifications, training courses and budgets of

)~ BREE R R RERINEG employees of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
REEEL RN - EEFFgURREETZR departments), risk management systems and procedures,
ZEEREE T RERBERINE and the reappointment of external auditors. The Board has
ZEREMVE L B (T HE B R R o not deviated from any recommendations made by the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, retirement or

removal of the external auditors.

EEZZEENELEZEEZNERENT The attendance of each member of Audit Committee at such meetings

7~ is set out in the table below:

EHESERZEEGRY

EHEEXZEGRH

Number of attendance/

number of attendance

required of Audit

=} Directors Committee meetings

PR BR S A Mr. Lu Zhongming 2/2

RFEZ L Ms. Zhang Yan 2/2

KERE Mr. Zhu Wei 2/2
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Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Xu Xinmin and
Ms. Zhang Yan, our independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Lv
Xiaoping, our non-executive Director. Mr. Xu Xinmin is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company'’s corporate
strategy,

o identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors to determine their eligibility;

° make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer; and

o develop policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidates or incumbents
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and ability to
commit time and efforts to carry out duties and responsibilities.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
submitted to the Board for decision. The full text of written terms of
reference of Nomination Committee is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Nomination Committee convened 2 meetings during the year

ended

31 December 2021. The attendance of each member of

Nomination Committee at such meetings is set out in the table below:

EHEERZEEERE
EHEERZEEERY
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Nomination

= Directors Committee meetings
=B/ NEEAE Mr. Lv Xiaoping 2/2
R Ms. Zhang Yan 2/2
R A Mr. Xu Xinmin 2/2
FMEES Remuneration committee

FMEZE R HmB LN ITESTREREERG
MREEARRITESEDRLEARK - KME
FERFMERENEIE

FHEZEENIEREBRRE

c  BALTREEERSREREOTH
B T A A T A 3R T TEAR T B
O HITHMEE - NEER R
= E

. 2REFINEERE RERRT I
T IR B M Hr BN AR

W\

. UTREz—  (VEEFSERAME -

EEEMNATESTRSREERE M

8 k(N EFERRBENRTES
BREEBNHINGSE

FMZEanEMBERE 2 RB R EA
NEEE R AR o

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhu Wei and
Mr. Xu Xinmin, our independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Qi
Xiaoming, our executive Director. Mr. Zhu Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management'’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

either (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; or (i) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

The full text of written terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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The Remuneration Committee convened 2 meetings during the

year ended 31 December 2021.

The attendance of each member of

Remuneration Committee at such meetings is set out in the table

below:
CHEERZE|RE
EHEERZEEERE
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Remuneration
BE Directors Committee meetings
BN S A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2/2
REFRAE Mr. Zhu Wei 2/2
AR KA Mr. Xu Xinmin 2/2
BRI HEREREES ESG committee
B HehE a8 eRlaiTE SRR The ESG committee currently comprises the executive Directors,
Sk REBEBRTREFHFCAMERK - F/NA namely Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Ms. Wu Qiangian and Mr. Gao Xinli. Mr. Mr.
SERERR - HENERZEEMNIRE - Qi Xiaoming the chairman of the ESG committee.

RE HEMERZESNTIZRERRE

. FIERBHAARMNERE HERE
A (TESG)) BEfE - Fas ~ ZREE - 1EZ
FRIRERE - e EB TG RERS
& NHEREEEESTSMBIESGH

RIFENITNEE

. BT HERNDNFNESGEZ -
ZESGHZMEMIBR « &

o FERESGEEBE LA KA B R A
B WA A ASEBEESGHBERE X
EBHEARTEZARER  RUBEK
MEFAEBEESGHER W RZEER
Eﬁﬂ%fﬂ%& CFEBEAEAR  ERRE

DRMBIFRIZAE o

The primary duties of the ESG committee include:

to formulate and review the Company’s environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") responsibilities, vision,
strategy, framework, principles and policies, and strengthen
the materiality assessment and report process to ensure the
continuous execution and implementation of ESG policies
passed by the Board;

to consider and approve the Company’'s ESG goals, and

regularly review the achievement of ESG goals; and

to monitor main ESG trends and related risks and opportunities
and evaluate whether the Group’s ESG-related structure and
business model are adequate and effective in this regard,
adopt and update the Group’'s ESG policies when necessary
and ensure that such policies are up-to-date and comply with
applicable laws, regulations and regulatory requirements, as
well as international standards.



86

BB EEERDR 2021 FF8

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

iz st N/ E
1E ??ﬁ%#&%%

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE M RERZESNEE2021F12 731
BILFEEHEAMIAEE  SRE HeksE
AEEBEKEHEZEEENBERAENTE

The ESG Committee convened 1 meeting during the year ended 31
December 2021. The attendance of each member of ESG Committee
at such meeting is set out in the table below:

EHERE HEREARAZESRH
EHERE  HERERZESRH
Number of attendance/number

of attendance required of ESG

4= Directors Committee meeting

B/NBR S A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 11

KRIEFE Mr. Zhu Wei 11

RETFEHE (R20216F7 A5 HEZ(E) Mr. Gao Xinli 0/1
(appointed on 5 July 2021)

BT BELE (R202149F7A5HEHT) Mr. Lan Ziyong 1/1

EENRSREERE 1M

HE2021F12A31BILFE - EEEWME RS
RAFRFEISAZISENARNAISHEIEE
RE MBS T

(resigned on 5 July 2021)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the details of the remuneration
of the Board members and the Company’s senior management set out
on page 35 to page 38 of this annual report are as follows:

FEE (AR%T)

AZ

Remuneration range (RMB) Number of person

5008-10008
0-5008

REZE2021F12A31BILFE - BESERE
A REIMNE -

ESABMBERROMBARET

EEPFARSEARIUANREE2021F12 A31
AIFFEMPERENEBE  MEEQATR
B AN B N AR E B AR LA N AN 2 B R 348 I

PaNN— =}
HeERE -

5 million = 10 million 1
0 — 5 million 10

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, which give
a true and fair view of the status of the Company and the Group and
of the results and cash flow of the Group.
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The management has provided the Board with such explanations
and information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are submitted to the Board for approval. The Company has provided
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company's
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going-concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page
F-94 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, the Audit Committee, the senior management and the
internal audit department are the four levels of structure of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining adequate risk management and internal control systems
to (i) safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and avoid inappropriate use or disposal; (i) comply with
relevant laws, rules or regulations; and (iii) keep reliable financial and
accounting records in accordance with relevant reviewing standards
and regulatory reporting requirements and review the effectiveness
of such systems on an annual basis. Risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to be responsible
for the oversight of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a
yearly basis. Such review covers all important aspects of supervision,
including financial, operational and compliance monitoring. As
disclosed in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the Company’s risk
management and internal monitoring systems. The Audit Committee
oversees the risk management process and reviews the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems by conducting the
following procedures:

° Review the Company’s risk management process and policy;

° Review with senior management at least annually reports
demonstrating the compliance with the risk management
policy;

o Discuss with senior management at least annually the

Company’s major risk exposures and the steps the senior
management has taken or should take to assess and mitigate
such exposures; and

o Review the ongoing effectiveness of the Company's risk
management practices.

The senior management is responsible for administering the
Company'’s risk management process and is accountable for ensuring
that the Company’s business operations are conducted in compliance
with our risk management policy, taking into consideration the
changes in the environment and the Company’s risk tolerance.
Responsibilities of the Company’s senior management include:

o Design and implement a Company-wide risk management
policy;
o Review and update the risk management policy on a timely

basis, ensuring it remains relevant and adequate, taking
into account changes in the environment, industry and the
Company’s operations and risk profile and, where necessary,
recommend changes to the risk management policy for the
Audit Committee to review;

o Ensure that the Company’s risk management process is aligned
and integrated with the annual strategic and business planning
process;
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o Design and establish a risk management methodology which
provides the appropriate tools to identify, evaluate, and
manage business exposures;

° Establish a Company-wide risk reporting process to ensure that
the Company’s senior management, the Audit Committee and
the Board are apprised of all material risk issues and business
exposures;

° Ensure that necessary management controls and oversight
processes are in place to monitor compliance with the risk
management policy and the risk management methodology;

° Approve and monitor key risk positions and exposure trends,
risk management strategies and risk management priorities;

° Review and discuss the Company’s overall risk profile, key and
emerging risks and risk management activities through periodic
risk discussions among senior management; and

° Review the key business strategies and initiatives to assess their
impact on the Company'’s overall risk position.

Risk management process

In addition to the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the Company
has developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks and to resolve material internal control defects
(if any). The senior management, through the Company's internal
audit department, is responsible for the annual risk reporting process.
Members of the internal audit department meet with various members
of the senior management to review and assess risks and discuss
solutions to address material internal control defects (if any), including
any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are compiled, ratings are
assigned and mitigation plans are documented. The risk assessment is
reviewed by certain members of senior management and presented to
the Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company's financial
results, (i) the probability that the risk will occur, and (iii) the velocity
or speed at which the risk could occur.



90

BB EEERDR 2021 FF8

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

iz st N/ E
ﬁi ??ﬁ%#&%%

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AREEREERABIZENREN T REE
B ()VEEZMMA - AEARFRARERE R
NEGIEHEE - ITER - YT BELE
URHFINEBEEAETRRECHRNER -
(NHEFEREEXEBNELNERNRR - &
EEERCRIVEE WERE  AEGIHRERE
BRABESOERL  ABERBFImER
BMEZEZ B SREBIARER -

RBEREA  NAAREBERETEEERT
AR THREREERADEZGRX - EFER
JeR gz 7 3 N 10 P B A AR A 6 2 A A HA R AR AR X
EERMBYARS - RARA G - REEX
R ERHmBETENER BTEEMER
Bre -

ARHE

HUEMREZERDERIBOHRIENTME
BZIINNBEREN  EBSTHETRESE
WETEREERGIRIE EMARAIE13.0945 %
F1310EURBHEBHEGEAEXIVABRE
HEBBXBAEEE  BROFEERAITE
MTERELERE - WTESERBF AT WE
MAaEEE TEFEEERNQRTRTIED
ETasRkSEK -

R EREF A%AR P

REENABBEZBFANRERRNRRNAE
ANTHDEEERAG c AMBEXHBPFINEE
BEEBRNARANT B R AEEE - &
HARRNAAED B R FRARETERR
EEZ °

The main features of the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) exclusive departments are designated
to be responsible for the implementation of the Company’'s risk
management and internal control systems and the heads of the
major operational units or departments are responsible for managing
and mitigating the risks identified; (ii) the management ensures that
appropriate measures have been taken against material risks that
affect the Group's business and operations; and (iii) the internal
audit department provides the management and Audit Committee
with independent confirmation regarding the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has ensured that the risk
management and internal control provisions under the CG Code
have been complied with. The Board, during its annual review on the
risk management and internal control systems, has confirmed the
effectiveness and adequacy of such systems, and also adequacy of the
resources and staff qualifications and experiences of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Inside information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
events that may impact the price of the shares or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
as inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and
the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive
Directors and the joint company secretaries also have responsibility for
approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the
Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

Internal audit department

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major responsibilities of
the internal audit department are reviewing the financial conditions
and internal control of the Company, and conducting comprehensive
audits of all branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular
basis.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor to the Company during the Reporting Period
is as follows:

SHE(ARETT)
REER Service category Amount (RMB’000)
EZRE Audit services 2,900
FEEZARTE Non-audit services 261
“et Total 3,161
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. You lJianfeng (“"Mr. You”) is the Company’s joint company
secretary, responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
has also engaged Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng"), a director of TMF Hong
Kong Limited (a company secretarial services provider), as its joint
company secretary to assist Mr. You to fulfill his duties as company
secretary of the Company. Her primary contact person at the Company
is Mr. You.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. You and Ms. Ng have undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable the Shareholders
and investors to make informed investment decisions.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
of the Company will attend the annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The auditor of the Company will also attend
the annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.xinchengyue.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue (including election of
individual Directors) at general meetings.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each Shareholders’ meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meetings and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’s general meetings according to the Articles of Association.
Any one or more Shareholders with the right to vote on the
Company’s general meetings and hold a paid-up capital of no less than
one-tenth on the date of submitting a request shall have the right to
call an extraordinary general meeting at any time with such a written
request to the Board or any one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company to address any matters stated in such request. Such
meeting shall be held within two months upon submission of such
requests. If no such meeting is held by the Board within 21 days upon
submission, the persons submitting such requests may convene a
meeting according to normal procedures and all expenses reasonably
incurred to the persons submitting such requests due to the Board's
failure to convene such a general meeting shall be compensated by
the Company.
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As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, relevant
procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Inquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their inquiries about
the Company may contact the Board Office at the Company’s
headquarters via e-mail at xcy.ir@xinchengyue.com.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and revised Memorandum and Articles of Association
was adopted by the Company on 24 October 2018 and came into
effect on the listing date. There was no change in the Memorandum
and Articles of Association during the Reporting Period.
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BT 5 PR 7% &2 B A PR A B M F 4 B R TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF S-ENJOY SERVICE GROUP CO., LIMITED
(REEHEZME LA ERAA) (incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

= OPINION

KMHEHFTHAR What we have audited

SRR RBERERAR ([EAR]) REKE The consolidated financial statements of S-Enjoy Service Group Co.,
AR ([EEE ) HIMNEF-109FEF-252 B H4R Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
W BEmE - BIE set out on pages F-109 to F-252, comprise:

. HEZBIEFEMNGZE ZEBARE o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

. M2021512 A31 BREE I HERRAE . the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021;

. HEZBAILFENGEERZEHEK . the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

. HEZBLEFENGFERERER & . the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. REMBHMEMT - BEEANGEBE . the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

REMBFEER o include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

FEL K B Bt AT, Bl PR K F AN 22
Bk : +852 2289 8888, fAH. : +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (cont'd)
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. B 5 FE SR IB A AT [B] Y 1 . Recoverability of trade receivables

. XBEHEEESR 0 Purchase price allocation for business combinations
. EEYEAERZE . Goodwill impairment assessment

BREREE ZMHF XN EERREREE

Key Audit Matter

B 5 FEUGRIA R AT UL Bl 1

Recoverability of trade receivables

B2HREMBRERM T4 (EEAG A RAE) RHF
22 (B 5 EKFIE)

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and Note 22 (trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements.

R202112A318  ERENESREFAKREFER
ARKG623BEL (BERABARKTI0BEB T BERE
AR¥TEETL) -

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount
of trade receivables of the Group is RMB623 million,
including gross amount of RMB710 million and allowance
for impairment of RMB87 million.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

B E 5 e YR IE AT U B 1 ) B 3R T A A BB I AR
EITTRE  WERMANTIEEEREMESREREZE
(mEElt - =8 - e REBRENHFFNAIENL)
BIKF AT EAREREAAE AR - HME &
S5 180 2 5 1 3 A L 5 £ A B B T TR
=

We obtained an understanding of management'’s
internal control over the process of recoverability of
trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud. We tested
the key controls over the Group’s assessment of the
recoverability of trade receivables;
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BEEREE(E)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

RAHEE SRBGRIER AR E Y - EEERAE BV KR
EREAFSRAATNEC L - & AR ERAFERE
KIANE 5 REWGKIA A ia TR T UARER -

For assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the trade receivables.

EEERBEERANNTERAEELENEZTOL - B
FEBRANHESHEANHEEEIER - BHFEHELX
IRAR AR L BURETT R E - WHETTHE R E AR
FATHEMEE -

The Group calculated the historical default rate
percentage based on the payment profile of debtors,
including sales and bad debts related to the sales in the
observed period. The expected lifetime loss is estimated
based on internal historical data with adjustment to reflect
current conditions and forward looking factors.

BMKE SRR FTUREN R RS EZFE - T A
REBEREAREREETHREAEABEERELHNEARE
Baat ikt KA o

We consider recoverability of trade receivables a key audit
matter because the amount is significant and there are
significant and complexed management’s estimates and
judgements involved in the assessment of expected credit
losses.

BN EZOMEERRERSE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

BHMMEZEERRAE SRR ERRNELENET
DLEMELEE  BFEMEFEEENFENESHERE
g

We agreed the historical data, including sales and bad
debts, on a sample basis, used in the calculation of
historical default rate percentage to the accounting
and operation system;

BIBBERME RS AETEN TR RS2 ZEINDEE
HRETh B IR B 8 AR AN A HE 1 R = ARTAS

We assessed management’s assessment of current
conditions and forward looking factors based on
our understanding of the client’s industry and with
reference to external data sources;

BHMYREERR L EMBRX YRR EZE SRR
RIBRERENBZE2021F12A31 BB SR WFIAR
ARECETTHIEAIR

We tested the aging profile of trade receivables as of
31 December 2021 used in the calculation of allowance
for impairment of trade receivables, on a sample basis,
to sales invoices and other relevant documents;

BHPRFERRET B 7R WIBRE E BT E 8 E
/‘\i o

We checked mathematical accuracy of the calculations
of allowance for impairment of trade receivables as at
year end;
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BEEREE(E) EMNBELNAEEBREERSE(B)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. HMEHE ZRUGIEN REENIERETHERSE
WA E Wk =g R AR S -

. We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and the
related supporting documentation.

ERFBTHER - RMER - SRERE ZERFIER AT
[B] 1 34 R 50 R B0 i 5t e 2B 1S B AT 1S IR IR 2 K% ©

Based on the procedures performed, we found management’s
estimates and judgements used in the assessment of
recoverability of trade receivables were supported by available
evidence.
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BEEREE(E)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

EBAHBEEIE

Purchase price allocation for business combinations

B2 E B mEM T4 (BERG A RAE) -« 17
(EREE) K32 (WEHRBAR) -

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements), Note 17 (intangible assets) and Note 32
(acquisition of subsidiaries) to the consolidated financial
statements.

REZE2021F12A31MBIEFE - EEEFAETEBHE
Ot - BEEBEZREBELSEREEMBREZRNETLE
E - WRKESBWE R BEMKREBARINEBEE R
BEETHE Bt EBRERSBEWEETEEERS
B SAmABRTEEARK29 88T (AIE#ANEFH
&) °

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
several business combinations. Management has engaged
independent qualified valuers to assist them in identifying
the intangible assets and to perform the valuations of the
identified assets and liabilities of the acquired companies
at their respective acquisition dates, based on which,
management performed a purchase price allocation
for each acquisition, which resulted in recognition of
intangible assets of RMB295 million being the identified
customer relationships.

BN EZOMEERRERSE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

B ERENAES REEBSHFNREED KW
LR ETT TR WE BN HEE I R EAMER
[EB 2R (AR A1 - 8L - FERERRESMEFR
AIREME) 7K - DARTAH BB R SR AR IR L 0 (B B Rl o M
¥ BEEXBSOAREED AT A BRI ST
TR

We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal control and assessment process of purchase
price allocation for business combinations and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud. We tested the key controls over the
Group's assessment of the purchase price allocation for
business combinations;

HMFTHEBREZRENIINBEERMBEE N - FTEME RS
S

We assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external valuers engaged by
management;
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BEEREE(E) EMNBELNAEEBREERSE(B)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

HEHNEPEARETARLBENG L REXRAB KE o
i REBRAM KA BEAEMERRAEE HERE
RERFERR (FELAFRAERE  RANSAEF - B
15 - FEREH ([EBITDAL) % - BRI X R B P BIERAET
FIERAEH) - .
Significant judgements and estimates were involved

in the fair value assessment of the identified customer
relationships. These significant judgements and
estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation
methodologies and the use of key assumptions in the
valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rate, earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA") margins, discount rates and expected useful e
lives of customer relationships).

BB RULFHEARERXERS TERE P BRRER
BEBEHEEARENEZE  MERHEB RMETIEE
BREPARNARBETEREREEBESELENRE -
&=,

We consider this area a key audit matter given the
magnitude of the identified customer relationships
and goodwill recognised arising from the business
combinations, and the significant judgements and
estimates involved in the fair value assessment of the
identified customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from the business combinations.

BMREEAKBEEERBREESRNGLERS  LEE
BHANABEEERTEEREMRANGETEZEE
BE BEEMRANNMEREEREF @R MG
RAFEHRAEEERE

We obtained the valuation reports in relation to the
purchase price allocation for the acquisitions, and
engaged our in-house valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
adopted by management, the reasonableness of
discount rates and expected useful lives of customer
relationships used by management;

ERMABEEZRNZET  RAERL A EEE B
B P B RS E T AR € R = TR A AT ER B 9 BE 42
BREAEE - RFERAEREREBITDATIER - FHME
BERBATEZEMRRXEZECWER T8 HE A E £ 2
B R TISEIRIELE -

We challenged and assessed the reasonableness of the
key assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts for
the valuation of the identified customer relationships
with the involvement of our in-house valuation experts.
For annual revenue growth rate, EBITDA margins,
we compared these assumptions with the relevant
historical data of these acquired companies and market
data, where applicable.
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BEEREE(E)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

BN EZOMEERRERSE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. HMTHERERTHRERXNGEECHEHNESH
REEEENTEMAARBRAETHNRRESINTED
a1 e

o We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of reasonable
changes in assumptions on the identified customer
relationships and goodwill.

° BMZEEBRNEPHARRAEN AR BEFENHE
i -

o We checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the fair value of the identified customer
relationships and goodwill.

ERAHTOEF  BRAEHREBNEFAERNARBER A
N ZETS & OF AT E A 1 P B ) RERR P 5 R B0 BE K B e ik SH 9
SHRABBZAXS -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
significant judgements and estimates involved in the fair value
assessment of customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from the business combinations were properly
supported by available evidence.
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BEEREE(E) EMNBELNAEEBREERSE(B)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)
EER AR (E

Goodwill impairment assessment

F2RSRE M BMEAMT4(ERG A R AE) KKt o
17 (BEEE) °

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and Note 17 (intangible assets) to the
consolidated financial statements.

A E IR [ A A ED A I N R R (A B AT R AR P 1T
TREE - W EBAETE NREE I K H B R ke B & (404
RN XM BERERREESREFA A A E) AKX
o RRHEERERRANESRR - HME B5HE
EER B RT (5 B0 R SR G 1T TR

We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud. We tested the key controls
over the Group's assessment of goodwill impairment;

HABE SEENSABREREME SSEEEBHHY
TR FHE BERBMERINIRSESEMKA{ELR
HEDREBEE °

We assessed the appropriateness of the Group's
identification of the CGU and allocation of goodwill
based on the Group’s accounting policy and our
understanding of the Group’s business.
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BEEREE(E)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

R2021512831H - EXENEEEHA/ARK3STH
Bt - MEKXE ERENERSMHED - iEERER
mmE  BEREEASEREBEERS—EBVYNRSES
Bu([ReE4Eu])  VEHABEESEZZEKES
- BEEEHBRBEAEBETERARBEMLEKA
(AREERE) EFEESERENRSEE B
Bl FERTEEERE - ETRREETER - S5EA
BECHERBHRENNBEE  FARBEERSES
BEUEARNRKRESRE - £THERENGFAELE
RN R (5T - B BB R e B RAEE H A S E
TRBERERN G URECHAEESEPRABRERERR
MEBBRRXEZBEFRALBRE  EMXRBEHARE
As at 31 December 2021, balance of goodwill of the
Group amounted to RMB351 million. Goodwill arose
from the Group’s business combination activities. For
the purposes of goodwill impairment assessment,
management considered each of the acquired group a
separate group of cash-generated-units ("CGU") and
goodwill has been allocated to each of the acquired
group. Management assessed the impairment of goodwill
by determining the recoverable amounts of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated based on the higher
of value-in-use calculation and fair value less cost of
disposals. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group
to forecast the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU based on the financial budgets approved by
management. Significant judgements and estimates were
involved in the goodwill impairment assessment. These
significant judgements and estimates include the adoption
of appropriate method to perform goodwill impairment
assessment and the use of key assumptions in the value-
in-use calculation, which primarily include annual revenue
growth rate, gross profit margin and pre-tax discount
rate.

BN EZOMEERRERSE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

HAERGER BB EN L - LR A S
BEERTHEEERHERETEATRAEN A RE R
BFFIERANMIRERREE °

We obtained management’s assessment on goodwill
impairment and engaged our in-house valuation
experts to assess the appropriateness of the method
adopted by management to perform goodwill
impairment assessment and the discount rate used by
management.

ERMAEEERAD2ET - HAE W T EEE A
BEFAETHRANERBRESEE - RFRABRX
REME - HMEBEAIBER T 18725 RFEAERE L2
15N S ERE LR -

We challenged and assessed the reasonableness of the
key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation
with the involvement of our in-house valuation experts.
For the annual revenue growth rate and gross profit
margin, we compared them with the relevant historical
data and market data, where applicable.

BHMAEERERTRERNSEZCHTKE N
T EMEERRRIETHHREINTEESRE -

We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of reasonable
changes in assumptions on the recoverable amount.

HMZEHERET B ENBERE -
We checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the goodwill impairment assessment.
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BEEREE(E)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

ERHEBERDBEABETHBRENARAEHEX
HEr R fbEt - RAIBRLREA —(EEGRERER -

We consider this area a key audit matter due to the
significance of the goodwill balance and the significant
judgements and estimates involved in the goodwill
impairment assessment.

BN EZOMEERRERSE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

ERPAAITEIE R - HAPIE IR BRI E R 4 PSR e E R F
RIGFHHEEREZBEZRIE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
significant judgements and estimates involved in the goodwill
impairment assessment were properly supported by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

B2ZE2021%F

12A31HLLFE

For the year

HZE20204

12 A31BIEFE

For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
B aE ARBT T AR®ET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 6 4,350,735 2,866,447
8H & S BRFS AK AR Cost of sales and services 6,7 (3,009,188) (1,985,682)
EF Gross profit 1,341,547 880,765
HERZHER Selling and marketing expenses 7 (34,035) (23,197)
1TELE A Administrative expenses 7 (424,035) (258,238)
SRR AHEERRERIEFEE  Net impairment losses on financial and
contract assets 3.1.2 (111,232) (20,581)
HAb YA Other income 9 80,606 62,699
HthER Other expenses 10 (4,377) (4,255)
H {th B985 58 Other losses — net 11 (135,763) (23,035)
KR Operating profit 712,711 614,158
U N Finance income 29,302 22,556
B RS AR Finance costs (337) (325)
B g AR Finance income — net 12 28,965 22,231
BR P85 B0 7 H Profit before income tax 741,676 636,389
FriS#i & B Income tax expense 14 (182,947) (147,303)
FRFE Profit for the year 558,729 489,086
Em%ﬁl&)\ Other comprehensive income
AlBE BT D E B m I H Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
?E”&ﬁﬁ@aﬂ‘)\ﬁﬁﬁi@%)\ Changes in the fair value of debt instruments
WEBTAAABEZY at fair value through other comprehensive
income 19 (75,444) -
RAnBEFAHEMEEEA Credit loss of debt instruments at fair value
WEB T EEREE through other comprehensive income 3.1.2 71,949 =
FREMEEBA Other comprehensive income for the year (3,495) -
#WRERA Total comprehensive income 555,234 489,086
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e EEBAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE20214F
12A31BLLEE
For the year

HZE20204

12A31BIEFE

For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Pt 5 AR¥TRT AEBTTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
AR AT : Profit is attributable to:
e VNEGIEZZ=DN — Owners of the Company 525,455 452,387
— FEPERR MR A — Non-controlling interests 33,274 36,699
558,729 489,086
DT ALEAEZEEA : Total comprehensive income is
attributable to:
R UNEIE 2PN — Owners of the Company 521,960 452,387
— FEPERR MR A — Non-controlling interests 33,274 36,699
555,234 489,086
BREBFN (UARETRT) Earnings per share (expressed in RMB)
— GRERZR — Basic earnings per share 15 0.62 0.55
— BREE AR — Diluted earnings per share 15 0.62 0.55
LilERE 2 EUA TR E ERRERT HY EE—OF B FE - The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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RE AR R
2021412 A318 As at 31 December 2021
R20214F R20204F
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bt e AR®T T ARBTIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
Y EN Y Property, plant and equipment 16(a) 58,890 14,209
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 16(b) 19,722 10,043
| EE Intangible assets 17 728,325 197,419
R —EEE R RRRE Investments in an associate 28 4,000 =
RIEFMEHEE Deferred income tax assets 30 54,509 57,967
& Deposits 23 1,944 7,893
BEAnBEFAEMEEKA Financial assets at fair value through other
HEREE comprehensive income 19 - 1,000
BARBEFAEBZNESMEE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 20 205,873 40,145
FREEELE Total non-current assets 1,073,263 328,676
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 28,301 17,535
BREE Contract assets 6 289,495 247,329
AR BEFAEMBEZEWAK Financial assets at fair value through other
SMEE comprehensive income 19 52,390 =
AR EEF AER Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 20 245,032 245,296
B 5 WA Trade receivables 22 622,758 356,568
BN FRIE ~ 2E REAEIGK Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 23 594,304 236,512
ReRIBEEE Cash and cash equivalents 24 2,504,102 1,882,136
mEEEARE Total current assets 4,336,382 2,985,376
EEAH Total assets 5,409,645 3,314,052
s Equity
AABHEE ABGER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
B Share capital 25 59,900 56,641
] Reserves 26 2,224,020 1,225,167
2,283,920 1,281,808
FEFE R MR Non-controlling interests 240,712 127,781
B Total equity 2,524,632 1,409,589
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e BB R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72021412 831 H As at 31 December 2021

R2021F 20204
12831H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
B sE AR¥T AREETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
=L Liabilities
FkRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16(b) 11,310 3,420
Bl Provisions 2,064 1,806
B 5 & HAth fE S 51H Trade and other payables 29 92,857 -
FEEFETBEE Deferred tax liabilities 30 97,375 42,751
FREBEBEHATE Total non-current liabilities 203,606 47,977
REBAE Current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 16(b) 3,129 1,157
EHEE Contract liabilities 6 776,038 628,073
FERTAR B Dividend payable 25,293 =
B 5 I E A FET IR Trade and other payables 29 1,729,360 1,134,655
BNEAFT S BB E Current income tax liabilities 147,587 92,601
FEBEEAE Total current liabilities 2,681,407 1,856,486
EEHE Total liabilities 2,885,013 1,904,463
EERkEEHERE Total equity and liabilities 5,409,645 3,314,052
REEE TR Net current assets 1,654,975 1,128,890
AR S B RS AR5 3R i ERBE PR B 5 — OF B - The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

FF-1092F-252 AW A

=]

FER/J> B
Qi Xiaoming
EBF

Director

B 5 RER N 20224F 3
A2sHEEEeHETHINTESRARE -

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

R F
Gao Xinli
EE

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages F-109 to F-252 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and were signed
on its behalf.
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REEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
YNGIE 2N
Attributable to owners of the Company
A [ @ FERiER EREE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests Equity
i ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1820205151 B fieR Balance at 1 January 2020 56,508 867,564 924,072 42,798 966,870
2EKA Comprehensive income
ERHE Profit for the year - 452,387 452,387 36,699 489,086
EERERRANARESEAETHRS Transactions with owners recognised
directly in equity
BOLER Issuance of ordinary shares 133 10,421 10,554 - 10,554
ARAERERE Dividend declared by the Company 31 - (147,258) (147,258) - (147,258)
KRB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 48,271 48,271
PARR D RETE R Share-based payment 27 - 41,866 41,866 - 41,866
HERAAEEFALMEERA  Gain on disposal of financial assets at
NepEElm fair value through other comprehensive
income - 187 187 13 200
12020612 A31 AH&ER Balance at 31 December 2020 56,641 1,225,167 1,281,808 127,781 1,409,589
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GAERRBRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

KARHE NER
Attributable to owners of the Company
B 1 @it FERUER EniE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests Equity
i ARBTT ARETR ARETR AR¥TRT AR%TR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021E1 B 1B KIS Balance at 1 January 2021 56,641 1,225,167 1,281,808 127,781 1,409,589
2EKA Comprehensive income
ERHE Profit for the year - 525,455 525,455 33,274 558,729
Hip2ERA Other comprehensive income - (3,495) (3,495) - (3.495)
ERB2AUA Total comprehensive income for
the year - 521,960 521,960 33,274 555,234
EERNESRANERE AET Transactions with owners recognised
WR% directly in equity
A Share Placing 25 3,252 861,149 864,401 - 864,401
AR R—EREARR Dividend declared by the Company and by
FERERSRARE a subsidiary to non-controlling interests 31 - (239,819) (239,819) (3.103) (242,922)
RIE2019F B EITERRE  Exercise of share option under
2019 share option scheme 25 244 19,183 19,427 - 19,427
BB Rt R R Buy-back and cancellation of shares 25 (237) (48,362) (48,599) - (48,599)
REERNREE2IERD Acquisition of shares for
Employee Share Award Scheme 26 - (138,836) (138,836) - (138,836)
TEEFROPHAZB RN Exercise of unrestricted shares from
stock shares 26 - 14,372 14,372 - 14,372
KERBAE Acquisition of subsidiaries 32 - - - 76,292 76,292
LR BN A Addition of subsidiaries - - - 1,845 1,845
R Injection of capital from
non-controlling interests 36 - - - 5,957 5,957
BGERRUERNR S Transaction with non-controlling interest - 464 464 (1,334) (870)
IAR{A BERAE Share-based payment 27 - 8,742 8,742 - 8,742
R20215E12 31 B &L Balance at 31 December 2021 59,900 2,224,020 2,283,920 240,712 2,524,632

bR & W o B BY 3R FE SELRE MY P AT — FBOAE o

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read
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Bz201% BZE2020%F
12A3BLEE 128318 1LERE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
B gk ARETR AREFT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
ReTHHERERE Cash flows from operating activities
LemERe Cash generated from operations 33(a) 913,443 877,075
BRFTEE Income tax paid (158,109) (90,047)
RETHEENRLRE Net cash generated from operating activities 755,334 787,028
RETHHERERE Cash flows from investing activities
XNEERAABESAER Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair value
MemEE through profit or loss (1,206,579) (676,896)
HERARBEFAEE Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through
MERBEMSHE profit or loss 922,616 663,546
BARBEGABRNEREER Interest received on financial assets at fair value through
BUFERRDAEBEA profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through
HZERANEREE other comprehensive income 9 49,150 38,487
WEHBARMNRERLFE Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries 32 (164,830) (111,131)
KRER—HEE AR Investment in an associate 28 (4,000) =
SHEENE  BERZEAR Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
FERBEN KA and non-current prepayment 16 (43,759) (5,470)
TREEEVEE Payments for acquisition of intangible assets 17 (7,740) (4,773)
YHBERDABEFALMLZAMKA  Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair value
MemEE through other comprehensive income 19 (122,854) -
HENE  BERZEMEHE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,701 53
HERA A EBEFALM2EWRAL  Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at
SRMEEMZHE fair value through other comprehensive income - 860
SHBEFEERERBARN Payment for unsettled consideration of acquisition of
AERE subsidiaries from previous years 22 (15,799) -
REEBEANRSTFE Net cash used in investing activities (591,094) (95,324)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ22021% BZE20205F
12A318LFE 12A31REFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bt sk ARETR AREFT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
METHHERERE Cash flows from financing activities
FTEER Issuance of ordinary share - 10,554
RER2019F BRI B 17 (R R AR Exercise of share option under 2019 share option scheme 25 19,427 =
fie ik Share placing 25 864,401 -
HENFNAL TS REFS Principal elements of lease payments and its interests 16(b) (6,558) (6,542)
ARAR—FHRBARR Dividend paid by the Company and by a subsidiary to
ERESRTARE non-controlling interests 31 (242,922) (147,258)
AR ERH RE T EMEER R Acquisition of shares for Employee Share Award Scheme 26 (138,836) =
TEEFERRFA R R HIRRD Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock shares 26 14,372 =
FERERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 36 5,957 -
¥ ik BRI Payment for share buy-back 25 (48,599) =
BRI B A REE Capital injection to new subsidiaries from
non-controlling interests 1,845 -
BB R RFEEREREERN Share purchase of non-controlling interests of a subsidiary (870) =
RETBEL /(A RETE Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 468,217 (143,246)
BER RS SEYEMEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 632,457 548,458
RENNBRERBEEEEN Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,882,136 1,339,092
EXSHUBENBELEEMNTE  Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (10,491) (5,414)
RERNBEERASZEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,504,102 1,882,136

A A 3R 2 8 5K e B BE P Y S — GBI o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.1
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BHEBRARF - WK20185F11 A6 H
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GENERAL INFORMATION
General information

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited, hereinafter referred to
as the “Company” was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 January 2018 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap.22, law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “stock exchange”) on 6 November 2018. The address of
the Company's registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The ultimate controlling
company is Infinity Fortune Development Limited. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group is Mr. Wang Zhenhua (“Mr.
Wang"” or the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.
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e IR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.1

EXEHEGE

AU REIR R K B 45 2 B T TR S B
RO EBHBHEE - B BHRN

FON RERRIRME2FE—ER
A o
R

ARANEAMBHRREBREFT LS
AR BBV REER ([FE
MBREER ) RE - ZEPBEHRRTY
RIBELRAEZRE  URE[BRAA
BEFAEBEERANDSBEEMZ
ARBEFABRNESREEELERT -

N ey £ EE TN T
BRBBERETHREHEH - BB
TR EE B AR BN S SR B
R AR HH BT o 4 R A T o,
BRI  RABERR R
S B R B A B3 I
4B -

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.1
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 January 2021:

3 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 — amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

o Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments

early:

o Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020
Cycle,

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction — amendments to HKAS 12

The adoption of the above new standard, amendments and
interpretation starting from 1 January 2021 did not give rise to
any significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position for the twelve months ended 31 December
2021.

Certain new accounting standard amendments and
interpretations have been published that are not mandatory
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards and interpretations
are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EAXSHHBEHRE®)

21 HmEEE(E)
2.1.1 S BRREEZENES

BRAEE2021%F12A31B1t+=f@A
BXEARANEBOIFEBRER - BT
L2 BEMMSSIERE20204F
IS RER TR E — 5 °

22 AOFRAIRERESTERE
2.2.1 &6
(i) K18 2 &)

MBAREASELSERERE
HENMEER (REABEER
B) - WMAKERE2EERM
15 7 & o] 3R A E [\ fa X 7 A 7
VrEBAENARERESNE
BRYEZFOR E'J$‘il¥ﬁ
ERERERZESE -NEA
Bz %|J$E$§$§§$%IZEE/\
PEARR - BIEHIER LT Bl
LERBEARR

REEZEF T HIEHEEGF

e TR B AR A K REH
%éﬁﬁ’]?&f—f‘i%ﬂ‘“%ﬁﬁ%i&%
BHE  BOREEZFEES

R E R BRIy 2 B EE

4 o
4

feEFTMAE  AHEREE
BEEFENREGREEES -
WER K RAEGES AR
BB NEKET AR E
E BERIARBBEFAAEE
B s R A AR RO BB 0 (A2
TSR AR) BRI SRR -

2.1
2.1.1

2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Except for the newly effective standards, amendments and
interpretations that became applicable to the Group first time
in the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, the accounting
policies adopted are consistent with those of the 2020 Financial
Statements as described therein.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
Consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
consolidated financial statement items of the entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been consolidated from the date
when the entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of acquirer’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the
time of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)

()

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Business combinations under common control
(Cont'd)

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income
include the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated.

Business combinations not under common control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations not under common control.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EBEXEHEEBME® 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
22 EHRAIRERSTEE(E) 2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)
2.2.1 &6t (@) 2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(i) HE2A (E) (i)  Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
FER S T HIFF S OF (58) Business combinations not under common control
(Cont'd)
AN 5 B AR 1R A 1E I B R R R The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
B 15 4 Uk B 5 B9 {a] JE 5 AR 14 acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
WEZE o MUNEE 5 RO IEIE IR I RE S controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
TR A RS - A A A ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
2T D4 B B 5 AR B 1Y B R T proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
B DA (B IR B R of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
5 PE (G U S 5 T S8 RIS B R present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
DL A S o JERR recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
VERE 25 ) B 2L b 48 B 2845 132 M assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
WAMHNALBELE RIS are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
/f Hﬁ/ﬁ&ﬁ SRR TR DB another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
AEHI 223K A
g/ﬁ%ﬁ
i B R 2 A B 3 o Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
PR A B B R ST - UGB T If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
R 2 B 5 G S A A U acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously

held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair

BROREEZEEARNAA

EBEEFHE  REFHBES value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
U N 3B I B RS R from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

A5 2 5] 858 238 1 4 o SR XM K Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
AN AAL BERZ - BIEA Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
?Fﬁ%ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁkﬁﬁfg@ﬁﬁ@ Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
HEREHNBRER - A consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
BROR AR ERTESE is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
1 G B PR A BE o that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
2 EXREFHBHREEW 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
22 EHRAIRERSTEE (E) 2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)
2.2.1 &6t (@) 2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(i) KB A (&) (i)  Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
FER S T HIFF S OF (58) Business combinations not under common control
(Cont'd)
FressE (8 - UREE 5 FEIE R 1 The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
T 2 2 B8 K JR 5 P4 4 W i 7 R of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
RNz B BIR A 7 EEE acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
AT A R EEFEN AR in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
BENEZRFEIRREE - BHRE net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
BEMS @ WAAEENRE B of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
RIFER TR RE T EREFR recognised and previously held interest measured is less
Pt A FE R PTUCEE M B A 7 than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
BEFENAREE  ZHEE acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
RIEZ ARER o is recognised directly in profit or loss.
SERNARIERS - B REE Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
RNAIFER ZRAREBIRIA T gains on transactions between group companies are
H- RIRGEHBEEEEE eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
BIRERE - BAIKREREBRIT the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
TEIE - WBARZHRESER Y the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
ERHAE  UAFEAEE ST by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to the
Ko Group’s accounting policies.
/22 bl ) N = Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
B P E without change of control
NG G BUR AT IR Y B IR R Transaction with non-controlling interests that do not
MERNRH AR ABEZRR result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
2 BIAEB A FHEHE AR transaction — that is, as transactions with the owner of
HBEANRS - XN EAKE the subsidiary in their capacity as owners, the difference
B A 7 (B B AR B P A U B B /8 between fair value of any consideration paid and the
AEFEENRABEZHNERE relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
RN ERT o TR RS of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
HERBER LN RS disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.
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e IR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EBEXEHEEBME® 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
22 EHRAIRERSTEE(E) 2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)
2.2.1 &6t (@) 2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(i) HE2A (E) (i)  Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
HEME 2 A Disposal of subsidiaries
EARCETNHHAEGE  E8 When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
BHERREERSREEZES interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
BEENARBEENTE K the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
HELSHEBEETER - AAE amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
BEANRREERNEEARMNS initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
MYREREE  (EREEEAR accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
BECENEREE o It 2 joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
A EL A 2 [ A AR RE SR Y (1A previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
HHEBINAEEEEENEHA respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
BESAE EEREZALHE had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
o2 EB AP ERNEEEND This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
HEEE o other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
(i) HENF (ii)  Associates
BE AR RAEENEREANY Associates or associated companies are all entities
22 (B M7 ) e ol [R5 il e O BT over which the Group has significant influence but not
B AEE-RIFE20%E control or joint control. This is generally the case where
50% Z 1 ZHE o RYIF IR AT the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
Rz REE R FIRIRE Ty AR rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
AN (R T3(iv)) ° the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below), after

initially being recognised at cost.

(iii) BEZH (iii)  Joint arrangements

RIFEBM R ELEDNE 1157 5L Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
EZHE - R %TFTE’JTQET arrangements are classified as either joint operations
DERHRKLEREERE - or joint ventures. The classification depends on the
iﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂ&éﬁ%ﬁ’\]é\%@%ﬂﬁﬂ contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather
=15 (MIELRLHRERERE) than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
MmE - AEED T HEEG S 28 Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
HMETEEREGERE - and determined them to be joint ventures.

RUIF KA EEHEERER Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
HR%  SECERSERER equity method (see (iv) below), after initially being

EANER (RT3 (iv)) ° recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EBEXESHEEBME® 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
22 EHRAIRERSTEE (E) 2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)
2.2.1 &6t (@) 2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(iv) BmEitt (iv)  Equity accounting
RIEERGHE  REVFEK Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
iR - BB ETHENURER are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
RS EEOFIRE T WER to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
I Sk 5 18 0 P H At 2 T Ui 2 e profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
RAEEEGEERE R M 2H Group's share of movements in other comprehensive
Wesry B o income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Bk EREEE AR R G E R Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint
HIAR EFER AR A REETR ° ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

REEEGERARKRENER When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
EREBEBENRNZEENES investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
(B %T?cﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ?fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂf% including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
HIE) B ARET2ER Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
FEE - RIFERERS —EEBE incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
EEAESIELTR - other entity.
REBEABENAI NG E B Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
2R GHARER W R AL E its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
RZEEENER T AHE - extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised
REMEEIT G T AL - BRI losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
ZRGBETNEEREERENF evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
B o #Em ABRWRE TSR Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
RERPVERELFAE - UBER been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
BARER B FTER AN & ST R — 3 - with the policies adopted by the Group.
E )\ﬂﬁ?xﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁffﬁ}fﬁﬁ& The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
2.7 Tl BRI TR E R o is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy

described in note 2.7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.2

2.2.2

2.3

2.4

BEASHTHEME @)
ERAIRERESTEE (8)

B MBEHR

RETE AR ERETRKANGRRET
B KABRKREEREBERAE - M8
REREHARFTRE B R REBREA
AE o

0P B 1 Bl RO IR B B A Y AR B R A Y
B A mRNE KSR Y 2 AU AL
MR ER EBP B RE AR REER
REHSEBEEFE(BRERHE) RERE
BHERA E‘Jﬁéﬁfﬁ AR W2 5% F e B
RS EREETRERH -

2 EB IR &

REDHNERTAERAEBRERK
EABBENTA B - TERERR
E(EB2RERRE ) BELEIRR

BT RIFRITES - REDEERR
SHEEE 5 BER -

H]mE

(a) MEERZIEH

AEESBERBNMBRERMIIA
BERERESMETELER
BEHEE (RSB EE - &
BUBHRAARRREERAE
B2 EBEAREZT) -

X5 RAEE

SNER DI 5 B KR TIE K5k
EFFTEEENGERE R

B o ZERGIEEEERNINE

W A TN E548 K2 LA B SR FE R & S
BITEEBEERBEBEELENI
[EWRAME R RERE ZERA
KNTERE [ EfEIEFEE]

(b)

2.2

2.2.2

2.3

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive
and non-executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

(b)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised within “Other losses — net” in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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2.5
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Estimated Estimated net

useful lives residual value

Buildings 30 years 4%
Transportation equipment 10 years 4%
Electronic equipment 5 years 4%
Furniture and Machinery 4-5 years 4%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
losses — net’ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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2

2.6

BEREBERBE @)

(a) B

(b)

(c)

Y B 20 7 A0 P R A S A
E-BETTRY  REFR]T
WA - 8 A BRI
BRTAES TR ER FHE
R RERR, - 3R AR
EHR BB - & E Al
ASBREERLE RN
B2 EmME -

EEDAREZRECELESBNL -
WETRERR - ReEEEEN
gH e EABMARNERBRE
ERENEBaHTER T e
ESOEAE - REREHENUE
M EPE MM RERR (A&
B E) BAIE B AR o

HEER

18 L ER A5 B [ BR PAJEE 52 X AR B
R o REBE GHEUS AR R FE X
BSRBAAABEERR - HAA
REFERFR (+F) RERIZK
AR R EHEE S FORE R RDIAR

AT ERH I

SR R IR O B AN IR U B A
ERURAEAREERARE
BARR © ZERARBEE A
ERFEH (EE+F) #iH -

2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

Licences

Separately acquired licences are shown at historical
cost. Licenses acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have
a finite useful life (10 years) and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Computer Software

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives (5 to 10 years).
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2.6

2.7
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(d) ZHEFEF
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EFHBEREARRENEAES
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Intangible assets (Cont'd)
(d)  Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in business combinations
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The customer relationships have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the expected useful lives respectively (7 to 10 years).

(e) Trademarks

Trademarks acquired in business combinations are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
trademarks have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful
lives respectively (15 years).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

F-129



F-130

AR BEREERD R 2021 FFH

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

e IR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.8
2.8.1

BEREBERBE @)

TREE

28

AEERESREED BATER

EFITA

i) HEBRAEEFAEMEZER
AFTE

i) HERAARBEF ABGEE
P54

i)y IREEHETE -

DEEARERBERES ﬁ?é’]ﬁ%ﬁ
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R EBEARMCEEK

AR AR -

ARARBEFENEEMS -
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AEEZRAEEERASEEZEBE
XEPHEMHBEBHRE -

2.8
2.8.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

Debt instruments

i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income;

ii) to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit
or loss; and
iii) to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

Equity instruments

i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income; and

i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit
or loss.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income

from these financial assets is included in finance income

using the effective interest rate method.
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2 EXREHBHREE®W 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

28 ZREEE) 2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.8.3 & (&) 2.8.3 Measurement (Cont'd)

BEFITA (%) Debt instruments (Cont'd)

. BRAnBEFAEMEEKA : . Fair value through OCI: Assets that are held for collection
BIEREIEAREREREES of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
MEENEE  MZEEERS assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
MEEEINAEEFE - iz payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
A EBEFGAEMEEKAG value through OCI. Movements in the carrying amount
2 - REABEMNEE et AHME are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
EBA - ERERERZ I ER impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
AR EE 2 R M EBWA KN exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
AR EERIN - SRIEER loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
IEFEREF - ERTR Efth 2 EBA gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
RN AT WANEEHERSE equity to the consolidated statements of comprehensive
Mo BEGEE2ARARILER income and recognised in ‘other gains — net’. Interest income
RIEMEERFE] - ZFE/E from these financial assets is included in finance income
EE R FI B U A T % B B K AT using the effective interest rate method.

AR FSUA o

. BARBEGTAERE : REHH . Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
RARERNEESKREZAREE the criteria for amortised cost or financial assets at fair
AAHMEERANCREET) value through other comprehensive income are measured
EARBEFABRE - & at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
BRARBEFABRTEAWIHE debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
HHRBRZ — SO EFRE S value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
WA EERERER @ WHRE relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
A AR [ Bt iz 588 | 230F net in ‘other gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Measurement (Cont'd)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in ‘other income’ when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in ‘other gains — net’ as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the expected credit losses on a forward-
looking basis associated with its debt instrument carried at
amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through OCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.2 details
how the Group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

F-133



F-134

AR BEREERD R 2021 FFH

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

e IR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.10

BEREBERBE @)

TREERME(E)
IEPRUIHERANEEMS + A%
BB ERMERELERFEIRAAF
TR RO ERERBTEBRE
KA FEWRIB VIR TE RIS T ARERR o

PR UK BA B 75 B 1R & K L i FE MR IE i
= ARARH D RE T4 R BUTHEEE
AEEEBRIKTE - BB AN EEA
BEBEEENMREAGANRERERF -
Eit - BN ER 2R EREEER 12 1(E
R HAEE -

WEBTARAABEFAEMEZEK
ARMEREEMS » REB T AIIOE
YIRS - AR F B YR HERE

HREREEERERERA =&
BEL - R T

. Iﬂﬂﬁf\%ﬂ%ﬁ@ulb\i‘ﬁ‘J1§f)?°WTEE’U
& 4k %E%f%ﬂﬁj ﬂﬁ$

%l%%%ﬁ%—%ﬁﬁ%

. IR IIR ER IR B REERR A

fEIE N AlZFEREGRIA S HE
R E 28/ MBI KRR BEER

B

o HEKFKBELREERE  %®
BMTEERIFEIR] -

1A R RIEN TR (E A EE
E - BEERERRI2EAANTEELERN
EHNEHELNEEEXARNERER
IR Z BN TR - RNE 2R B3R
TEMNEMEREBIRE - DRIEEME
EREREENTHRRERAEIECHE

B ERBAEREER  AEEEER
RIFEIEEHL -

2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

For deposits and other receivables due from related parties, since
the majority of the deposits is due from government authorities
as pledge for the ordinary business and related parties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term, thus the impairment provision recognised during
the period was limited to 12 months expected losses.

For financial assets at fair value through OCI debt instruments,
other receivables other than those from related parties, the
Group adopted a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised
below:

J The receivables, which are not credit-impaired on initial
“Stage 1"
credit risk continuously monitored by the Group.

recognition, are classified in and have their

o If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified, the receivables are moved to
“Stage 2" but are not yet deemed to be credit impaired.

o If the receivables are credit-impaired, the financial

instrument is then moved to “Stage 3"”.

Receivables in Stage 1 have their expected credit loss measured
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their expected credit
loss measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
basis.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group considers
forward-looking information.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and banks,
deposits held at call with financial institutions and other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares

or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company's
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
Current income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

2.17 Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group only operates defined contribution pension
plans. In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group participate
in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administrated funds managed
by the governments.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

2.17 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurance
plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group's liability
in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each year. Contributions to the housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to present
value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefit is provided to employees
via the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme.
Information relating to the scheme is set out in Note 27.

The fair value of options and restricted shares granted under
the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme
are recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options and restricted shares granted:

- including any market performance conditions (e.g. the
entity’s share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period), and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g.
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for
a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

The Group provides property management services, developer-
related value-added services, community-related value-added
services and smart community services. Revenue from providing
services is recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered. The following is a description of the
accounting policy for the principal revenue streams of the
Group:

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group acts as
principal and is primarily responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners, the Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from property owners
as its revenue and all related property management costs as
its cost of service. For property management services income
from properties managed under commission basis, the Group
recognises the commission, which is calculated by certain
percentage of the total property management fee received or
receivable from the property units, as its revenue for arranging
and monitoring the services as provided by other suppliers to the
property owners.

Developer-related value-added services include mainly i) on-
site sales assistance services, which includes cleaning and
maintenance services to property developers, which are billed
and settled monthly based on actual level of services provided
at pre-determined price and revenue is recognised when such
services are provided;
consulting services, which are fixed amount contract with
property developers and are billed and settled on a monthly basis
and revenue is recognised when the services are provided; and
iii) commission income for sale of car parks, which are billed to
property developers on a monthly basis and were recognised on

ii) property delivery related and other

a net basis when the car parks were delivered to the customers.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Community-related value-added services include mainly i)
Commission income from information services is recognised
ii) Revenue from
merchandise sales from the online platform is recognised when
iii) Revenue from
public resources management services, which is recognised on a

on a net basis when the service provided,
the Group sells products to the customers;

net basis over the time when such services are rendered; and iv)
Revenue from other community convenience services are charged
for each services provided and recognised when the relevant
services are rendered. Community related services are normally
billable immediately upon the services are provided.

Smart community services mainly include engineering and
maintenance services of elevator and intelligent security
equipment.
recognised when the contracts have been approved and the

Revenue from smart community services are

services are rendered. Revenue from smart community services
recognised over a period of time are based on the stage
of completion of such service, which is determined by the
proportion of costs incurred to the estimated total costs. As
at the balance sheet date, the Group reassesses the stage of
completion so as to better reflect the changes in obligation
performance. Revenue is recognised by the stage of completion
of the construction services. Trade receivables are recognised
when the Group has an unconditional right to payment. For the
remaining part of the services, a contract asset is recognised. The
Group recognises the loss provision using the expected credit
loss model for its trade receivables and contract assets. If the
payments received or receivable exceed the services rendered,
a contract liability is recognised for the excess. Contract assets
and contract liabilities under the same contract are presented
on a net basis. Smart community services are normally billable
immediate upon the delivery of the services.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the standard-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated
based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market
assessment approach, depending on the availability of observable
information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the statements of financial position
as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group's performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact,
if recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets and
subsequently amortised when the related revenue is recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers services to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment is received, or
a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability
is the Group's obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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2.22

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the
profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
(ii)  Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account: the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares, and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the

lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing,
and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, the Group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received

. any initial direct costs, and

© restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the
Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of
the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants related to assets refer to government grants
which are obtained by the Group for the purposes of purchase,
construction or acquisition of the long-term assets. Government
grants related to income refer to the government grants other
than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are either deducted against
the carrying amount of the assets, or recorded as deferred
income and recognised in profit or loss on a systemic basis over
the useful lives of the assets. Government grants related to
income that compensate the future costs, expenses or losses are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss, or
deducted against related costs, expenses or losses in reporting
the related expenses; government grants related to income
that compensate the incurred costs, expenses or losses are
recognised in profit or loss, or deducted against related costs,
expenses or losses directly in current period. The Group applies
the presentation method consistently to the similar government
grants in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.1 Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services
in the PRC with almost all the transactions denominated
in RMB, except for proceeds from certain financing
activities, which are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar
("HKD") or United States Dollar (“USD"). As of 31
December 2021, majority of the Group's assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB except that certain
cash and investment debt are denominated in HKD or
USD.

The Company and all of its subsidiaries’ functional
currency is RMB. Accordingly, financial assets
denominated in HKD or USD are subject to foreign
exchange risk. Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
and USD against RMB will affect the Group’s result of
operations. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will take
actions when necessary.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10%, against HKD with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB5,985,000 (2020: RMB31,136,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of HKD denominated bank deposits.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10%, against USD with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB46,394,000 (2020: RMB2,864,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of USD denominated bank deposits
and investment debt which are measured at FVPL and
FVOCI.
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3.1.1

MBREBRERE @) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
B 7% LB B 3 (48) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
iR (%) 3.1.1 Market risk (Cont'd)
(i) EERE (i) Price risk
AR A EEAFREEGE M The Group is exposed to price risk arising from
AR AN D AR AR BEE investments held by the Group and classified on the
AHM2EIA (F7E19) kiR consolidated statements of financial position as FVOCI
AR EER AR (MFF20) (K (Note 19) and FVPL (Note 20), excluded listed bonds
BRENAETFEN LETES) denominated in US Dollars.
MRS B AR B R o
REBASEMBREEENE To manage its price risk arising from investments
BER  SEZT(EHEMER held by the Group, the group diversifies its portfolio.
& o BRI E G E #9PR 6l 5Tk Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
MBS ZTlk - TAEREAK with the limits set by the group. All investments must be
BRI AR AIEST - approved by the Chairman of the Board before they may
be entered into.
TR EREEN AR EBELG The following table summarises the impact of increase/
m/ R EAR R E M EERA decrease of fair value of the financial assets with all
W E - BRRHEME Et & other variable held constant on net profit and other
HERETE - comprehensive income.
#F HtZ2mEKA
Net profit odl
BE12831HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2021F 20204F 20215 20204
2021 2020 2021 2020
ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®Trn ARSTx
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
— E#5% - 5 percent higher 22,545 14,272 2,620 50
— T#5% - 5 percent lower (22,545) (14,272) (2,620) (50)
(i) FIZE R (iii)  Interest rate risk

MR2021F K%2020F12H31H -
BRIBITIHESTERUARE S R HA
W FIE R &5 TEME T &5
Hh - REBEWEEAGEAE
FA T 17 488 T 9 35 K ) R R BR o

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, except for cash
deposit in the bank and certain balances of trade and
other receivables and debt instruments, Group has no
interest-bearing liabilities and hence are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.
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3.1
3.1.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables; cash and cash
equivalents and debt investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables; and cash and cash
equivalents represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.

()

(ii)

Cash in banks and payment platforms

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits in banks and platforms
since they are substantially deposited at state-owned or
reputable financial institutions in mainland China and
reputable international financial institutions outside of
mainland China. For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with a minimum rating of ‘A’
are accepted. Management does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables and contract assets. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected
credit loss also incorporates forward looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the GDP, completed investment in real estate
development and total retail sales of consumer goods to
be the most relevant factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

Deposits and other receivables due from
related parties

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with
deposits and other receivables due from related parties
to be low, since the majority of the deposits is due
from government authorities as pledge for the ordinary
business and related parties have a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term. Thus, the impairment provision recognised during
the period was limited to 12 months expected losses,
which was 1.34% allowance rate for deposits and other
receivables due from related parties as at 31 December
2021.

Other receivables other than those from
related parties

The Group has large number of counter parties for its
other receivables other than those from related parties.
There was no concentration of credit risk. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverability of these receivables at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the expected
credit loss model.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(iv)

Other receivables other than those from
related parties (Cont'd)

The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
J external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes in

business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or
the borrower

o significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual property
owner or the same borrower

o significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
borrower.
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3 HERRERE@ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 HXEREZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 SERRE (&)

(v)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
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B AEEARMEEK (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other

AWEBERE

BARBEF AR 2 AR
BERRERE LEMEBES - &
AR EBEFARZMCEEBANE
BIREBBBRENESER - I
R D EL A EL 2 T U R FE R A
RABERE -

M20214 20204128318 -
FHRERRBETEMT -

comprehensive income

value loss otherwise recognised in OCI.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) include listed debt
securities. The loss allowance for debt investments at
FVOCI is recognised in profit or loss and reduces the fair

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance
provision was determined as follows.

#2021612A318 W2020912 4318
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
ARBT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
o) BE
BEERE RELE EERE BOEREX  BRRLE  RERG
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected  Carrying allowance Expected Carrying  allowance
Loss Rate Amount  provision  Loss Rate Amount provision
EAEWHRE Trade receivables

A Related parties 134% 195,188 2,616 134% 136,070 1,818

BRENBAREEN Receivables carried forward from
el IR acquired subsidiaries* 528% 114,819 6,064 2.60% 57,590 1,500
1ER Within 1 year 6% 281,562 17,567 6% 139,594 8,710
1226 110 2 years 42% 75,782 31,828 40% 40,055 16,054
X3 2 to 3 years 61% 28,900 17,646 60% 24,668 14,815
3E4E 310 4 years 75% 7,924 5,940 75% 5314 3,984
4E5F 405 years 93% 3,364 3,120 93% 2,180 2,022
BB5F Over 5 years 100% 2,899 2,899 100% 3,494 3,494
710,438 87,680 408,965 52,397
4 B W BT R 2 B 45 8 0 B 5 R & The trade receivables carried forward from acquired subsidiaries

EREBEEHNARBENE -
BRE®EAARE114,819,0007T
KB SRR/ AR 156,449,0007T
(20205 : HEWEEH - BRE 4
EAARY57,590,000 TH 2558
BAARMT74,240,0007T) © EXRFT
T TEEEEEERETEKRER
BB E2021F12 A31 BHMAE
H AR o

were measured at fair value at the date of acquisitions. Gross
amount of the gross carrying amount of RMB114,819,000 was
RMB156,449,000 (2020: Gross amount of the gross carrying
amount RMB57,590,000 was RMB74,240,000 at the date of
acquisitions). The expected loss allowance provision indicated

in the above table were those made during the period from the

acquisition date till 31 December 2021.
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3 HERRERE@ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 HXEREZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 SERRE (&)

(v)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

BAABEFARMEENK (v) Debt investments at fair value through other
AWEERE (F) comprehensive income (Cont'd)
#2021512831H 72020F12A31H
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
ARBT N S
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB BR
BEERE RELE EERGE BIERX  BRELE  RERG
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected  Carrying allowance  Expected Carrying  allowance
LossRate  Amount  provision  Loss Rate Amount  provision
ANEE Contract Assets
i) Related parties 134% 267,830 3,579 134% 250,688 3,359
1R Within 1 year 6% 26,924 1,680 - - =
294,754 5.259 250,688 3,359
BATE  RERAMENFE (FERBATERSFIRNEEEESR)

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be deducted)

&e Deposits 1.34% 401,262 5,362 1.34% 140,346 1,881
H R Other receivables
BRENRBAREEN Receivables carried forward from
FEd R acquired subsidiaries* - 9,181 - = - =
1R Within 1 year 6% 75,392 4,704 6% 37,597 2,282
1226 1to 2 years 42% 15,591 6,561 40% 18,933 7,588
1235 210 3 years 61% 3,885 2,372 60% 6,832 4,103
3245 3 to 4 years 75% 1,567 1,175 75% 2,015 1,521
4255 4105 years 93% 1,445 1,340 93% 2,141 1,991
A5 F Over 5 years 100% 179 779 100% 827 827
509,102 22,293 208,691 20,193
* ELGAR NI - SRR B/ I L The Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (excluding

R& RHEMEKRRE (T EEERMNR
18 K 6 F R ) IE I E R ) R
BHENAABENE  REZFR
202112 A3V B EEmS -
IREEAAR9,181,0007T + I
#E— SRR AN TSR -

prepayments and input VAT to be deducted) carried forward from
acquired subsidiaries were measured at fair value at the date
of acquisitions. For those acquired at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount was RMB9,181,000 and no further expected loss
allowance provision to be accounted for.
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3 Bt 75 [ B B B () B FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 BIBEREE (&) 3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 FERR (&) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(v) BLAREBEFAHMGZENK (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other
AWEERE (F) comprehensive income (Cont'd)
B BEFTAEMEEHARY Financial assets at fair value through other
TEHEE comprehensive income
MW12A31H ®12A31H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
202145 2020%
2021 2020
AR¥T R AREBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AAEE BHEAER DAhEE BHEABE
Expected Expected
Fair value credit loss Fair value credit loss

BARBEGAEMEE  Financial assets at fair value
WAREREE — through other comprehensive
BEIE income - debt instruments 52,390 71,949 - -




F-158 IR RBEEBRADE 2021FF
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

e IR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 HMBEREBREE® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 BIBEREE (&) 3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 FERR (&) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(v) BLAREBEFAHMGZENK (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other
AWEERE (F) comprehensive income (Cont'd)
R2021FE K% 20205612 8318 - As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance
EBHEE  B5RHAMERK provision for contract assets, trade and other receivables
B (NBEEBEMAHIE - BRI (excluding prepayments, receivables from payment
& FRIB R & T R A I (E platform and input VAT to be deducted) reconciles to the
) KB R EE R EEE I EE opening loss allowance for that provision as follows:
EEBEOADOT -

ARRE -
ReREM
WA
(T B
ARRER
15 3R Y BAAEE
EaEK &%  EEEEH) SAHE2E
SRR BERME BfE WANLREE @it
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits and
other Financial
receivables assets at
(excluding fair value
prepayments through
Allowance  Allowance and input other
for trade for contract VAT to be comprehensive
receivables assets deducted) income Total
ARBTT ARETR  AR®TR ARBTT AR%TR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
R2021%E181H At 1 January 2021 52,397 3,359 20,193 - 75,949
NEAZERAKERN  Provision for loss allowance
BREEERE recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income 35,283 1,900 2,100 71,949 111,232

R2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 87,680 5259 22,293 71,949 187,181
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HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 HERRERE@ 3
3.1 B¥ERERBEZE (&) 3.1

3.1.2 SERRE (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(v) BLAREBEFAHMGZENK (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other
AWEERE (F) comprehensive income (Cont'd)
BB
e kA
JEYRIE
(TEfE
HUAIE&
1 TR
BHREK akl HEIRRET)
IR BERR B #st
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits and
other receivables
(excluding
Allowance Allowance prepayments
for trade for contract  and input VAT to
receivables assets be deducted) Total
ARBFT ARBTFT ARETTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
202061 81H At 1 January 2020 41,163 1,321 12,884 55,368
REFEEERARK Provision for loss allowance
HBRANBIELEEREE  recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income 11,234 2,038 7,309 20,581
202012 H31H At 31 December 2020 52,397 3,359 20,193 75,949

R2021F12H8318 * B5EIK
HIB - EHNEE - HMERK
TH (N EFENFRIE R TR
E’Us@lﬁi%fﬁ%ﬂ)&&&fﬁ%ﬁﬁ
AEMEEBANEBEENR
m4ESARE1,638,633,000
0 (202012 A31H : AR
868,344,0007T) * AEEENR
= R A AR 1,451,452,000
7L (2020612 A31H : AR
792,395,0007%) °

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount
of trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables
(excluding prepayments and input VAT to be deducted)
and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income was RMB1,638,633,000 (31
December 2020: RMB868,344,000) and the maximum
exposure to loss was RMB1,451,452,000 (31 December
2020: RMB792,395,000).
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3
3.1
3.1.3

EERERE @ 3
R REZE (&) 3.1
REE SRR 3.1.3

EEEBEGERERARNRS IR EE
Y BB ENRERECHERESH
SHRME  SREBTEN  WneH
AREEMNEEESER -

TRFIIAEEREEE B RARDH
AR BENEREE - TRAMKENS
BAANAMBABRTIRE - BRITED
FEIK B EREERE12EAR
MM EHRBERERPBARRRADN
ARME(E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
amount of available financing, including loans from related
parties to meet its daily operation working capital requirements.

The table below set out the Group's financial liabilities by
relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months from the balance
sheet date equal to their carrying amounts in the statements of
financial position, as the impact of discount is not significant.

DPR—F —ZEmE ME=F #Et
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and 2years and 3 years Total
AR¥TRT AR¥Tr AR®BTR AR%¥TxR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
72021%F12831H As at 31 December 2021
B 5 N E A A FRIE * Trade and other payables* 1,412,575 92,857 - 1,505,432
FEFRTAR 2 Dividend payable 25,293 - - 25,293
HEAE Lease liabilities 3,129 7,959 3,938 15,026
et Total 1,440,997 100,816 3,938 1,545,751
720205612 H31H As at 31 December 2020
B 5 I H e3R8 Trade and other payables* 902,102 = = 902,102
HEARE Lease liabilities 1,157 3,766 - 4,923
st Total 903,259 3,766 - 907,025
* TEEEAHEREMBENRESECHE * Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued payroll and other taxes

&

payable.
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DAEEME
(i) RREEER
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for owners and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group maintained at
net cash position.

Fair value estimation
(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made
in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognised and measured at fair value in the
financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the Group has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.
An explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.

F-161



F-162 IR RBEEBRADE 2021FF
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

e IR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 BERERER (@) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 AREBEMRE ) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
(i) RAAEEELE) (i)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
BAnBEFAREMEEBALN Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
TRMEE income
£ %-E EA=] st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

MiE ARBTR  ARBTR  AR®TR ARETR
Notes ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BEMLABETE Recurring fair value
measurements
R2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021
SHEE Financial assets
ETLTES Listed bonds denominated in
US Dollars 19 52,390 - - 52,390
CREERE Total Financial assets 52,390 - - 52,390
£ E ol === et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
izt ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEMLABETE Recurring fair value
measurements
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020
SHEE Financial assets
I E TR Un-listed equity securities 19 - - 1,000 1,000

CREEAH Total Financial assets - = 1,000 1,000
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HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
3 EERERE @ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 RAREEMGEE) 3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
(i) RAAEEELE) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
BARBEAABGZNSHE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
B
I = =B @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
iz AR¥Tr AR¥®Tr AR%Tn AR¥ETx
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEMALEETE Recurring fair value
measurements
®2021§12A31H At 31 December 2021
SREE Financial assets
EnLmES Listed bonds denominated in
US Dollars 20 217,822 - - 217,822
EREm Trust products 20 - - 102,834 102,834
B Em Wealth management products 20 - - 8,083 8,083
ARRER Convertible loans 20 - - 102,166 102,166
FLEMEER Unlisted preference shares 20 - - 20,000 20,000
SREELE Total Financial assets 217,822 - 233,083 450,905
E—[E 5 FE=E FeE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Mz AREFT ARETT AR®ETT ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEMEALEETE Recurring fair value
measurements
#2020%F12A31H At 31 December 2020
SREE Financial assets
ETLEMER Listed bonds denominated in
US Dollars 20 186,748 - - 186,748
{FrtEm Trust products 20 - - 98,693 98,693
tHEELH Total Financial assets 186,748 = 98,693 285,441
REAN @ EEHEILEBEE There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and level

ms - E—E-
8 2 P e

F_EBUARE=

3 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.
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3 HERRERE@
3.3 2QAREEMGE ()
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

()

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
listed bonds) is based on quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities, trust products, wealth management products,
convertible loans and unlisted preference shares.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(ii)  Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
items for the periods ended 31 December 2021 and 31

[E18 B &g : December 2020:
JEEm
fErtEm I8 B EE BRAGE 5 st
Wealth Unlisted
Trust  management equity
products products securities Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARET T
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
2020518188 Opening balance as at
&R 1 January 2020 140,000 = 1,660 141,660
Uk Acquisitions 477,483 - = 477,483
e Disposals (518,790) - (660) (519,450)
H2020F 12831 8K Closing balance as at
HREEER 31 December 2020 98,693 - 1,000 99,693
ERER BRER FLRAES THRRER FLnfE%R &3t
Wealth Unlisted Unlisted
Trust management equity  Convertible  preference
products products securities loans shares Total
ARETR ARMTRT AR%TR ARMTR ARETr ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021E1 8188 Opening balance as at 1 January 2021
Ha&e 98,693 - 1,000 - - 99,693
e Acquisitions 225,624 8,083 - 102,166 20,000 355,873
irf Disposals (221,483) - - - - (221,483)
E2L-RMBA*  Transfered to a subsidiary* - - (1,000) - - (1,000)
R20215128318%  Closing balance as at
BR&H 31 December 2021 102,834 8,083 - 102,166 20,000 233,083

REE2021F12A318ILF
B BRBENRIELETRAADH
10% IR EIN - RARUE
ZIE LR BN SN0 % e s
’E - ZIRARBEGTAEM
PEHRANCHEEREHE
AR A W B — R BB A R (PR
19) o

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in addition to previous
10% equity investments in the unlisted company, the Company
acquired another 90% equity interest in this unlisted company.
The investment of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive then became acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 19).
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3 HERRERE@

(iii)

DR BB (5)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

EEBAERAEENE (iii)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
R(E=E) (Level 3)
BAEEE TUBERRAEE
i MMEE fhiER FUREGAE  (WE-mETYH) MMEBNEER
Range of inputs Relationship of
Un-observable  (probability-weighted  unobservable inputs to
Description Fair value at Valuation technique inputs average) fair value
021 2020%
128318 12A31H 20215 20205
31 31
December  December
2021 2020 2021 2020
AR®TR ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000
{FRER 102,834 98693 HEBLRE BR% 8%9%  8%9% HEEHR ArEEME
Trust products Discounted cash flow  Discount rate The higher the discount rate,
the lower of fair value
L 8,083 - HRReRE iz 8%-9% - HEXER DAEEME
Wealth management Discounted cash flow  Discount rate The higher the discount rate,
products the lower of fair value
wEkES 102,166 - EHR5ER oy ili TER NER  NER
Convertible bonds Recent transaction price  NA NA NA  NA
FLmERR 20,000 - [ERHER R TER NER R
Unlisted preference shares Recent transaction price  NA NA NA  NA
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(iv)

Valuation process

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuation of non-property items
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair value. This team reports directly to the chief financial
officer (CFO) and the audit committee (AC).
of valuation processes and results are held between the
CFO, AC and the valuation team at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting

Discussion

periods.

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair value are analysed at the
end of each reporting period during the half-yearly
valuation discussion between the CFO, AC and the
valuation team. As part of this discussion, the team
presents a report that explains the reason for the fair
value movements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will,

by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Allowance on doubtful trade receivables

The Group makes allowances on trade receivables based
on assumptions about expected loss rates. The Group
used judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group's past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. The forward looking information is
based on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the GDP, completed investment in real estate
development and total retail sales of consumer goods to
be the most relevant factors.
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4

BEREFHEFH R HE )

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

@) EFEWRFTEBENREE®RE (@) Allowance on doubtful trade receivables
(#) (Cont'd)
MRFEAERKRMEFEER - Where the expectation is different from the original
EHREERTE2BREIEL estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
2 HA R B 5 B WRGR B R R BR B of trade receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
XHBREE - B E NG &P periods in which such estimate has been changed. For
R ABERFE - 28 EXMEE details of the key assumption and inputs used, see Note
3.1.2° 3.1.2 above.

(b) BNEARIEZEFBH (b) Current and deferred income tax
REBETHEBMCERMS The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
e EEMBRESE R PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount
MR IERERREER - BEDH of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
- EEEEBBET  FER of the related taxations. There are many transactions and
EN& Q:E’Jﬂi SHIEEEFED calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
AREE - BEREMSEEHSKRT uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
HERE GRS ER - the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
AlEEEZEge B8 BHEE the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
T HA [ 89 P 15 B R o RE B 78 B will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
1 o the period in which such determination is made.
T B 3R JE 3R /3 N JR B sR 454 K B AT Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
e AERETERATRERS differences and tax losses are recognised when
MIBEERN  BRIRETYE management considers to be probable that future taxable
B#%E&%EIE%%E’J?ELH%IEE profit will be available against which the temporary
Z= o BfRE AIREA ° differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of

their actual utilisation may be different.
(0 ERMIANIAREE (c)  Fair value of financial instruments

THEERMSER NS TARN
AR EEFRAGBEEEE - &A%
BERBAEEEZB A I
FEERSREHEART SR
ER RS - AR AR ERERR
RZERREHNTZENFHRE
B F2KME33

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used
and the impact of changes to these assumptions see Note
3.3,
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4 EREFHEFTRHAE @

(d)

(e)

(f)

BEREFERNQAEE
AEUREBESHELEND
B

BERAEG REFIREREREF
BAEMNA R EBETEARESRS
HEENEENER - ZFEX
H B R b FT R IE TR E R AN E
EHEFERFERAEE/RE (E
T RIEFEWZIERE « EBITDA
A= MR EREZHETFBER
WIEERFERFH) - EEEZ
8 BRMEE17TR32 -

UROGABERNER - X
R

AN TE 27 B FR A DA B 4D A AR
MR AEBEEREESR D
BhiE - NRARIEREBUGE
MEEMETRENEREND
REE EXREBHAE -~
AERGABE  WMRX &
RBAME RS EREREERSE -
RAREEARN SERNEEDN
NRfEE -

[CESCAEEEE

REABRETENE  BEER
BB EERMER A — AR
WIRSELBEMN ([BEELE
firl)  MAEBEESEESUWIE
HRl - ERESEBRBEREE
AERAREBEBLEKRARE
PR EEECESREEN
IR & EE A BB AL A AT U B & BB AT 1
RER(E - ERHE R R
RERERN G - ZEEAHE R
HETEEREERFENEE GE
FEREAEERSR  EFXER
BEERABRER - EFERRER
MATRRIRE - AR LS ' &
FEE17 o
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Fair value assessment of the trademarks and
customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in
the fair value assessment of the identified trademarks
and customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations. These
significant judgements and estimates include the
adoption of appropriate valuation methodologies and the
use of key assumptions in the valuation (mainly annual
revenue growth rate, EBITDA margins, discount rates
and expected useful lives of trademarks and customer
relationships). See Notes 17 and 32 for more details.

Share-based payments — expense recognition

Share-based payments as disclosed in Note 27, the Group
has granted share options to the Group’'s employees.
The Company has engaged an independent valuer
to determine the fair value of the options granted to
employees, which is expensed over the vesting periods.
Unobservable inputs such as the discount rate, risk-
free interest rate, volatility and dividend yield, etc. are
used in determining the fair value of the share-based
compensations.

Goodwill impairment assessment

For the purposes of goodwill impairment assessment,
management considered each of the acquired group a
separate group of cash-generated-units (“CGU") and
goodwill has been allocated to each of the acquired
group. Management assessed the impairment of goodwill
by determining the recoverable amounts of the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated based on the
higher of value-in-use calculation and fair value less
cost of disposals. Significant judgements and estimates
were involved in the goodwill impairment assessment.
These significant judgements and estimates include the
adoption of appropriate valuation method and the use of
key assumptions in the valuation, which primarily include
annual revenue growth rate, gross profit margin and
discount rate. See Note 17 for more details.
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7 AP E
EEERETELERREMBHNR
ETEELENHM TERERRERH
TRIFANTES  AEDEERKFMAE
REDEBEIRIR o

HE2021F12A31HILFE  A&E
FTEERENEREDEST RS &I
BRY - BEREEEERS  (LES
ERBEEERRERE - ERERZE
EBEA—EALENS  BHELEE
B UBERNAMDEIELREK - B
It AR RN EBLERARERAER
— (B F] {E L B R 1 R ER A D 8D o

AEBNEELEERHUNFE @ 1K
KREBREZ2021F 128318 IEFE
K ZERAREFE -

M20214F12 31 H K%2020512 A31
B A"EENMEERBEEHURF
B TRt T AREEHREEE -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive and
non-executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of property management services
and value-added services, including developer-related value-
added services, community-related value-added services and
smart community services in the PRC. Management reviews the
operating results of the business as one operating segment to
make decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the
CODM of the Company regards that there is only one segment
which is used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entity of the Group is domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue was derived in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, all of the non-
current assets of the Group were located in the PRC excluding
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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6 WAREERRBEAR

WA EBEIEYEE IR R M IEE RS
FriSakI8 - 822021 F K% 2020512 A

31ALESFE - AEERERE

NIHERADITAT

2 H A

REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES

Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property
management services and value-added services. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue and cost of sales by category for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

BZ12A31ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
2021%F 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
HER HER
O I8 3% WA PRk A

Cost of sales

Cost of sales

Revenue and services Revenue and services
REEFILZE—BRER Revenue from customers and
BERHBA recognised over time:
Y% EEBIRE Property management services 2,100,212 1,468,342 1,255,136 862,513
B AR - Value added services:
— PR ERS — Developer-related value-added
services 815,257 579,241 724,731 514,284
— M RIBERS — Community-related value-added
services 435,055 267,207 235,897 130,782
- BERRERHE - Smart community services 519,663 433,807 388,920 325,239
3,870,187 2,748,597 2,604,684 1,832,818
REEFILZE—AREY Revenue from customers
BERHBA recognised at a point in time
BER Value added services:
— @ ER - Community-related value-added
services 480,548 260,591 261,763 152,864
4,350,735 3,009,188 2,866,447 1,985,682

MEERRBEERES REF RS -
CRERP - RR
N[ e S B A

BREMELRREEE
AR% - EERT
MEEERBIRT ©

to residents and tenants,

Property management services mainly represents service
including property and facilities
maintenance, security services, cleaning services, horticulture

services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property
management related services.
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WA R SHE R AR R A (40)

HEREBERFEZRMERERIEE
RS - BREFRGHEMERY - AR
B IRTS o

HRIZBEREEERIERDAKERERE
AR B TRRE - BZEKERS
BEEERY BHRRYE  REEER
HZERELERY - ARMANEE
MEPRHEFERFERNEFMIIE

BIE .

BEEERRBEERHARERBITE
—UEABRBHRNTER  FRBEEE
BFEMEAESE

HZE2021F K%20205612 A31 8 IE4F
B BAESERREESNEERES
b I H i FEE A IR A 2 RIME AR
EEHRARKZ4.44% 2 42.93% ° B
ZIRRR R RS M B B R H A & 1D 3 B
BREIN AEEHFEFEAERF  BR
HZE2021%F K%20205F12 A31 B IEFE
WA AR~ BRI ASEE 10% 3 A LAY
WA o

REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (Cont'd)

Developer-related value-added services mainly represents service
related to property developers, including on-site sale assistance
services, consulting services and house inspection services.

Community-related value-added services mainly represents
service to render public resources management services,
community engineering services, extensive decoration
services, asset management services, catering services, facility
management and various other home living services to
property owners and customers, with a view to providing them
with a more comfortable and convenient living and working
environment.

Smart community services mainly provide one-stop smart
solutions for various projects, covering residential properties,
office buildings and complexes.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, revenue from
entities controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
and its joint ventures and associates contributed 34.44% and
42.93% of the Group’s revenue respectively. Other than entities
controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and its joint
ventures and associates, the Group had a large number of
customers and none of whom contributed 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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6 WARBEERRBEHEA &)

&

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (Cont'd)

() BEEFANARNEERS (a)

AEBEHRBATEREFEGHHE

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

The Group had recognised the following assets and

FANEENEE : liabilities related to contracts with customers:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®TT AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B SR [ RBA B Contract assets relating to smart
BREE community services 294,754 250,688
EEE A Loss allowance (5,259) (3,359)
BHEEBE Total contract assets 289,495 247,329
EHAaE Contract liabilities
— MEEE R — Property management services 646,688 532,101
— B P ILE RS — Developer-related value-added services 92,439 38,713
— R IEERES — Community-related value-added services 12,236 34,660
— BERRRE — Smart community services 24,675 22,599
AHBEBEEE Total contract liabilities 776,038 628,073
(b) EBHEERBENEXRETH (b) Significant change in contract assets and

REBNENEEEZRFENE
1 M E E B8 6 O K&
ZRIREEEZRERE - A%E
IMBE BB 53R & 2R F 95
BRENEENFIERE  #—
TERBLRMFE3 120

AEEMNEHABRIEELARR
PXARIRMKRIE - i8R RTS
HAREE - BHEAEEMTIBER
RERBEFIBRATE -

liabilities

Contract assets of the Group mainly arise from provision
of smart community services ahead of the agreed
payment schedules for fixed-price contracts. The Group
also recognised a loss allowance for contract assets in

accordance with HKFRS 9, see Note 3.1.2 for further
information.

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from
the advance payments made by customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided. Such liabilities
increased as a result of the growth of the Group's
business.
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6

WARSEERREKA (@)
(0 BANEBEEIHKA
T 5 BB AN 3R 25 HA P B ) 4 88
AHBEHOKRA

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (Cont'd)

(c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

BZ12A831HILEE
For the year ended
31 December

202145 20204
2021 2020
ARBT T ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SAEMESHNAEERNERWA  Revenue recognised that was
included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the
year
L ERL Property management services 525,595 318,493
il B R IE B AR 1% Developer-related value-added services 38,713 315
# [RIEE RS Community-related value-added
services 57,259 20,453

621,567 339,261
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6 WARBEERRBEHEA &)

(d)

(e)

RETHENRK
SMEEIER - REBEER
BRHEBERBHE @ A%E

BRABFTHRAS RSN AER
ABZENPA (BIEAEHEHE
BRIEANEFEEEXYHEDN
TH) c AEBEEEBEUATKE
ZERBESHNNERBENET -
ERBERIREEE R - AEH
MEEERB O MFEREE
ﬂﬁff“jfﬁliﬁﬂﬁﬁ o 4t [ A8 8 AR

BaHR—RNEF I RATE
AEAREETBEEZRBEE
i e

REEZERERRBME - K2021
F12A31BRBIIHNREORS
BARE24,675,0007T (2020
£ AR#24,301,0007T) @ &
H R T 5 5 A R R R iR
]\o

HESAENNMEBRAER
MNEE

REZE2021F12A31HILF
B WEARESKETEHM
ST EAKA - B EER
EREE o
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6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services, property developer-
related value-added services and community-related
value-added services, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount that equals to the right to invoice which
correspond directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance to date, on a monthly or quarterly
basis. The Group has elected the practical expedient for
not to disclose the remaining performance obligation for
these types of contracts. The majority of the property
management services contracts and developer-related
value-added services do not have a fixed term. The
term of the contracts for community — related services
is generally set to expire when the counterparties notify
several months in advance the Group that the services
are no longer required.

For smart community services, there is unsatisfied
performance obligation of RMB24,675,000 at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB24,301,000),
expected to be recognised as revenue during the next
reporting period.

which is

Assets recognised from incremental costs to
obtain a contract

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no
significant incremental costs to obtain or fulfil a contract,
and accordingly no asset was recognised.
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7 RBRMHEHESIHNER

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BZ12A31BLFE
For the year ended 31 December

20215 2020%F
2021 2020
AR%TR AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEFER (M7E8) Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 1,357,714 742,038
INBIREE ~ BRAE RIBRRK AR Outsourced security, greening and
cleaning costs 912,077 682,273
FrREFR #Y)B #E fn &2 P on Consumables and goods used 863,255 616,679
NARMEE Utilities 119,305 82,783
wmAER Office expenses 45,264 33,551
EIRE Travelling expenses 44,065 29,401
MEREHER (ME16%17) Depreciation and amortisation charges
(Note 16 and 17) 32,974 15,504
i 18 K ffd o0 2 Taxes and surcharges 22,411 14,743
5XE Professional fees 17,948 16,461
BTR&AHEER Employee uniform and related expenses 16,934 10,920
EHBEE Business entertainment expenses 15,527 8,212
RITFESE Bank charges 10,663 6,789
SR £ Auditor’s remuneration 3,161 2,750
B EERE Including: Audit services 2,900 2,650
FEFEZIRTE Non-audit services 261 100
BEREEER Advertising and promotion expenses 2,556 2,198
SRS Operating lease payments 502 134
Hth Others 2,902 2,681
3,467,258 2,267,117

HERBREXNATIZREETRAMNE
A ANMERE - BIERIBERA - AR
ARt B LA K SR 4 AR 75 P AR PR RO DH A AR K
P an ©

Cost of sales and services includes mainly employee benefit
expenses, outsourced security, greening and cleaning costs,
utilities and consumables and goods used in providing services.
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8 EERANEH 8

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BZ12A31BLFE
For the year ended
31 December

202145 2020%F

2021 2020

AR®T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

TE  Hehita Wages, salaries and bonuses 1,126,566 613,370

LARRD A ERR A 30 (FisE27) Share-based payments (Note 27) 8,742 41,866

RIKE Pension 100,982 11,152
FEAES BERERK Housing funds, medical insurances and

HE e REg other social insurances 73,759 45,248

Hith g B &5 Other employee benefits 47,665 30,402

1,357,714 742,038

AEENTBENBARESESMAM
A BT E R REER T EHRRETE -
AN £ B Ay R BT B R R Th iR b 5 T R
RAENEEHFSGETE LR EIHE
K BT EERKER - REE2021
FEN2020F12A31BIEEE @ HER
K& FTEITE TR Z UK -

EAFRECOVID-19MMER R 2 — @ 1R
BEEMUEE ANBERBRASR
fERBEMARUERR - NEER2020F
2A1B®EE2020612 A3 1 BHE=ES
HEREBERNRKRBHGTEIHEHR - BE
REEREMESRESHANE THRE
TR o

B bt EHRIN - AR E A A R
ZEET R RARBENNRNERE
£ -

Employees of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution scheme administrated
and operated by government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain percentages of
the employee salary as agreed by the local government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. There
were no forfeited contributions under this pension plan for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

As one of the relief policies on COVID-19 in the PRC, the Group
enjoyed certain exemptions and deductions of contribution
to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes, and
contributions to medical insurance and other social securities
for the period from 1 February 2020 to 31 December 2020
according to the relief policies issued by Finance Bureau and
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of various provinces
and municipalities.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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EBERANER 1w

(a)

EfUGREHFMAL

REZE20214 K% 2020512 A31
AIEEE  ASBERN A &=
AT 2R EEMAR—(E
E HFMESHINRMEEI7FT
TZDMA c REE2021F K&
202051231 HILEE @ ED
B A E & = 1 RO AE A A
T

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd)
(@) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest

in the Group include 2 and 1 directors for the year

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
37. The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 and 4
individuals respectively for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

BZ12A831HLEE
For the year ended 31

December

20215 2020%F

2021 2020

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

YN Basic salaries 3,489 4,408

TEAL Bonuses 2,249 4,826

PARRAD 7= BB B0 1 3K Share-based payments 1,668 12,570
FEAES  BEERBRR Housing fund, medical insurances and

H it g REg other social insurances 170 51

BES Pension 152 45

7,728 21,900
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd)
(@) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

A
Number of individuals
BZE12A31HLEE
For the year ended
31 December

g E (ABTTET)

2,500,0017% L% 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,00178 7T % 3,500,000/8 7T
3,500,001787L%4,000,000/8 7T
4,000,001787C%4,500,000% 7T
4,500,001787C%5,000,000% 7T
5,000,001/ L% 5,500,000/ 7T
5,500,0017& 7L % 6,000,000/ 7T
6,000,001787C%6,500,00078 7T
6,500,001/87L%7,000,000/8 7T
7,000,001787L%7,500,000/8 7T
7,500,001/ 728,000,000/ 7T
8,000,0017%7TL%8,500,000/8 7T
8,500,0017% 729,000,000/ 7T

Emolument bands (in HK dollar)

HKD$2,500,001 — HKD$3,000,000
HKD$3,000,001 — HKD$3,500,000
HKD$3,500,001 — HKD$4,000,000
HKD$4,000,001 — HKD$4,500,000
HKD$4,500,001 — HKD$5,000,000
HKD$5,000,001 — HKD$5,500,000
HKD$5,500,001 — HKD$6,000,000
HKD$6,000,001 — HKD$6,500,000
HKD$6,500,001 — HKD$7,000,000
HKD$7,000,001 — HKD$7,500,000
HKD$7,500,001 — HKD$8,000,000
HKD$8,000,001 — HKD$8,500,000
HKD$8,500,001 — HKD$9,000,000

20215 20204
2021 2020
2 —
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9 HilkA

9 OTHER INCOME

BZ12A31BLFE
For the year ended
31 December

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERAABETAEBRDN Interest income from financial assets at
CRIBERIRAREBETA fair value through profit or loss and
Hth2mBANSREERBIA financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 49,150 38,487
BB (F7E) Government grants (Note) 23,925 17,582
HAh, Others 7,531 6,630
80,606 62,699
Mzt . BB EZAEHMBUTHED o XA Note:  The government grants mainly represented tax refunds from local

EHEARERIRIEREMHIARAEE -

10 EHMEH

government. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies

attaching to these grants.

10 OTHER EXPENSES

BZE12A31BLFE
For the year ended
31 December

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MZEEEL R B INGEE Compensation for casualties to
property owners 3,619 3,821
Hth Others 758 434
4,377 4,255
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11 HMEEFE 11 OTHER LOSSES — NET
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year ended
31 December
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Rz Ei= bk Net foreign exchange losses (10,491) (5,414)
BARBEFABZNESREEDN Net fair value losses on financial assets
AR EEEEFE (Ki:E20) at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 20) (126,582) (17,571)
HEME - BEREED Net gains/(losses) on disposal of
Wz /(F518) )$58 property, plant and equipment 1,310 (50)
(135,763) (23,035)
12 BMBBRARREE 12 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BE12A31BLFE
For the year ended 31 December

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR%TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

Re RESZEMOMNEWHA Interest income on cash and cash
equivalents 29,302 22,556

EaEEM EEFERFEER  Interest and finance charges paid/
payable for lease liabilities (337) (325)

B RS UL A F R Finance income — net 28,965 22,231
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13 KEAA 13 SUBSIDIARIES
REER2021F 2020612 A31HA The Group's subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set
MEAREHINAT out below:
WEARAR HREY/ BISRAH BRARMARKRA  AREFGREAEER  FERESFRAGEER IZEH/LEuk
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
12831H 128318
31 December 31 December
W15 20008 pLAE: 20008
2021 2020 2021 2020
FRBROEERAA ABRAREERAT 1T 10000%  100.00% - - BRAR
Chief Global Enterprise Limited 2018518238 UsD1 Holding Company
British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
23 January 2018
B A RAR AT BHARAA AT 100.00%  100.00% - - BRAT
Hong Kong Xinchengyue 2018514318 HK1 Holding Company
Development Limited Hong Kong, limited liability
company 31 January 2018
IR ERERAR R MNARAR 3000000057 100.00%  100.00% - - kKE
Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings 2018524138 UsD30,000,000 Investment
Company Limited Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company*
13 February 2018
FHERERHABRART HEEMNARAR ARE129292,99  99.00%  99.00% 1.00% 100%  ERFARRE
Xincheng Fuyue Management 2148123118 RMB129,292,929 Management consultation and
Consulting Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, Investment
limited liability company* 11
December 2014
W (BB DEREERAD  PERBARAR ARE10000000  99.99%  99.99% 0.01% 001%  WEERRE RN
Xinchengyue (Chengdu) Property 20205674 11H RMB 10,000,000 Property management services,

Management Co., Ltd.

Chengdu, the PRC, limited
liability company 11 June 2020

Chengdu, the PRC
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13 KMEAE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARKRA  AREFAREAEER  FERESFEAGEER IZEH/LE4E
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
ANEREXRERRAA HEBNERAA 3000000%7  100.00%  100.00% - - RE wEGN
Yangzhou Jiayue Industrial 2020128148 USD3,000,000 Investment, Yangzhou, the PRC
Investment Co., Ltd. Yangzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company*
14 December 2020
Al (ER) NERBERAR  PEEEERAT ARE1,000000  100.00%  100.00% - - DEERRE HER
Xinchengyue (Chongging) Property ~ 2020%11 4208 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Service Co., Ltd. Chongging, the PRC, Chongging, the PRC
limited liability company
20 November 2020
FNREIRERERAA HERNERAA ARH1000000  99.99%  99.99% 0.01% 001% IEEERE FEZNM
Changzhou Rongjian Engineering 2020877 17R RMB1,000,000 Engineering management
Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, limited services, Changzhou, the PRC
liability company 17 July 2020
ZETHHNXERRBARAR  TEZEARAR ARE10000000  99.99%  99.99% 0.01% 001% MEEERE tERS
Anyang Chengyue Property 2020594158 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Service Co., Ltd. ~ Anyang, the PRC, Anyang, the PRC
limited liability company
15 September 2020
BTG NEREARAT HEFTARAR ARE1,000,0007 99.99% 99.99% 0.01% 001% MEEERE REAT
Suiping County Xinchengyue 2020594158 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Property Management Service Suiping, the PRC, Suiping, the PRC
Co., Ltd. limited liability company
15 September 2020
RBEEESERAR PERBARAR ARE10000000  99.99%  99.99% 0.01% 001%  EERE  PEAH
Chengdu Yixu Advertising Co., Ltd. 202087 20R RMB1,000,000 Advertising services, Chengdu,

Chengdu, the PRC, limited
liability company 20 July 2020

the PRC
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13

B X J) () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARKRA  AREFAREAEER  FERESFEAGEER IZEH/LE4E
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
EMREREEERRAA HERNERAA ARE50000000  64.99%  6499%  3501%  35.01%  REEERE RERM
Changzhou Shengling Equipment 202011 A28 RMB5,000,000 Equipment management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
02 November 2020
BNERERHESLERAT  PAFNERAT AR®50000000  99.99%  99.99% 0.01% 001%  BHEELRE  REEN
Changzhou Lechengjia Real Estate 20208107228 RMB5,000,000 Real estate brokerage services,
Brokerage Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, Changzhou, the PRC
Limited liability company
22 October 2020
HRERNRRBERAA RERZERAT ARE10000000  5499%  5499%  4501%  4501%  DEEERE fERR
Ruian Jiayue Property Management 20208478 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Service Co., Ltd. Ruian, the PRC, Limited liability Ruian, the PRC
company 07 August 2020
ERRANEREERAA HEERERAT ARE1,000,0007 50.99% 50.99% 49.01% H01% NEEERE PEEH
Pingxiang Yuehe Property 20205104198 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Service Co., Ltd. Pingxiang, the PRC, Pingxiang, the PRC
limited liability company
19 October 2020
IERUERIRARAR TEEMNERAR ARE30000000  6499%  6499%  3501%  35.01%  BHIERE RN
(Nr&zil) 2020%125108 RMB3,000,000 Elevator Engineering services,

Jiangsu Changli Elevator
Engineering Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Changli")

Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company
10 December 2020

Changzhou, the PRC
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13 KMEAE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARKRA  AREFAREAEER  FERESFEAGEER IZEH/LE4E
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
L ERERTRERAA HEEMNERAR ARE100000000  9372%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28%  &ERH AP
Jiangsu Dashun Elevator Co,, Ltd. 201254318 RMB10,000,000 Maintenance services,
Changzhou, the PRC, limited Changzhou, the PRC
liability company 31 May 2012
ENmTENEERERAR HEENERAT ARE500,0007 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% WEEERE REEM
Changzhou Pingan Property 199959 A2H RMB500,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
2 September 1999
MBS NZREERAT HERNERAT ARES8,000,0007 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% WEEE - A
(TiMEsD) 1999%185H RB8,000,000 Property management
Hangzhou Wan Yue Property Hangzhou, the PRC, Hangzhou, the PRC
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company
("Hangzhou Wan Yue") 5 January 1999
FRESKIBRAR TEEMNERAR ARE1000000  9372%  9372% 6.28% 6.28% HHREREE PEFN
Changzhou Xincheng Information ~ 2014£9A30A RMB1,000,000 Software development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, maintenance, Changzhou,
limited liability company the PRC
30 September 2014
I ERBERA HESNARAR ARES00000m  9372%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28%  MEEERE - PEEN
Erzhou Xinchengyue Property 2018544250 RMB500,000 Property management services.

services Co., Ltd.

Erzhou, the PRC, limited liability
company 25 April 2018

Suzhou, the PRC
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13 MEB2E 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARRE  AREAEENERE  FERERFEESEER IZEY/LEnY
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
01F 200 01F 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
EEHARNRRERNERAT  PERNARAA ARE120000000  93.72%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28% WEEBRE RELHT
([ EATb) 199643 525H RMB120,000,000 Property management services,
Tibet Xinchengyue Property (M01FBZER) Cities across the PRC
Management Co, Ltd. (“Tibet ~ Changzhou, the PR, limited
Xinchengyue") liability company 25 March
1996 (moved to Tibet in 2015)
LEERNRREERAR  PELERRAR ARE10000000  9372%  9372% 6.28% 628% MEXEERE TELE
Shanghai Xin Cheng Wan Jia 2003F11R278 RMB10,000,000 Property management services,
Property Management Co., Ltd. ~ Shanghai, the PRC, Shanghai, the PRC
limited liability company
27 November 2003
IRE BRI ARAR FESEMNERAR AREI0000000%  9372%  9372% 6.28% 628% EZEBRHK EEN
Jiangsu Ruohong Intelligent 201453A19H RMB10,000,000 Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
19 March 2014
LEERERRITARAA hE LERRAT ARE10000000  9372%  9372% 6.28% 628% EEEERRE TELE
Shanghai Shuyuan Information 201718198 RMB10,000,000 Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd Shanghai, the PRC, Shanghai, the PRC
limited liability company
19 January 2017
IR (FM) BRI RARAT HEENERAT ARE 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% EEEERE REEM
Changzhou Park Intelligent 201766858 2,000,0007 Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, limited RMB2,000,000 Changzhou, the PRC

liability company 5 June 2017
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13

B X J) () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARRE  AREAEENERE  FERERFEESEER IZEY/LEnY
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
el nxREERAR REEHERAT ARH1000000  65.60%  6560%  3440%  34.40% WEERRE REHEN
Yancheng Youyue Property 2019117138 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Yancheng, the PRC, Yancheng, the PRC
limited liability company
13 November 2019
TRERNFERERAR REAEERAT ARE1000000  4779%  4779% 2% 5221%  MEEERE RETwE
Henan Xinyue Property 2019597278 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Henan, the PRC, limited liability Henan, the PRC
company 27 September 2019
BRZHENERBEERA HEIBRARAR AREI0000000  47.79%  4779%  S221%  221%  NEEEEE fERR
Rizhao Anyueju Property 201958418 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Rizhao, the PRC, limited liability Rizhao, the PRC
company 1 August 2019
BHMENFREERAT hERERRAT ARE10000000  5155%  5155%  4845%  4845%  WEEEEE rEfE
Jingyue Xingtai Property 2020%1A4208 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Xingtai, the PRC, Xingtai, the PRC
limited liability company
20 January 2020
EMEZREZAALERAR  RERNERAR ARE10000000  9372%  9372% 6.28% 628%  HEEERE  PEEN
Changzhou Chengyiang Xinsheng 202054118 RMB1,000,000 Community-related value-added

Household Management
Co., Ltd.

Changzhou, the PRC, limited
liability company 11 May 2020

services, Changzhou, the PRC
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13 KMEAFE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARKRA  AREFAREAEER  FERESFEAGEER IZEH/LE4E
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
BNBEBERANRERAT  PAFNERAA ARE1000000  9372%  9372% 6.28% 6.28%  HREEERE  FEEN
Changzhou Chengyi Xinjia 20206107168 RMB1,000,000 Community-related value-added
Household Technology Co., Ltd.  Changzhou, the PRC, services, Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
16 October 2020
ANAH N RBERA RERNERAT ARE10000000  6560%  6560%  3440%  3440% WEERREK RERO
Dongkou Tianxin Property 202056A238 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Dongkou, the PRC, limited Dongkou, the PRC
liability company 23 June 2020
ARBRERAD (GARER))  HERBARAR AREI50000000  5764%  5764%  4236%  4236% MEEEERE RENH
Chengyue Times Co., Ltd. 2004E104128 RMB15,000,000 Property management services,
("Chengyue Times") Chengdu, the PRC, Chengdu, the PRC
limited liability company
12 October 2004
MBI =REERAR REREERAT ARE1000000  5155%  5155%  4845%  4845%  MDEEERE mERE
Hangzhou Yuelian Property 202056A228 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Jiande, the PRC, limited liability Jiande, the PRC
company 22 June 2020
REERNFERERAT PERERRAR ARES0000000  5623%  5623%  4371%  B77%  NEEERERE fEAE
([rgz%)) 20085 A5H RMB5,000,000 Property management services,
Dalian Hua'an Property Dalian, the PRC, limited liability Dalian, the PRC
Management Co., Ltd. company 5 May 2008
("Dalian Hua'an")
LETRARZREERAR  PEZNERAR ARET  9936% el 0.64% AR RRRE EEN
([ExR%Z]) 20085 A5H RMB Not Not  Security services,
Jiangsu Xincheng Kangjia Bao'an ~ Changzhou, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Changzhou, the PRC

Property Management Co., Ltd.

("Kangjia Bao'an")

liability company 5 May 2008
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13 KMEAE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARRE  AREAEENERE  FERERFEESEER IZEY/LEnY
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
LE R EERIRRAT hE LEERAT AR40,000000  100.00% 0 elii - MER  MEEERE tELE
Shanghai Boyi Real Estate 2021%186R RMB40,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Consulting Co., Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC, applicable applicable Shanghai, the PRC
limited liability company
6 January 2021
BZAHANNEERERAT HEEZERAT AR%1,000,0007 50.99% 50.99% 49.01% H01% DEEERE PEAZ
Xi‘an Xinyueyihe Property 20205128238 RMB1,000,000 Property management services.
Management Co., Ltd. Xi'an, the PRC, limited liability Xi'an, the PRC
company 23 December 2020
W (L8) RRERARAR e LERRAR ARE20,000000  99.99% i 0.01% NER  WEEERE PELE
Yuting (Shanghai) Catering 202151768 RMB20,000,000 Not Not  Property management services.
Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC, applicable applicable Shanghai, the PRC
limited liability company
6 January 2021
BRI NERBERAT TEEERRAA ARE1,000000  99.99% i 0.01% NER  DEEERG - PEDS
Jinxian Xinjinyue Property Service 20211 712A RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Co., Ltd. Nanchang, the PRC, applicable applicable Nanchang, the PRC
limited liability company
12 January 2021
BRERAEHEARAR PEERARAR ARES0,000000  99.99% i 0.01% AaR  BEERRE  TEER
Nanjing Yuncabinet Network 2021515138 RMB50,000,000 Not Not  Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd. Nanjing, the PRC, applicable applicable Nanjing, the PRC
limited liability company
13 January 2021
itk (BE) nEREARAR TEARAERAR ARE10000000  5099%  5099%  49.01%  4901% DEEEEE fEEs
Xinyue (Jining) Property Service 20205124308 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,

Co,, Ltd.

Yutai, the PRC, limited liability
company 30 December 2020

Yutai, the PRC
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13

B X J) () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARRE  AREAEENERE  FERERFEESEER IZEY/LEnY
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
HEERARHARRAT hE LEERAT AR®2000000T  9372% NER 6.28% MER  MEEERE tELE
Shanghai Yuejun Enterprise 2021%45208 RMB20,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Consulting Co., Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Shanghai, the PRC
liability company 20 April 2021
REREIGNZERERLT  PAARERAT ARE1,000000  5099% FER 40.01% NER  WEEERE PERZ
Shaanxi Luhai Xincheng Yuet 2021414258 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Property Management Co., Ltd.  Xi'an, the PRC, limited liability applicable applicable Xi'an, the PRC
company 25 January 2021
WREBNZEEERAT rERMNARAR ARE5000000  51.55% TER 4845% AR DREERE PEEN
(TuxE#l) 2004E5724R RMB5,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Shandong Lead Property Binzhou, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Binzhou, the PRC
Management Co., Ltd. liability company 24 May 2004
(“Shandong Lead")
NG REERAR HERMNARAR ARE1,0000000  99.99% TER 0.01% TER  DREERE - PEEN
Guangzhou Xinyue Property Service 202146 A 15H RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Co., Ltd. Guangzhou, the PRC, limited applicable applicable  Guangzhou, the PRC
liability company 15 June 2021
RN (L) D ER REARARAR ARE10,0000007  5099% FER 80.01% AER  DREERE  PEAR
BRAR 2021%5818H RMB10,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Zhonglong Xincheng Yue (Shanxi)  Datong, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Datong, the PRC
Property Management Co., Ltd. liability company 18 May 2021
AN EREERAA REHARAA ARE1,000000  5099% AER 49.00% NER  WEERRE wEEH
Guizhou Yinyue Property Service 2021658198 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Co,, ltd, Bijie, the PRC, limited liability applicable applicable  Bijie, the PRC

company 19 May 2021
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13

B X J) () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARRE  AREAEENERE  FERERFEESEER IZEY/LEnY
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
01F 200 01F 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
REEENERES T2 HERIARAT ARE1,000000  50.99% TEE 49.01% MR MEERRE hEEL
BELA 2021567170 RMB1,000,000 Not Not Property management services,
Henan Xincheng Yuemin Property  Shanggiu, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Shanggiu, the PRC
Service Co., Ltd. liability company 17 June 2021
BANERBERERAA HEEMNARAR ARES0,000000  79.99% AER O 2001% NER  DEEERE - PEEN
(TEsmz1) 201551 F6H RMBS0,000,000 Not Not Property management services,
Xiangcheng Property Service Wenzhou, the PRC, applicable applicable Wenzhou, the PRC
Group Co., Ltd. ("Xiangcheng ~ limited liability company
Property”) 6 January 2015
AMREENERBEERERAD  HANMNERAR ARE1,000000  5099% TEE 09.01% NER  DREERE - PEMN
Hangzhou Junhongyue Property 2021%7H8H RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Service Management Co., Ltd. Hangzhou, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Hangzhou, the PRC
liability company 8 July 2021
EMBRNZERARLE rEEGARAR ARE5000000  64.99% TER 35.01% TER  WEEERE TEER
(-viE>4) 201089412 RMB5,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Guizhou Bajie Property Guiyang, the PRC, applicable applicable Guiyang, the PRC
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company
(“Guizhou Bajie") 12 September 2010
BRI RBERAT PEERARAR ARE10000000  79.99% FER 2001% NER  WREERE PEER
Ningbo Nolaimei Logistics Service 20217 A18 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Co., Ltd, Ningbo, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Ningbo, the PRC
liability company 1 July 2021
ATmnEREERAR HERTERAT ARE1,000,0007 99.99% oyl 0.01% MER  MEERRE REET
Xingping Xinchengyue Property 202158A208 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Service Co., Ltd. Xingping, the PRC, applicable applicable  Xingping, the PRC

limited liability company
20 August 2021
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13 MEB2E 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARRE  AREAEENERE  FERERFEESEER IZEY/LEnY
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
01F 200 01F 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
RUMFER (5U8) ARELAR  PERNERAT ARE10,000000  89.99% AER O 1001% TER  DEEERE TEEN
Rongyue Property Management 2021%59524R RMB10,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
(Weihai) Co., Ltd. Rongcheng, the PRC, applicable applicable Rongcheng, the PRC
limited liability company
24 September 2021
RENBUATERREERAT  PEREARLR ARE3000000  5099% TEE 09.01% NER  WEEERE TEEE
Shaanxi Xinlianyue City 2021598178 RMB3,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Management Service Co., Ltd. ~ Weinan, the PRC, limited applicable applicable Weinan, the PRC
liability company 17 September
2021
BN EREERAR nEEMNARAR ARE1,000000  99.99% 0 elii 0.01% MER  MEEERE RERM
Zhangzhou Yuexin Property Service 202149788 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Co., Ltd. Zhangzhou, the PRC, applicable applicable Zhangzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
8 September 2021
EREEREERAA HEEEERAA ARH1000000  99.99% NER 0.01% MER  MEEERE tEHEE
Yibin Hengyue Property Service 2021%8A118 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Co., Ltd. Yibin, the PRC, limited liability applicable applicable Yibin, the PRC
company 11 August 2021
REANIEREERAA HEEEERAT AR10,000,0007 99.99% oyl 0.01% MR MEERRE REEE
Linxia Chengyue Property Service 20214694268 RMB10,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Co., Ltd. Linxia, the PRC, limited liability applicable applicable Linxia, the PRC
company 26 September 2021
BRI EREARAT HERHERAT ARE500,0007 99.99% oyl 0.01% MR MEEERE PERH
Kunming Xinchengyue Property 202159426 RMB500,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Service Co., Ltd. Kunming, the PRC, applicable applicable Kunming, the PRC

limited liability company
26 September 2021
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13 KMEAE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
WEARAR e/ BISERAS BRARARRE  AREAEENERE  FERERFEESEER IZEY/LEnY
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
20215 2020% 20215 2020%
2021 2020 2021 2020
WEFAERD=REERAR  RASHARAT ARE1,000000  50.99% TEE 49.01% MER  DEEERE fEEA
Shanxi Xincheng Aijia Property 2021488198 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Service Co., Ltd. Yuncheng, the PRC, applicable applicable Yuncheng, the PRC
limited liability company
19 August 2021
EMERRTHARAR rEEMNERAR ARE1,000000  99.99% 0 elii 0.01% MER  MEEERE RESM
Changzhou Hengjia Travel 2021%88128 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Agency Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, applicable applicable Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
12 August 2021
FIMER (D) & PEERARAR ARE10000000  79.99% AER O 2001% NER  MEEERE PEER
IRBERAA (2% 2015F283R RMB10,000,000 Not Not Property management services,
Xinchengyue Smart (Zhejiang) Ningbo, The PRC, applicable applicable Ningbo, the PRC
Logistics Service Co., Ltd Limited liability company
(“Liangshi Property”) 23 February 2011
EakEhzERRBERAR  PAEARRAT AR®10000000  69.99% TEE  3001% MR MEERRE hEES
(TEaxE]) 2003F3A4A RMB10,000,000 Not Not Property management services,
Yantai Yongle Property Yantai, the PRC, applicable applicable Yantai, the PRC
Management Service Co., Ltd. ~limited liability company
("Yantai Yongle") 04 March 2003
XUEEHENRERERAR  REUUARAR ARE1,000000  54.99% TEE  45.01% NER  MREERE RE
Wenshan Xincheng Yuexiang 20215118298 RMB1,000,000 Not Not  Property management services,
Property Management Co., Ltd. ~ Wenshan, the PRC, applicable applicable Wenshan, the PRC

limited liability company
29 November 2021
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HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

13 KMEAFE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
KEARER HRAY/ BIBSRAS BRARARKRA  AREFAREAEER  FERESFEAGEER IZEH/LE4E
Ownership interest
Place and date of Issued and Ownership interest held by non-controlling  Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries incorporation/establishment paid-up capital held by the Group interests place of operation
12A31H 128318
31 December 31 December
01E 20205 20215 2020E
2021 2020 2021 2020
LEEREREEREERAR  PELEARAR ARE16,00000  79.99% THEE  2001% MR BRRE PELS
(T2fEs) 200454R7H RMB16,000,000 Not Not  Catering services, Shanghai,
Shanghai Xuefu Catering Shanghai, the PRC, applicable applicable the PRC
Management Service Co., Ltd limited liability company
(“Xuefu Catering”) 7 April 2004
FNZIIM=ERERAR HEENERAA ARE2000000  64.99% TEE 35.01% MER  MEEERRE REHN
(T&M= 1) 2010F8718H RMB2,000,000 Not Not Property management services,
Suzhou Baochuan Property Suzhou, the PRC, applicable applicable Suzhou, the PRC
Management Service Co., Ltd. ~limited liability company
("Suzhou Baochuan") 18 August 2010

o RIBEPEAEAMKZABRINEELE * Registered as sino-foreign equity joint ventures under PRC law

# REPEAEEMA R BINEDE # Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law

Br*B#  REBERPEKZHFEEMITBARHE AR Except for * and #, all other subsidiaries of the Group which are established in the

Hps PRC are domestic enterprises.

(a) AANRRZEWB DR P EAEESNEER (a) The Company has direct or indirect equity interests in these subsidiaries
W MZENBRARREMHMBAREEEE which have direct or indirect equity interests in the other subsidiaries.
YEERE -  ZENBRINEBRE LS These subsidiaries were incorporated in British Virgin Islands or Hong Kong
BEEMKS KT EMKTEARRTERA and all the other subsidiaries were established in mainland China. All the
WK - FTAMBARIRAEREERR subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies.

(b) FrEMBAREZBEZEMAS /KR IZHBE (b) All the subsidiaries are operating principally in their place of incorporation
o establishment.

(0 RAFRABEEIN BEFE - HEHBEA (o) Save for disclosed in this annual report, none of the subsidiaries had issued

ABETEMEBES -

R2021F12831H @ ARITEHAE

Em=

BEBERNIEZR A K

BT MU ENFERRYSERGE -

any debt securities at the end of the year.

As of 31 December 2021, as no non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group, no related summarized financial
information are disclosed.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BZ12A31BLFE
For the year ended
31 December

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BOERPFR1S 75 Current income tax

— RS — PRC corporate income tax 195,584 146,323

EIEFTIS L (MI7E30) Deferred income tax (Note 30)

— R B EFRET — PRC corporate income tax (12,637) 980

182,947 147,303

(a) HFHERESHREH (a) Cayman Island income tax
RARRIBREBER=SRARERR S The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
HEdMKINEREER LD an exempted company with limited liability under the
A At BESNFSESH Companies Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is
13758 o exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

(b) EBELBSREH (b)  British Virgin Islands income tax
BERBER RS ([HER LR British Virgin Islands (“BVI") income tax under the current
EDBRTEETHEBRRE laws of BVI, our subsidiaries incorporated in BVI and all
SRAEH  RMEEBREXES dividends, interest, rents, royalties, compensation and
A B AR MERBE other amounts paid by such subsidiaries incorporated in
ZREFEMK I ZEN B A A the BVI to persons who are not resident in the BVI and
MIFRBREZHESERHALT any capital gains realised with respect to any shares,
SAWMpAERSE - FE - BE - debt obligations, or other securities of such subsidiaries
BRE - #HFeREMESEARIL incorporated in the BVI by persons who are not resident
FEBELHEESERMNALTEE in the BVI are exempt from all provisions of the Income
IRAE R B B & B #9534 Tax Ordinance in the BVI. In addition, upon payments
LB A RMNERK D « EEE of dividends by our BVI subsidiaries to us, no BVI
35 E Ath 55 25 T BUS E A & AN ik withholding tax is imposed.

w ORGeETREBREZHSM
SRRBIE FT A -3 o EoN + F
MHEBEXESHE AR MEK
PR AH B9 AR B 28 78 8 4 0 /& R 2
HETEF -
(c) BBEFEH (c) Hong Kong profit tax

AR AEBREZ2021F EF
BN B ZBRNE BT ERA
WA (20204 : &) « I
BBMNEBEHRRE -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group did not derive any income subject to Hong Kong
profits tax during the year ended 2021 (2020: nil).
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HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

14 FIEHEAR®
(d) FELEFER

7N 5= [ 5 R B 0 3 B 45 4 R A
PISTREBHERBRITER B
BREH - AFREFARRBA
HEARERGE

PRI IEMERBROBERA
a) ([ AT AR ) AR EEE
i aa  EZR15%KEERH
o PR R E S S
aTHRAaEl - BEBEHGEERE
KOE - REERBA MR A
RNElRFTB D A a8 ERTIUA
EITATERBR - ERTAKA
H50% D = AR T © mo
@ﬂ” JEIE 15 % K9t R BN BT
135 EARMBR AR T50% 5
%%’7}”& Mo ARIEE25%
KM R B AMFTEN - BECEAR
FHMREHTHERLI20% °

BB B KX RB AR A A
(TR ) ~ Frm it (BCER)
MERBER AR ([FEARE (K
W RENBRYEXERER
AR ([EMBR]) HAERHDERE
MR FMA AR - IER15%
MEERE -

T 55 B A RERH A R A R E ER
ST EESE - K2023
Eau;ﬁw%m@?ﬂﬁfx o

BEBECPEARKMEEEMS
BOR) (RERBEE]D - &R
RARBEURPBEREE M E
BHEEMESRHER25% -

14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(d)

PRC corporate income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for
the year, based on the existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co., Ltd. (“Tibet
Xinchengyue”), a Tibet registered Company, is entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15%.
has a number of branches across China. According to
the relevant tax laws and regulations, the Group files
its income tax return by combining the taxable income
of head office in Tibet and all of its branches with 50%
of the aggregate taxable income apportion to the head

Tibet Xinchengyue

office in Tibet which is subject to income tax rate of
15% and the remaining 50% among the branches which
are subject to income tax rate of 25%, resulting in an
average of about 20% applicable income tax rate.

Chengyue Times Co., Ltd.
Xinchengyue (Chengdu) Property Management Co., Ltd.
(“Xinchengyue (Chengdu)”) and Guizhou Bajie Property
Management Co., Ltd (“Guizhou Bajie”) registered in
Western area of China, are entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 15%.

(“Chengyue Times”) and

Jiangsu Ruohong Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. is
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% until 2023 as it
achieved high-tech enterprise certificate.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to other
entities of the Group located in Mainland China is 25%
according to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
(“the CIT Law").
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14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(e) The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on
the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the
income tax expenses is listed below:

BZE12A31HLLEE
For the year ended
31 December

20215 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FR P45 25 B A Profit before income tax 741,676 636,389
BEBEEMSHNE25%EAFIE  Tax calculated at applicable corporate
income tax rate of 25% 185,419 159,097
AT B2 Tax effects of:
— BRI S Al HERAYE A (FIFE®) - Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes (Note (i)) 19,479 1,921
— AR KA R REAN TR X — Different tax rate applied in Tibet
and Chengdu companies (22,105) (26,307)
— KRR AEIEFTS T E E/M T B - Deductible tax losses and temporary
EE R TR ER differences not recognised for
deferred income tax assets 154 131
— BRI (HEEGi) — PRC withholding tax (Note (ii)) - 12,461
182,947 147,303

B

(i)

(i)

REEEISE T ARERBEREN
HERN (E2RERAABER
N EL b 2 TE U A B D5k LS 18 B
RIPHFEBROBORSRE) -

1 P15 BE K& H B e 40 Bl R E R
HERCH¥32008F1 A1 HRE
R EF - A H A B AN B B
RABIRENREBHN10%H
TEMB - MHR20084F1 A1 BAIE
R D IRBF B R M N R TE
B - RBEREEFET OB
BARHE - FEEBEERDAKL
REE - A EBEIEES5%EMF
&K - HZE2020F12A318ILF
B AKEREREEREEND
D RAIL10% BB REH2R B AN
HBEARE12,461,0007T ° B
20214128318 - AEEWFEH
MBREEA RS RRAHARYE
1,618,824,0007T ' fH{EAREX
- WA EFRBIE - R
TREEREFE - HABNREH
HIRIERIIE B A AR SN - BiAEE
—SHRAECHEERE  BARAEA
RIEBARNEHTRENBR S
AR B KBS B TR & R AT B
RABZZRF

Note: (i)

(if)

The Group recorded certain expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes, which mainly include net impairment
losses on fair value through other comprehensive
income and entertainment expenses not eligible for tax
deduction.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by
a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate holding
company outside PRC for earnings generated beginning
1 January 2008 and undistributed earnings generated
prior to 1 January 2008 are exempted from such
withholding tax. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding companies
are established in Hong Kong according to the tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
accrued for PRC withholding tax with amount of
RMB12,461,000 based on the tax rate of 10% on a
portion of the earnings generated by its PRC entities.
As at 31 December 2021, the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group have undistributed earnings of approximately
RMB1,618,824,000, which, if paid out as dividends,
would be subject to tax in the hands of the recipient.
An assessable temporary difference exists, but aside
from the balance of deferred tax liabilities in relation to
withholding tax, no further deferred tax liability shall
be recognised as the parent entity is able to control
the timing of distributions of dividends from the PRC
subsidiary and is not expected to distribute these profits
in the foreseeable future.
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15 ZAATBEEAELERER 15 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
() SRELERF (@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by

FAGRERBNDIZARRERTH

ANEIEAREBNERAFRNE EHTEE .
B ) AIAE T A B holders of the Company by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

dividing the profit of the Group attributable to equity

BZ12A31HILEE
For the year ended
31 December

20214 20204
2021 2020
BF Earnings:
SHEFRIEARZFFTH A AR A B % B AJE Profit attributable to owners of the
1EAE (AREFT) Company used in the basic earnings
per share calculation (RMB'000) 525,455 452,387
BR&OEAE : Number of shares:
AEFABRE BHTEBRD Weighted average number of ordinary
g (PATFET) shares in issue during the year per
share calculation (in thousand) 847,729 818,625
FRRNEHEE AEGEFED Basic earnings per share for profit
BREREF (AARKETIR) attributable to the owners of the

Company during the year (expressed
in RMB) 0.62 0.55
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

15

EATREBABEERER
()
(b) SREHERF

FREEANRARE ETEIN
B B AN T BUARR T A
BESETEREEHRTE - K

R A PAR D S AR R EE

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company'’s share-based payment is of dilutive

potential.

BZ12A31HILEE
For the year ended
31 December

202145 20204
2021 2020
A Earnings:
ATEGREERF AN Profit attributable to owners of the
RNARER AEEFE Company used in the diluted earnings
(ARETT) per share calculation (RMB'000) 525,455 452,387
REEA : Number of shares:
STEERNSREETEEAAA  Weighted average number of ordinary
INFEF B (PATED) shares in issue during the year per
share calculation (in thousand) 847,729 818,625
o BERMOEE (ATFET) Add: number of dilutive shares (in
thousand) 6,497 9,145
BETE R REE Weighted average number of ordinary
T@ARAY It TS - shares in issue and potential ordinary
RIE E S REER TR shares used as the denominator in
AEE(UATFED) calculating diluted earnings per share
(in thousand) 854,226 827,770
FRARQEHEE ABGEFEA  Diluted earnings per share for profit
FREERT attributable to the owners of the
(AAR®EFIR) Company during the year (expressed
in RMB) 0.62 0.55
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HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

16 ¥ BEERRKREBEURMSER 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
EEE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
() ¥ BERRE (a) Property, plant and equipment
¥ EGRE ETHE BERKE -y
Transportation Electronic ~ Furniture and
Buildings equipment equipment machinery Total
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#2021%1A1H As at 1 January 2021
KA Cost 3,564 3,134 13,911 6,177 26,786
2itHhE Accumulated depreciation (844) (1,663) (8,441) (1,629) (12,577)
REFE Net book amount 2,120 1,471 5,470 4,548 14,209
BZ2021512A31HLEE  For the year ended
31 December 2021
FREEE Opening net book amount 2,720 1,471 5,470 4,548 14,209
EEMB AR (fia32) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 32) - 1,259 1,070 8,050 10,379
RE* Additions* - 1,518 8,170 34,071 43,759
HE Disposals - (144) (909) (338) (1,391)
HEER Depreciation charge (115) (1,571) (2,351) (4,029) (8,066)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 2,605 2,533 11,450 42,302 58,890
R2021E12 8318 As at 31 December 2021
KA Cost 3,564 5,617 21,312 41,560 78,053
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (959) (3,084) (9,862) (5.258) (19,163)
REFE Net book amount 2,605 2,533 11,450 42,302 58,890
1202051518 As at 1 January 2020
KA Cost 3,408 1,189 11,012 2,002 17,611
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (729) (431) (6,379) (1,120) (8,659)
RERE Net book amount 2,679 758 4,633 882 8,952
BZ2020512A31HLLEE  For the year ended
31 December 2020
ENEEFE Opening net book amount 2,679 758 4,633 882 8,952
WENB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries 156 1,137 121 2,561 3,975
NE Additions - 814 3,031 1,625 5,470
e Disposals - (3) (95) (5) (103)
TEER Depreciation charge (115) (1,235) (2,220) (515) (4,085)
EXEETE Closing net book amount 2,720 1,471 5,470 4,548 14,209
R2020F12 8318 As at 31 December 2020
KA Cost 3,564 3,134 13,911 6,177 26,786
RiTHTE Accumulated depreciation (844) (1,663) (8,441) (1,629) (12,577)
REFE Net book amount 2,720 1,471 5,470 4,548 14,209
* HZE2021F12A318EFE - & * During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company

REABREBARE32,931,0007T
MRAEE S TR EE O EAR) B

BRI -

purchased courier lockers from a related party, a subsidiary of the
Seazen Group with a total consideration of RMB32,931,000.
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont'd)

() W% BERR®EE) (a) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
MEEA ALRESZEBRARIA Depreciation expenses were charged to the following
THA categories in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income:
BZ12A31HILEE
For the year ended
31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HE R RIEA A Cost of sales and services 4,668 1,062
1T E A Administrative expenses 3,398 3,023
8,066 4,085
(b) HE (b) Leases
g g\ =l /ﬂi £®= “ i A ; ; i '
ﬁ?ﬁmﬂm ARBRERANH This note provides information for leases where the
EE&R - .
Group is a lessee.
i A B, Sl : _5'-\7 A . ) )
® ]iiéi%ﬁj(ﬁ%%ﬁﬁm & ()  Amounts recognised in the statement of
A financial position
B ¥ (51 DA B2 & : . L
iﬁﬂkﬂfﬁﬂ AT SRH The statement of financial position shows the
EHBMFE : . i
following amounts relating to leases:
M®12831H
As at 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
BFREM Buildings and parking lots 19,722 10,043
HEER Lease liabilities
mE Current 3,129 1,157
JEmE Non-current 11,310 3,420
14,439 4,577
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16 Y% BMELRZHEUKRER 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
EEE @ RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont'd)
(b) MHEE) (b) Leases (Cont'd)
(i) REEWAZERL (i)  Amounts recognised in the statement of
IE comprehensive income
ZE W ARSI AT EFE The statement of comprehensive income shows
EBBHFIE the following amounts relating to leases:
BZENANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
20215 20205
2021 2020
fif = ARETT ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
RAEEEREER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
BFREM Buildings and parking lots 7 6,404 4,478
MEFAZ (BT ABERKA)  Interest expense (included in finance cost) 12 337 325
BEHRERENER Expense relating to short-term leases (included
(BRFAHERRBHAR in cost of sales and services and administrative
THER) expenses) 7 480 134
BRI EIBEHMAER  Expense relating to leases of low-value assets
EEBEEEHEABNER  that are not shown above as short-term leases
(BFATHER) (included in administrative expenses) 7 by) =

2021 FHEMBE ML
@A NRE7,060,000
7T (20204 : AR¥
6,676,0007T) * HFE
RHENRASIHH RE
FEEEMNHESRARE
6,558,000 T AL =&
NREENRERARE
502,0007T °

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was
RMB7,060,000 (2020: RMB6,676,000), which
includes cash flow from principal elements of
lease payments and its interests of RMB6,558,000
and cash flow from operating lease payments of
RMB502,000.
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HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
17 8EREEE 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
THEREY R HE ;3 EFBf o
Computer Customer
software Licenses Goodwill ~ Trademarks relationships Total
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%ETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(ii) (i)
1202151518 As at 1 January 2021
kA Cost 11,878 84 104,086 8,000 80,984 205,032
EGE £ Accumulated amortisation (3,719) (33) - (356) (3,505) (7,613)
RHFE Net book amount 8,159 51 104,086 7,644 71,479 197,419
EiZ2021512A31 8 LEE For the year ended
31 December 2021
FORERE Opening net book amount 8,159 51 104,086 7,644 71,479 197,419
WEERBAE (H5E32)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) - - 246,892 - 294,778 541,670
HE Additions 6,510 1,230 - - - 7,740
B Amortisation (2,113) (20) - (533) (15,838) (18,504)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 12,556 1,261 350,978 7111 356,419 728,325
R2021%512 8310 As at 31 December 2021
KA Cost 18,388 1,314 350,978 8,000 375,762 754,442
RETEH Accumulated amortisation (5,832) (53) - (889) (19,343) (26,117)
BREFE Net book amount 12,556 1,261 350,978 7,111 356,419 728,325
120201518 As at 1 January 2020
KA Cost 7,101 84 6,585 - - 13,770
RETEH Accumulated amortisation (2,094) (25) = = = (2,119)
REFE Net book amount 5,007 59 6,585 - - 11,651
EiZ2020512 318 LLEE For the year ended
31 December 2020
EREE Opening net book amount 5,007 59 6,585 - - 11,651
KRB A Acquisition of subsidiaries 4 - 97,501 8,000 80,984 186,489
HE Additions 4773 - - - = 4773
B Amortisation (1,625) 8) - (356) (3,505) (5,494)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 8,159 51 104,086 7,644 77,479 197,419
R2020%12 8310 As at 31 December 2020
KA Cost 11,878 84 104,086 8,000 80,984 205,032
RErEH Accumulated amortisation (3,719) (33) - (356) (3,505) (7,613)
EHFE Net book amount 8,159 51 104,086 7,644 77,479 197,419
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17

BEEE (@)
B AEBHSAGARERAEN

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the

I consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows:
BZE12A31HLEE
For the year ended
31 December
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®ETF T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HERX Selling expenses 15,838 =
THEA Administrative expenses 2,666 5,494
18,504 5,494
(i) =EFBE#% (i)  Customer relationships

REZE2021F12A3181EF
B AEEKBEETAA (HE
32) s ZERRIREES B WE
HEAW T HAFEELELNAA
[R#292,372,0007C * BIED#
RIRFBEAREK294,778,000
JL e BN HEMBETHEE - A
ETEHNZFPARNALE
B BFEBERMAMEERILE
REREE - BERFPHENA
AEENERBRREZRNT

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group acquired certain companies (Note 32). Total
identifiable net assets of these companies as at their
respective acquisition dates amounted to approximately
RMB292,372,000, including identified customer
relationships of RMB294,778,000. A valuation was
performed by independent valuers to determine the
fair value of the identified customer relationships. The
valuation method used for customer relationships is the
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions in
determining the fair value of customer relationships are
disclosed as follows:

EBITDA
WEFERE (FRABDH) BaiRE BHEAER
Annual
revenue EBITDA (% Pre-tax Expected

growth rate of revenue) discount rate useful lives

IR Shandong Lead
T Xiangcheng Property
it Liangshi Property
EMNBZ Guizhou Bajie

BB K& Yantai Yongle
MBI Suzhou Baochuan
ZRER Xuefu Catering

0-4% 12% 18% 7-10
0-12% 15-19% 18.5% 7-10
11% 11-19% 18.5% 7-10
0-5% 18-19% 18% 7-10
0-10% 15% 18% 7-10
1% 17% 18.5% 7-10
0-4% 10-12% 18% 7-10
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17 8BFEEE W 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)
(i) BB (ii) Goodwill
BREBELDOEZETINRGELES Goodwill was allocated to the following cash generating
fiz : units:
R12A31H

As at 31 December
20215 20204F
2021 2020
ARET T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BTE R Xuefu Catering 70,252 -
AR R Chengyue Times 64,137 64,137
1B & sk & Yantai Yongle 42,192 =
REEL Dalian Hua'an 32,626 32,626
P/ Liangshi Property 29,764 -
aINE) Suzhou Baochuan 28,789 -
P Xiangcheng Property 27,016 =
MR Guizhou Bajie 26,116 =
I R EB Shandong Lead 22,763 -
LN E R Hangzhou Wan Yue 6,585 6,585
TLER B Jiangsu Changli 738 738
350,978 104,086
EEERGEE Y EEETRE Management performed an impairment assessment on
B ZEMB AR Z AT E S the goodwill as at balance sheet date. The recoverable
HOBRBERABEGEREE amounts of these subsidiaries are determined based on

Az © value-in-use calculations.
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17 EBEEE®) 17
(i) B®/EW

TREFNEHE2021F12 8318
ZEMFEIREAFENE S
EABMMNEZEBR

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

(i)

Goodwill (Cont'd)

The following table set out the key assumptions for those

CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them as
at 31 December 2021:

AEEHES
iR = EF B EARFEURM
(%FREER) (ERAEDH) BRI RER = KB RE

Compound

revenue

growth rate
during the Terminal
first five year Gross margin Pre-tax  growth rate
(% annual (% of discount since the
growth rate) revenue) rate sixth year
B Chengyue Times 14% 17% 17.2% -
JE B k& Yantai Yongle 13% 22% 17.0% -
REER Dalian Hua'an 1% 20% 17.0% -
R Liangshi Property 12% 26% 17.4% -
=itES Xiangcheng Property 1% 35% 17.1% -
BMNBZ Guizhou Bajie 13% 32% 17.3% -
LSRR Shandong Lead 1% 17% 17.0% -
B Hangzhou Wan Yue 7% 9-11% 17.4% -
ZRER Xuefu Catering 1% 23-25% 17.2% -
EMNE)I Suzhou Baochuan 18% 25% 17.3% -

RIS 1 B S AT R B B B 2 R Al
WE LB - K2021412
A31BHAELRERE -

Based on management’s assessment on the recoverable
amounts of the subsidiaries acquired, no impairment
provision was considered necessary as at 31 December

2021.
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17 8BFEEE W 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)
(i) B®EE) (ii) Goodwill (Cont'd)
TR EE2020F12A31H The following table set out the key assumptions for those
ZEMREIREANENE S CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them as
EEBUNEERR : at 31 December 2020:

AIRFHES
Yz it R & ERE FREUARA
(%FHERE) (BRABHL) HATALIR & KR &

Compound

revenue

growth rate

during the Terminal

first five year  Gross margin Pre-tax growth rate

(% annual (% of discount since the

growth rate) revenue) rate sixth year

PR R Chengyue Times 5%-20% 18% 17.0% =
A= Hangzhou Wan Yue 3% 27% 17.0% -
REER Dalian Hua'an 10%-18% 33% 17.0% -
IR E B 5 P U B BT /8 A R AT Based on management’s assessment on the recoverable
I Bl & BRI ETE - 72020412 amounts of the subsidiaries acquired, no impairment
A31 B HAELRERS - provision was considered necessary as at 31 December

2020.
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18 ®EFESHNEEIA

REEFBEATSHIA :

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBEFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BRIEE Financial assets:
REEKASEN SR EE Financial assets at amortised cost
B 5 e RIE Trade receivables 22 622,758 356,568
TR IR « e REAM Prepayments, deposits and other
FEUGRIE (MR IETER IR receivables (excluding prepayments
K& FHUR R EILE ) and input VAT to be deducted) 23 486,865 188,498
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 2,504,102 1,882,136
RARBEFABRN Financial assets at fair value through
PRIEE profit or loss 20 450,905 285,441
BARBERAHAM Financial assets at fair value through
ZHRANSREE other comprehensive income 19 52,390 1,000
4,117,020 2,713,643
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20215 2020%F
2021 2020
AR%TR AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TRAE: Financial liabilities:
REEKASENSREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B 5 Rk H e /IR Trade and other payables (excluding
(T RiEETTFe & accrued payroll and other tax
H i fE I8 ) payables) 29 1,505,432 902,102
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 14,439 4,577
1,519,871 906,679

AEEMBEME3 I MLESR T AT
ZERER o 1S HRE RO RKE
SRR LAZECREENREE -

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.1. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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19 RBRAAEBETAHEMZEW 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ANTREE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(i) EBEARBEGTAEMEEBALY (i) Debt investments at FVOCI and Equity investments at
BRI E RIRA 1 BEFT AHAM FVOCI comprise the following investments:
THBANERKREBDEATRER
‘&

HZE12A31BLFE
For the year ended
31 December

20215 20204
2021 2020
ARBTT ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBEE Current assets

EL LEmES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 52,390 =
BN E E AR Total current assets 52,390 =

FREBEE Non-current assets
I EMIRAE S Un-listed equity securities* - 1,000
IEMENEERTR Total non-current assets - 1,000
L HE2021F12A31BILFE - RT LA — t During the year ended 31 December 2021, in addition to previous
KA T RAMNI10%ERIRESN - RAFUEE 10% equity investments in an unlisted company, the Company
T#A LT AR TI0%KARIE - BBIRAR acquired the rest of 90% equity interest in this unlisted company.
BESAHMBESEBANSREENRE MK The investment of financial assets at fair value through other

REAEETH—HMEAT - comprehensive then became a subsidiary under the Group.
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19

BRAAEBEFAHMEE®KR 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ABNETREE @) THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(i) RAXRHEMZERARR Sy
KRR IE (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
BZ12A31BLFEE
For the year ended
31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEWA Investment income 4,980 =
T AH b 2 E U AR &% T EA{=FAE1E Credit loss of debt instruments through
other comprehensive income 71,949 -
REMEERAERN AL BEBE Fair value losses recognised in other
comprehensive income 75,444 -

BRAREBEFAEMEEBAGENR
BXER/RXTLEMES  HEHRER
ERAEMAE - ZFEEFTEHYME
REMET ARFEBTANAAE
EDNERTSEREETE - AREFEZ
SEBTANKDBS RS R RFEL
& U AAREBEFAEBEZEBAG
==1

o

BE2021F12A831HLEFEE > R L
MEFESH  ANEEFAEMEAKA
MEFSTIAMEABRERRNEMEEK
AR AR BEEBESAARE
71,949,0007c A R#75,444,0007T °

Investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are mainly listed bonds
denominated in USD, where the contractual cash flows
are solely principal and interest. The bonds are mainly
issued by property developers and the fair value of such
debt instruments was determined based on quoted price
on market price. The Group held these debt instruments
for both collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling, which were measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, due to the
past due of listed bonds, the Group made amounting
RMB71,949,000 and RMB75,444,000 for credit loss of
debt instruments through other comprehensive income
and Fair value losses recognised in other comprehensive
income separately.
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20 BARBEESFARENEH

'E

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(i) BAARBEFTABZNERE (i) Classification of financial assets at fair value
BEENDE through profit or loss
REEBHATeREESID /R The group classifies the following financial assets at fair
NABEFABZHNSMERE value through profit or loss (FVPL):
. TS RBHKN NGRS . debt investments that do not qualify for
EARnBEGFAEME measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI
W AR ER T A (MsE (Note 19)
19)
. FIEEENEREE &k . equity investments that are held for trading, and
J ERVEESEFRAME . equity investments for which the entity has not
HBAER AR EEKE elected to recognise fair value gains and losses
SE RN ER T o through OCI.
M®12831H
As at 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBEE Current assets
FREBIA Listed debt instruments 217,822 186,748
E5EEm Trust products 27,210 58,548
MBEELRRE Total current assets 245,032 245,296
FREEE Non-current assets
AT AR E R (P ) Convertible loans (Note) 102,166 -
FE @R (FisE) Unlisted preference shares (Note) 20,000 =
EEEm Trust products 75,624 40,145
I8 B EE MR Wealth management products 8,083 -
IEMENEEBRE Total non-current assets 205,873 40,145
Mgk :  #EZE2021F12A31BILFE @ KEFHHE Note:  For the year ended 31 December 2021, Chengdu Xinchengyue

BEEBAMAISEHECCERARRET
BRI R E R - R ERARY 100,000,000
T EFIRE10% © AR ERERIE AR B
Bt ARt ACREE

purchased convertible loans issued by Shanghai Hezong
Chuangzhi Property Agency Co., Ltd. at a total consideration
amounted RMB100,000,000 with an interest rate at 10% per
annum, which are accounted as financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss due to the convertible rights.
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20 ®&A
BE

()

(i)

(iii)

—

AEEFTABERNESHM 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
&) THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)
RAREBETFABEZNSHE (i) Classification of financial assets at fair value
EENSE (&) through profit or loss (Cont'd)
R20219F12 8318 » XEETN As of 31 December 2021, the Group also made
AREAREE20,000tAAEE an investment in the form of ordinary shares with
18 4t 1 ) 3 3 iR AN ] 85 38 A] B (B preferential rights and convertible redeemable preferred
BrERm N ETRE O ARSI shares at a consideration of RMB20,000, which are
ERARBEFABRNESHE accounted as financial assets measured at fair value
=300 through profit or loss.
AR E R D BRI ERE The classification and initial recognition of the convertible
KREERERBAEEERZS® loans require management to analyse certain complex
MEEMNEERXUALRER 2 contract terms and make judgments to determine the
BHER DT ETEENEN classifications of the above financial assets, based on the
R R AL At 2 B DA B E 3t < i Group’s business models of managing these financial
BEMNDHE - AEEREHEBE assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. The
B R R GRS I8 Group identified its various rights and evaluated the
A AL R 2 o financial impacts based on key terms from relevant legal
documents.
REREINRIE (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
RERA - TIEBERER AR During the year, the following losses were recognised in
R e profit or loss.
BZ12A31HLLEE
For the year ended
31 December
20215 20204F
2021 2020
AR¥TR ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BARBEFABZMNESEITA Fair value losses on financial
WA EBEEE (M) instruments at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 11) (126,582) (17,571)

BB ARDREESE

EAASETERAERRERL
BRERKE3 1 - BRAEERD
AEEMFEANFERBENE
# - BE2HEME3S .

(iii)

Risk exposure and fair value measurements

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is
provided in Note 3.1. For information about the methods
and assumptions used in determining fair value please
refer to Note 3.3.
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21 ®E& 21 INVENTORIES
M12H31H
As at 31 December
202145 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
1 R P (B AR 7% B REA Consumables to be used in value-added
services 13,620 13,154
TR Spare parts 12,862 4,286
$HE Merchandise for sales 1,600 95
Hth Others 219 -
28,301 17,535
BB Less: allowance for impairment - -
28,301 17,535
HE2021F12A31 B L EREERR Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended
MM FERARKES63,255,0007T 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB863,255,000 (2020:
(20204 : AE#616,679,0007T) ° #% RMB616,679,000). These were included in cost of sales and cost
SFIBET A SHE AR A R 12 £ AR 75 &9 Bk AN of providing services (Note 7).
R (fEE7) o
22 EZERWFIR 22 TRADE RECEIVABLES
R12H31H
As at 31 December
20214 20204F
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
E 5 e RE (M) Trade receivables (Note (a))
— B 5 (BEE35(d)) — Related parties (Note 35(d)) 195,188 137,529
== — Third parties 515,250 271,436
710,438 408,965
B B 5 RERFIRERER G Less: allowance for impairment of trade
receivables (87,680) (52,397)
622,758 356,568
(a) B 5 EYGRIEE Z R BB (@)  Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
ETERNMEBTERS RIEE services managed under lump sum basis and value-added
AR5 - R BE HIEITE RN Y services. Property management services income under
BRI HUA TR IR MR 0 3 lump sum basis are received in accordance with the term
AR 75 ek M ER 2 E R AR TS of the relevant property service agreements. Service
BB EEERS K income from property management services is due for

A e payment by the property owners upon rendering of services.
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22

EZEWFEE #)

#2021¢&2020¢12ﬁ31 H . ZE=R®
ZHHWE S ERFUBRER ST

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date are as follows:

—F :
M®12H31H
As at 31 December
20215 2020%F
2021 2020
ARET T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1F AR Within 1 year 591,569 322,693
i ZE24E 1 to 2 years 75,782 47,629
2E3F 2 to 3 years 28,900 26,081
3EAF 3 to 4 years 7,924 6,312
AFE 5 4 to 5 years 3,364 2,392
5L E Over 5 years 2,899 3,858
710,438 408,965

MR2021E % 2020512 A318 - féi%rﬁ
WHRIEAARBE - B S5 EKEIE

A EEEEREERER - %%Eiﬁﬁﬁ%
F2 38 (7 Al 765 15 55 4 B8 AR 755 173 22 16 S0 A B
BRI E AEEZERIN AT -

NEEERABBM GRS LERFEIGRAR
ERTBEEERBRGER - HiEiR
RAFMEEZEKGESFERFER
MIEFTMERREER - BFr=EHER
BX  BEZRUBFEREXRNERAR

SR E LA A SHETHHE -  BHEK
FIBREREZEINMES 1.2 R
20214 202012 B31H - HHE 5[k
W IEBRERER T ARK87,680,0007T
N AR#52,397,0007C KR BB © 8
EEEREZ2021F12A31BILEE
B RARE S EBGRIBLEHRIE N -
TEEAGIIKERNE S E R IE M
= BHRUGRIERKEBRRZEAAE
BERER - MRERE R B BEE
SN TEERE AR -

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the trade receivables were
denominated in RMB, and the fair value of trade receivables
approximated their carrying amounts. Property management
services and value-added services are either billed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant services agreements or due for
payment upon the issuance of invoice.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Movements on the
provision for impairment of trade receivables are shown in
Note 3.1.2. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, a provision of
RMB87,680,000 and RMB52,397,000 was made against the
gross amounts of trade receivables. The provision for impairment
increased during the year ended 31 December 2021 due to
the increase of trade receivables balance. For trade receivables
acquired in business combinations, the trade receivables are
recognised at fair value as at the acquisition date and allowance
for impairment reflects the additional expected credit loss after
the acquisition date.
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23 %Eﬁm - BRENHEMEIW 23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

IE RECEIVABLES
M12H31H
As at 31 December
202145 2020%
2021 2020
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0 FEEIE ENER JEENEA
Current  Non-current Current Non-current
HBRHIE Prepayments
NAZEE RINB RS - Utilities and outsourced services 71,620 - 42,869 =
— AR EE RS HFEN — Consumables to be used in
value-added services 22,091 - 6,193 -
et Subtotal 93,711 - 49,062 -
1T HIR B HE TR (E L Input VAT to be deducted 15,728 - 6,845 =
&% (a) Deposits (a) 399,292 1,970 132,344 8,000
E IR Other receivables
— REENHK(Db) — Payments on behalf of property
owners (b) 88,032 - 53,969 -
— Hft - Others 19,808 - 14,378 -
et Subtotal 107,840 - 68,347
#at Total 616,571 1,970 256,598 8,000
R E A ERGRIE K Less: allowance for impairment of
BeRERE other receivables and deposits (22,267) (26) (20,086) (107)
594,304 1,944 236,512 7,893
(a) 20214 K2020F12A318 K& ER (a) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, deposits mainly included deposits

(b)

TESL IR LY 3 B 1 AR A M (71 K T RA S 5 1 Y
e R EFEELm R ELEAH ELE
RENEBREASD - AEEEIRS AR
263,205,000 T 1% 55 43 BR S 75 A& 84 T RS B
L RRREE S A (FiRE35) ©

EA2021¢&2020$12H31 H ZeHIER

REZBNHOYER AR E R BB EKA
EHIE

made with government related bodies for providing property management
services and deposits made with car parking slot owners to secure
the agent role for sale of the car parking slot. Deposits amounted
RMB263,205,000 was disclosed as related parties balances by the Group
due to the car parking slot was owned by related parties (Note 35).

(b) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the amounts represented the payments
on behalf of property owners in respect of mainly utilities and elevator
maintenance costs of the properties.

F-215
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23

24

BAAME - - ZeRAMEK 23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
FIE (@) RECEIVABLES (cont'd)
720214 K2020F12 A318 @ E& &k As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, deposits and other
H b EWGRIEE AAREEHE - receivables were denominated in RMB.
TERTRIE « Re R EAMEKEIE (T8 Movements on the provision for impairment of prepayments,
ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ IE&HQL%?D B HE TE IS E ) deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input
BEREZSTINMEES.1.2 o RERE VAT to be deducted) are shown in Note 3.1.2. The provision for
REZ=2021F12 831 BIEFEEM - impairment increased during the year ended 31 December 2021
REZTEMNFKIE « EE RH M ERFKIE due to the increase of balance of prepayments, deposits and
(T BIETEMNFIE RS TR A #EHILE other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be
) &EERIZ N o deducted).
RERREEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
M®12A31H
As at 31 December
20215 20204F
2021 2020
AR¥TR ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHBRES Cash on hand 781 135
RITRS Cash in banks 2,480,560 1,862,573
X FEaRe Cash in payment platforms 22,761 19,428
2,504,102 1,882,136

Re KRS EENEHOEEEN TS
SHEEHE

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

MW12A31H

As at 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIT usD 16,879 28,644
AR RMB 2,427,371 1,830,031
BT HKD 59,852 23,461
2,504,102 1,882,136
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LN 25 SHARE CAPITAL
RARIR2018F1 H16 B EHEHET The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
Az - REMASIBE  AERAE January 2018. At the date of incorporation, the authorised
51,2007 * 9 /451,200 kR EE share capital is USD51,200 comprising 51,200 ordinary shares of
1.00F TR EBAR - 1:2021F12 A31 USD1.00 each. As at 31 December 2021, the authorised share
B - JAERANA10,000,000 % &R E was 10,000,000 shares at par value of USD0.01.
0.01 T »
BT RA R LB Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
RHEE FER ARBTT
Number of
shares usD’000 RMB’000
R2021F1 A1 H At 1 January 2021 820,049,000 8,200 56,641
Behx (BdaE1) Share Placing (Note 1) 50,000,000 500 3,252
RIR2019F IR T &I Exercise of share option under 2019
T A (FisE2) share option scheme (Note 2) 3,786,000 38 244
5 0] sk sH ARty (PH=E3) Buy-back and cancellation of shares
(Note 3) (3,701,000) (37) (237)
R2021412A31H At 31 December 2021 870,134,000 8,701 59,900

MEE1 0 R2021F3A160  ARABNEEEER
20.80/&7TAC 50,000,000 % & @ AR B AL & K
BRI EE W - 202143 H238 © KD
BETK - NA R BEREROESHMEREF
FEM1,032EBHBT FHERNARKESIESE
TT) °

MisE2 : HZE2021F12A31BLEFE - ETEERE
20194F M AR A =T &I R4 3£3,786,00017 A%
% TEEAERE.18HTT - NATBITHEE
BATSFRIEFE#923,397,48058 0 (HHE R K
AR#19,426,3957T) °

MEE3 . HZE2021F12A31BLEFE - ARAIER K
843,701,000 %A 15 + AR AN £58,527,0007
7T (FHERH AR 48,599,0007T) °

Note 1: On 16 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
the placing agents in relation to the placing of 50,000,000 ordinary shares
at a placing price of HK$20.80 per share. On 23 March 2021, the share
placing was completed. The Company received the net proceeds from
the placing of shares of approximately HKD1,032 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB864 million).

Note 2: During the year ended 31 December 2021, several employees under 2019
share option scheme subscribed 3,786,000 shares in total with exercise
price of HKD6.18 per share. The Company received the net proceeds
from exercise approximately HKD23,397,480 (equivalent to approximately
RMB19,426,395).

Note 3: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company bought back and
cancelled 3,701,000 shares at the cost of HKD58,527,000 (equivalent to
RMB48,599,000 approximately).
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26 f#fE 26 RESERVES
BRARER
FHAEA
2EMBA ==
EERE  RORE HthE NEREE ROET  REEA @it
Financial Employee
Statutory Share Other  assets at Share  Retained
Reserves Premium  reserves Fvocl Trust  earnings Total
ARETR AR®TR ARETRT ARETR AR®TR ARETR AR%ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R202051 810 As at 1 January 2020 6,576 441,226 52,676 - (102,754) 469,840 867,564
2EBA Comprehensive income
ERHE Profit for the year - - - - - 452387 452,387
ARARFARE Dividend paid by the Company
(F3zE31) (Note 31) - (147,258 - - - - (147,258)
BATL@AR (M5E25)  Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 25) - - 10,421 - - - 10,421
AR B ER 3R Share-based payment (Note 27)
(PzE27) - - 41,866 - - - 41,866
HERARBETA Gains on disposal of financial
Hitn 2 EBAR assets at fair value through
SREERN Y other comprehensive income - - - - - 187 187
20206128318 As at 31 December 2020 6,576 293,968 104,963 - (102,754) 922,414 1,225,167
R2021E1818 As at 1 January 2021 6,576 293,968 104,963 - (102,754) 922,414 1,225,167
2EBA Comprehensive income
FERFIE Profit for the year - - - - - 525,455 525,455
BAREBEFAZEBKA Changes in fair value of debt
E’JTif&Iﬁ ARBE  instruments at fair value through
(FizE19) comprehensive income (Note 19) - - - (75,444) - - (75,444)
TE’&;‘DETE%)\EI‘@%@ Credit loss of debt instruments
KAREBEBLARR at fair value through other
B8 (f319) comprehensive income (Note 19) - - - 71,949 - - 71,949
ARARFARE Dividend paid by the Company
(ME31) (Note 31) - (239,819) - - - - (239,819)
BWBARGEERE  Share purchase for non-controlling
EnEERN interests of a subsidiary - - 464 - - - 464
B fix (Firak2s) Share Placing (Note 25) - 861,149 - - - - 861,149
RE2019F 8B E:E]  Exercise of share option under 2019
{TFERAR#E (fi7E25)  share option scheme (Note 25) - - 19,183 - - - 19,183
R REER A Buy-back and cancellation of share - - (48,362) - - - (48362)
BEERGD REE Acquisition of shares for Employee
WER (MEa7) Share Award Scheme (Note 27) - - - - (138,836) - (138,836)
TREFRG & Exercise of unrestricted shares from
FEBIRD (H3E27)  stock shares (Note 27) - (33%3) - - 17,725 - 143712
IR IR AR AR Share-based payment (Note 27)
(BiFE27) - - 8,742 - - - 8,742
R2021%12831H As at 31 December 2021 6,576 911,945 84,990 (3,495) (223,865) 1,447,869 2,224,020
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26

27

R =)

RIREEE R B INEIRE DR
FEBA AR B R AR DA K AN &5 B 35 T R B ffT
BRARMMBEZER  WEBARZAEKH R
FEZRE LBEEERERES  HEE
ZEC RN BRBERESATMELN
50% ° 7220214 K% 2020%12 A31 8 »
REBBFFEE EEHEBEESHESE
D AlAEANRET2,349,000 T A REE
65,173,0007C °

LARAn B B R R4 K
() HWRENS
(i) 2019FBRiE B

RIZEEEAE2019F9 A2
HAEPRZEZR © N2 RN
— IR RS ([2019
FRERES]) - BRI
FERRHERTE - MEERE
AMEE(REES)RH
4 316,000,000 & I%
- AREARFRAN
16,000,000 f& &% M
fE0.001 ETTH MG, © 17
FEABRRKRMNG.18%
T REBREE EXRY
EBER AR RS EE
BRANEERRRAER
HEELERNER -

RRAEE(PREES)R
HHEREmS @ AR
EFEREBEAXEZE .
RAERE RSB B 2R = 5
FEIBBIZEH IR
RHEBHE2019F9H2H
%1218 A8 - 2418 A 36
&8 A 5 5l &8 R/
40% ~ 30% }30% ° 3§
KREBHBBEHZE2024
F10F19B B -
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RESERVES (cont'd)

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations governing foreign
investment enterprise established in the PRC and the articles
of association of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer certain portion of their
profit after taxation to the statutory reserve fund, until the
accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their respective
registered capital. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
RMB72,349,000 and RMB65,173,000 of retained earnings
should be transferred to statutory reserve fund.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
(a) Share Option Schemes
(i) 2019 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 2 September 2019,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2019 Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share
Option Scheme, a total number of 16,000,000
shares options were granted to selected current
employees (including directors) to subscribe
for 16,000,000 shares of USDO0.001 each in
the share capital of the Company with exercise
price of HKD6.18 per share. The shares options
granted are for recognition of the contribution
of employees and to provide incentives for
the employees to continuously make greater
contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in
the future.

For shares options granted to employees
(including directors), subject to the meeting of
the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested
12 months, 24 months and 36 months after the
grant day dated 2 September 2019 with 40%,
30% and 30% of the share options, separately.
The share options are valid from the vesting date
to 19 October 2024.
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27 LUROAEBNMNR @ 27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
(a) BRESE(E) (a) Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(i) 2019FBIREE (i) 2019 Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
(8&)

BIE2019F R RS
EEEREREDAR
8§2019F 9 A2 HM A A
BEA42.15BEE T
(HERARK37.768
Br) WEBRM=IA
REBRN ([ZBAE
X EE ©

REZE2019F12 831 H
I FEFR R ERENE
Rl ABUE B IE ¢

a) RERELE -
W 201949 A2
HZ2024%10H
19 B Al 17 /9 5%
B B A o

b) 1TE(E : 6.1878
JT

o) FH A 2019
F9H2H

d) ZIHAHE : 20244
108198

e) R L B AR
& : 5.86/87C

f) AR e TR
H (B 1% K 08
60.3%

9) EEH KRB W=
& 1.95%

N ZEB A E
1.15%

The fair value of the shares options granted
under the 2019 Share Option Scheme as at 2
September 2019, the grant date, was HKD42.15
million (equivalent to RMB37.76 million), and
was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing
Model (the “Binomial Model”).

The model inputs for options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2019 included:

a) options are granted for no consideration

and vest options are exercisable from 2

September 2019 to 19 October 2024.

b) exercise price: HKD6.18

Q) grant date: 2 September 2019

d) expiry date: 19 October 2024

e) share price at grant date: HKD5.86

f) expected price volatility of the Company's
shares: 60.3%

g) expected dividend yield: 1.95%

h) risk-free interest rate: 1.15%
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URGEBERNVSR @
(a) BRETE (B
(i) 2019FBEIRELE

(i)

()

HZE2021F12 83181t
FE - B171£3,786,000
1‘H%Hx$&*j15€§émﬁﬂ§i
M E @R (F3E25) -
480, ooo{\ﬁﬁﬂxﬁélﬁ
SRER ML - 7K2021
F12H318 © 201948
AR #EETEIIB R M R A1T R
7B A% 4E 5 9,785,00018

(20204 : 14,051,000
3)

2020F % —IEEIRE
=12

BIEBHA202056 8
S0OHBMARE AR
AR A — TE BE AR R AT &

(12020 5 —HBERHE
sTHEI1) ° RIE20205FF
—IBREAR AT &) - (AIALER
EEREE (RIEES)
Hljéﬁz 960,00017 B8
R - ARBAQF R
Mﬂz,%o,oooﬂxﬂxﬁ
f80.001 3 JT A %15

FE AT MD19.907%8
oL RBRER ERY
EEELHNER R SEE
BARNEERKRAZR
BEELERER -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

()

(ii)

2019 Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

During the year ended at 31 December 2021,
3,786,000 options were exercised and the same
quantity of ordinary shares were issued (Note
25). 480,000 options were cancelled due to
employee resignations. As at 31 December 2021,
the outstanding option under 2019 Share Option
Scheme were 9,785,000 (2020: 14,051,000).

2020 First Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 30 June 2020, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2020 First Share Option Scheme”). Under the
2020 First Share Option Scheme, a total number
of 2,960,000 shares options were granted to
selected current employees (including directors) to
subscribe for 2,960,000 shares of USD0.001 each
in the share capital of the Company with exercise
price of HKD19.90 per share. The shares options
granted are for recognition of the contribution
of employees and to provide incentives for
the employees to continuously make greater
contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in
the future.
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27

BARR 1 5 B 1 B9 A4 3R (1)
fE AT 8 ()

(a)

(i)

2020 F 5 —HEEIRIE
& (&)

RREE(BEES)R
LHERENS - ARE
FERAZEZE R
HHREE R E B B A =R F
EEB]IEH  ATRR
HHHI202046 A30H
%1218 8 - 2418 A K36
&8 A 5 5l & B R s
30% * 30% K 40% ° i
KEEFEBHH=2024
F10A19BAK - F
ZH30% ERENEE
2021128318 IEFE
ORI o

X

BIK2020F 5 —HE K
HEET B3R A BB AR R
= B EI202046 A30
B AREMER25.35
BEEAT(HERAR
23 16B8IL) r WE
BEM BN EBEN
([ZIEXEX]D EBEE -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

(ii)

2020 First Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

For shares options granted to employees
(including directors), subject to the meeting of
the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested
12 months, 24 months and 36 months after the
grant day dated 30 June 2020 with 30%, 30%
and 40% of the share options, separately. The
share options are valid from the vesting date
to 19 October 2024. Second 30% of the share
options were forfeited during the year ended at
31 December 2021.

The fair value of the share options granted
under the 2020 First Share Option Scheme as at
30 June 2020, the grant date, was HKD25.35
million (equivalent to RMB23.16 million) and
was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing
Model (the “Binomial Model"”).
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27 LUROAEBNMNR @) 27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
(a) BRESE(E) (a) Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(i) 2020 % —EEIRE (i) 2020 First Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

Tl (%)

REZE2020F6 A30H The model inputs for options granted during the

LE7S{E A A B AR A A six months ended 30 June 2020 included:

RRAL ) \BUHEB15 ¢

a) RERELE - a) options are granted for no consideration
W HR2020F6 A and vest options are exercisable from 30
30HE2024%F10 June 2020 to 19 October 2024.

A19 BRI 1T{F &Y
57 B R AR o

b) 1TfE(E - 19.907% b) exercise price: HKD19.90
7T

o) HHE B 2020 0 grant date: 30 June 2020
F6HA30H

d) E|HIR : 2024%F d) expiry date: 19 October 2024
10H19H

e) R H B H AR e) share price at grant date: HKD19.90
{8 : 19.90% T

f) PiN/NEETIE & M= O f) expected price volatility of the company's
Hi (B 1% K 18 - shares: 58.1%
58.1%

g) SR SN g) expected dividend yield: 0.99%
* :0.99%

h) TR A R h) risk-free interest rate: 0.34%

0.34%



F-224

IR RBEEBRADE 2021FF
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

e IR R AR Y R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

27 UBROHRERNER @
(a) FBmAEE (E)

(iii) 2020F FE = IEERE
i -]

BEBEA2020F11
A10BRAZR A2
AR —HB R ERT &
([20206 5 — A HE IR E
FTEl1) - RIE2020F F
ZIEERER S m—
HEmBREANREE R
4 4£1,350,0001) B &
- UREARFRAR
A 1,350,0000% & K m
f50.001 =TT, © 17
FE AT 7D20.857%5
UL REBRERERY
EEER R B R RS EE
BANEERRRAER
BN ERER -

@ﬁﬁ@%(a%é%)
HrERENS - BARA
FEEAZEZE vWH
HEBE A ERFE
[BiE | E4 - 772020
F6H30H%12@A
2418 A & 3618 A 5 5l &
EBERERN30% * 30%
RA4a0% - BIRER R
BEIZE2024%10819H
B o B _H#30% BB
HEREE2021512 A31
HiEFERZU -

W

BIE2020F 5 B
REET B A FE AR P 1R
B HI2020411 A10H
HAREEAI1.66B8
BT (HERARK .91
BEL)  UHEBRMN—
EAEEERX ([ZEBEX
B ERE -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(iii)) 2020 Second Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 10 November
2020, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2020 Second Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2020 Second Share Option
Scheme, a total number of 1,350,000 shares
options were granted to one selected current
employee to subscribe for 1,350,000 shares
of USD0.001 each in the share capital of the
Company with exercise price of HK$20.85
per share. The shares options granted are for
recognition of the contribution of employees
and to provide incentives for the employees to
continuously make greater contributions for the
Group’s long-term growth in the future.

For shares options granted to employees
(including directors), subject to the meeting of
the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested
12 months, 24 months and 36 months after 30
June 2020 with 30%, 30% and 40% of the share
options, separately. The share options are valid
from the grant date to 19 October 2024. Second
30% of the share options were forfeited during
the year ended at 31 December 2021.

The fair value of the share options granted under
the 2020 Second Share Option Scheme as at 10
November 2020, the grant date, was HKD11.66
million (equivalent to RMB9.91 million) and was
determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing
Model (the “Binomial Model”).



IR EBER AR 2021F 5 F-225
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report ' ~

e IR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

27 LUROAEBNMNR @) 27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
(a) BRESE(E) (a) Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(iii) 2020 5 —IEIEIRE (iii) 2020 Second Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
Tl (%)
REZE2020F12A31H The model inputs for options granted during
1= A & e B R the twelve months ended 31 December 2020
FUTE T g A\ BUR B IE included:
a) RERELE - a) options are granted for no consideration
W 2020611 A and vest options are exercisable from 10
10HZE20244F10 November 2020 to 19 October 2024.

A19 BRI 1T{FE /Y
SREERE -

b) 1T{E(E : 20.85/8 b) exercise price: HKD20.85
7T
Q) FH A 2020 c) grant date: 10 November 2020
F11/10H
d) E|HAR : 2024%F d) expiry date: 19 October 2024
10H19H
e) R H B H AR e) share price at grant date: HKD20.85
{8 : 20.85% T
f) AN/NESTIE & i O f) expected price volatility of the company's
Hi (B 18 K 18 - shares: 57.48%
57.48%
g) B KRB K= g) expected dividend yield: 0.99%
1 0.99%
h) T & A R h) risk-free interest rate: 0.35%
0.35%
T8 ER (B8R I8 TR IR E 52 The expected price volatility is based on the
R R (AR 4 B AR A 1 F/I 24 historic volatility (based on the remaining life of
FHIRTE ) REEMET the options), adjusted for any expected changes
WE RSN AFRER to future volatility due to publicly available
AR AR AR B A TR information.

2D -
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BIEHAA2021F7A
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AEE (RIEES)BKE
& #7,700,0001 B B
- LAREARQFRAR
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0.01E MG - 171E(E
BERK%H23.608 T -
REBREEERZES
EERMERRAEREE B
REERREPAERERES
fEERER

RREE(PEES)E
HHEREMS - AR
AEFEEBEAEXEZE
RAEE =SB B 2R =5
FEIABIEH AR
EHBE20219F7818
%1218 8 - 2418 A 36
& A5 5l & B B AR
30% ~ 30% K& 40% - &
BRESFEBBHZE2024
F10H19B B - £
—H30% EREREZ
202112 A31HIEFE
WL

BIE2021 FHEBREE
REMBRENRKEL B
882021 F7 R 1HBM AR
EEA60.18AEHB T
(HERAR®S0.16 8
Br) WEBRM_IF
REBRN ([ZmEHE
N)EE -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

(iv)

2021 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 1 July 2021, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2021 First Share Option Scheme”). Under the
2021 Share Option Scheme, a total number of
7,700,000 shares options to selected current
employees (including directors) to subscribe
for 7,700,000 shares of USDO0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company with exercise
price of HKD23.60 per share. The shares options
granted are for recognition of the contribution
of employees and to provide incentives for
the employees to continuously make greater
contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in
the future.

For shares options granted to employees
(including directors), subject to the meeting of
the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested
12 months, 24 months and 36 months after the
grant day dated 1 July 2021 with 30%, 30%
and 40% of the share options, separately. The
share options are valid from the vesting date to
19 October 2024. First 30% of the share options
were forfeited during the year ended at 31
December 2021.

The fair value of the share options granted under
the 2021 Share Option Scheme as at 1 July 2021,
the grant date, was HKD60.18 million (equivalent
to RMB50.16 million) and was determined
by adopting the Binomial Pricing Model (the
“Binomial Model”).
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27 URGAEBRBSR @ 27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
(a) BRESE(E) (a) Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(iv) 2021 FEREE (iv) 2021 Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

()

REE2021F12 8318
IEFER A BB R AR
Al ABUEBIE ¢

a) REREBELE
WH2021F7 A1

HZE2024410A
198 B B
FERRHE -

b) 1T{E(E : 23.6078
JT

Q) REBEH 2021
#7818

d) FHAR : 20244
108 19H

e) R E B AR
& : 23.60/8 7T

f) A AR ) TR
Hi (B 18R 1R
50.68%

9) T8 H R Bk &=
K :1.4539%

h) TR B R R
0.43%

TEHAE AR R T IR IR 2
B (AR 9 P B A 0 6
FHIEE) HEEMF
W EAZATEUSH AR E
A8 B A AAT 3 R OB B Y TR
HEH -

The model inputs for options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2021 included:

a) options are granted for no consideration
and vest options are valid from 1 July 2021
to 19 October 2024.

b) exercise price: HKD23.60

) grant date: 1 July 2021

d) expiry date: 19 October 2024

e) share price at grant date: HKD23.60

f) expected price volatility of the company’s
shares: 50.68%

o)) expected dividend yield: 1.4539%

h) risk-free interest rate: 0.43%

The expected price volatility is based on the
historic volatility (based on the remaining life of
the options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility due to publicly available
information.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(b)

Share Award Scheme

On 15 November 2019, the Board resolved to adopt a
Share Award Scheme for its employees in order to provide
incentive for the Selected Participants to continuously
make greater contributions for the Group’s long-term
growth in the future. The aggregated maximum number
of Shares underlying all grants made pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme (excluding Award Shares that have
been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme) must not exceed 1.25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date and the
Share Award Scheme is effective for 10 years from the
Adoption Date unless early terminated by the Board.

Based on the resolution, the Company entrusted the
Trustee to purchase existing Shares in the open market
based on the overall remuneration incentive plan. The
Trustee holds such Shares on behalf of the relevant
Selected Participants on trust, until such Shares are vested
with the relevant Selected Participants in accordance with
the Scheme Rules. The trust is consolidated in accordance
with Note 2.2.1. As at 31 December 2021, the Company
had entrusted the trustee to purchase an aggregate of
16,525,000 shares from the open market for the Share
Award Scheme at a total consideration of approximately
RMB223,865,000.

(i) 2020 First Share Award Scheme

On 30 June 2020, 5,000,000 shares were granted
to selected current employees (including directors)
under the Share Award Scheme with the payment
of the grant price of HKD9.95 per share. The
number of shares granted is determined based on
the Share Award Grantee's position, experience,
years of service, performance and contribution to
the Group.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(b)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

()

(ii)

2020 First Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

For shares granted to employees (including
directors), subject to the meeting of the criteria
of annual individual performance reaching at
least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months,
24 months and 36 months after the grant day
dated 30 June 2020 with 30%, 30% and 40% of
the share award scheme, separately.

Share price at grant date is HKD19.9 and the
fair value of the shares granted on 30 June 2020
was HKD49.75 million (equivalent to RMB45.44
million).

2020 Second Share Award Scheme

On 10 November 2020, 750,000 shares were
granted to one selected current employee under
the Share Award Scheme with the payment of the
grant price of HKD10.43 per share. The number
of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee's position, experience, years
of service, performance and contribution to the
Group.

For shares granted to employees (including
directors), subject to the meeting of the criteria
of annual individual performance reaching at
least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months,
24 months and 36 months after the grant day
dated 11 November 2020 with 30%, 30% and
40% of the share award scheme, separately.

F-229



F-230

IR RBEEBRADE 2021FF
S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report

e IR R AR Y R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

27 HRGHBEBHNR @
(b) MRDERBEEE (H)
(i) 2020FE =B 752
Bzt & (&)

i B HRIR%{E 520.85
T 2020411 A 11
BREBRDARBES
7.82B &8 (BHERA
R¥6.64HETT) °

2021 F R 17 22 BT 2

®2021F7H318 ' &
NS SR
KORERMTEEES (BREE
=) & 2,300,000 %A%
D BREBARERRKRG
11.8870 - BEZ KD
B TR I SR B AR
ARBRAL » &8s - RFEF
B RARHASEZEH
B EE °

(iii)

REEE (REES)R
HREOmE @ AFAE
EEAZEEZE - RIAA
FEBHMENFEE
i S AT B
20217 A1 B% 121
H 2488 k36f@H »
Bl 5% B A 1 22 ) AT 81 /Y
30% ~ 30% % 40% °

REBHAORER11.8
BT RI2021F7 A1 H
REBRGOHAREBER
27148 8B T (HBER
AR¥2262HETT) °

27

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(b)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

2020 Second Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

Share price at grant date is HKD20.85 and the fair
value of the shares granted on 11 November 2020
was HKD7.82 million (equivalent to RMB6.64
million).

2021 Share Award Scheme

On 31 July 2021, 2,300,000 shares were granted
to selected current employees (including directors)
under the Share Award Scheme with the payment
of the grant price of HKD11.8 per share. The
number of shares granted is determined based on
the Share Award Grantee's position, experience,
years of service, performance and contribution to
the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including
directors), subject to the meeting of the criteria
of annual individual performance reaching at
least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months,
24 months and 36 months after the grant day
dated 1 July 2021 with 30%, 30% and 40% of
the share award scheme, separately.

Share price at grant date is HKD11.8 and the
fair value of the shares granted on 1 July 2021
was HKD27.14 million (equivalent to RMB22.62
million).
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
(b) Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)
(iii) 2021 Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recognised RMB8,742,000 (2020:
RMB41,866,000) expenses in relation to the above
Share Option Schemes and Share Award Schemes
to the current employees (including directors).

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
several employees exercised unrestricted
shares from stock shares with total amount of
RMB14,372,000.

REERTRZRE 28 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE
M®12A31H
As at 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RETHF (B8) B RES Investment in Wuxingyuechong
BRATMIKRE Technology Services Company Limited 4,000 =
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On 9 August 2021, Xinchengyue (Chengdu), Wusheng
(Shanghai) Energy Equipment Technology Co., Ltd., and GCIP
Chunshu Investment Partnership entered into a Cooperation
Investment Agreement, pursuant to which each of the parties
to the said agreement agreed to form the Joint Venture in the
PRC for the purpose of developing applications in automobile
and bicycle charging scenarios based on urban space to meet
customers’ needs and enhance service satisfaction.
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29 EZREMENRE

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

MW12A31H
As at 31 December

202145 2020%
2021 2020
AR®T R AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
b FEENE ENEA JEENEA
Current  Non-current Current  Non-current

E 5 EMNFE (i) Trade payables (Note (a))
=Vl ~ Third parties 536,875 - 296,887 =

H o e 508 Other payables
— B ER - Accrued expenses 157,196 - 113,572 -
— Amounts collected on behalf of
— REZWERFIE property owners 515,496 - 448,694 =
- Consideration payables for
— WERBAREMHNE acquisition of subsidiaries 192,731 92,857 28,853 =
— At - Others 10,277 - 14,096 -
875,700 92,857 605,215 -
e Accrued payroll 232,566 - 178,204 -
Hib e Other tax payables 84,219 - 54,349 =
1,729,360 92,857 1,134,655 =
(a) R2021F K% 202012 A31H - (a) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis
ENBEZENHNE S EMNFIERN of the trade payables based on invoice date were are
BREEOMIT : follows:
R12831H
As at 31 December

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥ET T ARBETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1A Within 1 year 517,139 294,386
158246 1 to 2 years 17,999 1,400
2E3F 2 to 3 years 814 523
3FNUE Over 3 years 923 578

536,875 296,887
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)
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(b) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount
of trade and other payables balances are all denominated

in RMB.

() Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within

1 year of recognition.

(d) The carrying amount of trade and other payables

balances are considered to be the same as their fair

values, due to their short-term nature.

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets in the consolidated statements
of financial position was as follows:

M®12831H
As at 31 December
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥ET T ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETIBEE ¢ Deferred tax assets:
— HBiB12{E R B K EIRIELEFIEEE - Deferred tax asset to be recovered
after more than 12 months - -
— 12 AR EIRIEEFRIEE E — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
within 12 months 67,712 58,142
BEERIAE EMREE Total deferred tax assets 67,712 58,142
RIS AR TSR EHA & Set-off of deferred tax liabilities
pursuant to set-off provisions (13,203) (175)
FEIEFTBE EFE Net deferred tax assets 54,509 57,967
BEXERIBEBE : Deferred tax liabilities:
— B2 A B K EIMIELEFEA®E - Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
after more than 12 months 75,316 -
— 1218 A MR EIREETE & & — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
within 12 months 35,262 42,926
BEERIA S EMREE Total deferred tax liabilities 110,578 42,926
BEE A EEHREEHIBEAE Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant
to set-off provisions (13,203) (175)
BERIAS EFE Net deferred tax liabilities 97,375 42,751
ERIE (BB, BEFS Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets — net (42,866) 15,216
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30

ELEFTBH @) 30

TEEBER—HFEZ EHEE - 52
2021 FIFFEMBEEMSHEERAR
BB -

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year ended 2021, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as

follows:
ERIEFTBHREE Deferred income tax assets
AR Eite 2QAEEER HEEE R -
Allowance
on doubtful Accrued Fair value Lease
debts payroll losses liabilities Provision Total
ARETRE AR¥TrR AR®TR ARETr ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021%1581A As at 1 January 2021 24,492 28,536 4,520 233 361 58,142
FAGEZARAR Credited to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive
income 7,691 3,914 (2,831) 378 52 9,204
WK BAR (F15E32)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) 366 - - - - 366
R2021%128318 At 31 December 2021 32,549 32,450 1,689 611 413 67,712
R2020%1581A As at 1 January 2020 12,239 28,010 - 146 79 40,474
FAGAZERAR Credited to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive
income 5,430 526 4,520 87 282 10,845
WERELA] Acquisition of subsidiaries 6,823 - = = = 6,823
20205128318 At 31 December 2020 24,492 28,536 4,520 233 361 58,142
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30 EEREHR 8 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
EBEFRBHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
REFANE WEHEARA EREEE @t
Withholding
tax for Acquisition of  Right-of-use
dividend subsidiaries assets Total
AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Fy=£32)
(Note 32)
R2021FE1818 As at 1 January 2021 25,889 16,862 175 42,926
Nk B&HGEZERAR Charged to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income - (3,529) 96 (3,433)
WerERE A R (HE32) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) - 71,085 - 71,085
20216128318 At 31 December 2021 25,889 84,418 271 110,578
#20206181H As at 1 January 2020 13,428 - 102 13,530
A/ (HRE) &FE Credited/(Charged) to the consolidated
FHEBAEK statements of comprehensive income 12,461 (718) 73 11,816
GG Acquisition of subsidiaries = 17,580 = 17,580

R2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 25,889 16,862 175 42,926
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax liabilities (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2021, RMB25,889,000 deferred
income tax liabilities (2020: RMB25,889,000) have
been recognised for the withholding tax that would be
payable upon remittance, in respect of a portion of the
unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
attributable to the investors outside PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax
liabilities of RMB58,348,000 (2020: RMB58,348,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax
that would be payable upon remittance, in respect
of the unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries attributable to the investors outside PRC
amounting to RMB583,480,000 (2020: RMB583,480,000)
as such profits are intended to be reinvested. As
at 31 December 2021, the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group have undistributed earnings of approximately
RMB1,618,824,000, which, if paid out as dividends,
would be subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An
assessable temporary difference exists, but no deferred
tax liability has been recognised as the parent entity is
able to control the timing of distributions of dividends
from the PRC subsidiary and is not expected to distribute
these profits in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profit is
probable. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
RMB 154,000 (2020: RMB131,000) in respect of tax losses
(2020: RMB528,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. Tax losses of subsidiaries operated
in the PRC could be carried forward for a maximum of
five years.



HBIRBHEEER DR 2021FF5H

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 2021 Annual Report
A - 23
e IR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HZ=2021412 A31HLEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
iz B 31 DIVIDENDS
BZE12A31MBLEE
For the year ended
31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AAEEIRAIRE (FisE)) Dividends declared by the Company
(Note (a)) 239,819 147,258
— M R AR A IR AR M A 2 Y Dividends paid by a subsidiary to non-
A2 (FI=E(b)) controlling interests (Note (b)) 3,103 =
242,922 147,258

2020 F O RHAIR E B R &R
AR 275 TEEARR A
7R2021F6 A28 HE/THRER
BAERE LHE B ARK
239,819,0007T ° #% % B3I A&
mERR - BE2021F12 A
318 ZREEBERN °

MR2022F3A25HETHE
Eggxl ETEREAR
HuBERKEFRITBERA
R¥0.1557T89202 1 F R B4 f%
B oo R IR B I R It B
BHEFIIIERMARE - A
REMR SR 2N A R FE [ A% SR E F
AE EHERIIIEB E£2022
FI12A3MBILEFENFER

o
N

A A A KB A A B A ) AR
RIRZEHEZ2020F12 A31H
IEFEHEMAI50% ° 7] [\ FEE
BREEZIENSBEAARKE
3,103,0007T ©

(a)

(b)

A final dividend in respect of 2020 of RMB0.275 per
ordinary share, amounting to RMB239,819,000 was
approved at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28 June 2021. The dividend is reflected as an
appropriation of share premium. As of 31 December
2021, the dividend had been fully paid.

At a Board meeting held on 25 March 2022, the directors
proposed a final dividend for 2021 of RMBO0.155 per
ordinary share using the share premium account. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in these financial statements, but will be reflected as
an appropriation of reserves for the year ending 31
December 2022 upon approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Chengyue Times, a subsidiary of the Company,
distributed 50% of its profit for the year ended 31
December 2020 to the shareholders. The distributable
amount for non-controlling interests was RMB3,103,000.
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32

W iEH B L B 32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
P B B
HUEEH KB B RE %%
% of equity
interest
Acquiree Acquisition date acquired  Consideration Business
AR%R
% RMB
IR 202145 NEERRY
Shandong Lead May 2021 55% 28,868,000 Property management services
E2IRYES 202146 MEETE R
Xiangcheng Property June 2021 80% 40,000,000 Property management services
REME 202157 NEEER
Liangshi Property July 2021 80% 59,920,000 Property management services
EMNEZ 202158 NEERRY
Guizhou Bajie August 2021 65% 50,050,000 Property management services
E B k% 202111 A4 ESRE v
Yantai Yongle November 2021 70% 72,272,000 Property management services
FRAR 2021512 4 RZ R
Kangjia Bao'an December 2021 90% 8,162,748  Security services
BRER 20214128 BHRH
Xuefu Catering December 2021 80% 145,200,000 Catering services
HME 2021512 8 NERER RS
Suzhou Baochuan December 2021 65% 58,500,000 Property management services
462,972,748

BERE FMEBEEEFERBEN
BT

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired

and goodwill are as follows:

st
Total
ARBT T
RMB’000
BERE Purchase consideration
EEEANES Cash payment
— 2021412 A31 BRI&ZE — Settled before 31 December 2021 189,956
— AFERER2021F12A318 — Outstanding for current year acquisition
BRI as at 31 December 2021 273,016
HEERE Total purchase consideration 462,972
— FFEERER2021F12A318 — Outstanding for previous year acquisition
EE N as at 31 December 2021 12,571

475,543
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WEEKT B 7] (&) 32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
Wi A &
Acquisition dates
ARBT T
RMB’000
ReRREEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 44,010
B Z W RIE Trade receivables 82,209
TERTFIE © e RHEAEKFRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 97,084
7E Inventories 617
M - BB R (MisE16(a) Property, plant and equipment (Note 16(a)) 10,379
mEE (fsE17) Intangible assets (Note 17) 294,778
BARBEFTAEBGNEEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,000
HitnIEme & E Other non-current assets 1,185
EERIEE E (5E30) Deferred tax assets (Note 30) 366
FE < 5RIE K H b FE S 5RIE Payables and other payables (97,261)
AHBaE Contract liabilities (16,222)
BNHAFRS i B & Current income tax liabilities (17,511)
REHIEE E (MFE30) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) (71,085)
FERTRR B Dividend payable (44,177)
292,372
0 FEFERR A S Less: non-controlling interest (76,292)
o R (fIEE17) Add: goodwill (Note 17) 246,892
462,972
WHEIR @M Cash outflow on acquisitions:
IR #EEMRRE Total considerations settled by cash (189,956)
B RIRERE Dividend paid to the original shareholders (18,884)
FTUCEE FT B A R M B IR & Cash acquired in the subsidiaries acquired 44,010
W B3R & HF 5 Cash outflow on acquisitions — net (164,830)

RO EWET S - AR ERBRE(E
T B T 38 31 1 2 0 b ) RSB S 1
RS -

HEZAWEBHHEE2021F12 A31
BIEFE @ kBB RASEE TR
WA R A Rl A AR #5145,948,000
TR AR¥17,746,0007C °

HUEEE R2021F1 A1B%E  HE
2021F 12 A31 HIEFEMEGZEEEEIK
A5 A R% 438,698,000 T R E =
2021412 31 HIEFERKR TS AT
FE A1 hn A R #525,813,0007T °

BEAFANSREAXHNTHE
RARFABRBERBENSANES - £
FLBEIR B &SRR, o
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For the above acquisitions, the Group elected to recognise
the non-controlling interests at its proportionate share of the
acquired net identifiable assets.

The acquired business contributed revenues of RMB145,948,000
and profit of RMB17,746,000 to the Group for the year from the
respective acquisition dates to 31 December 2021.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021, consolidated
pro-forma revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
have been RMB438,698,000 higher and profit before income
tax for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB25,813,000 higher.

The goodwill is attributable to the market expansion in various
regions or business and the high profitability of the acquired
business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.
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33 HREREH 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) RETBFASEELTFHR (a) Net cash generated from operating activities
BZ12A31HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December
202145 20204
2021 2020
ARBT T ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
bR P15 25 B A B Profit before income tax 741,676 636,389
K Adjustments for:
— BAFIBREREEHHHSE  — Amortisation of non-current portion
of prepayments 107 1,448
— M BREREREAR — Depreciation of property, plant and
FREEENE (fE16) equipment and right of use assets
(Note 16) 14,470 8,562
— IR EEEFAIFZ — LAIZRID — Non-cash employee benefits expense
RERER R (FiEE27) — share-based payments (Note 27) 8,742 41,866
—EmpEEEE (ME17) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17) 18,504 5,494
—amRENEEREEE — Net impairment losses on financial
HEE (M13£3.1.2) and contract assets (Note 3.1.2) 111,232 20,581
— EWE - BERERED — Net (gains)/losses on disposal of
(Wzs) /BT RE property, plant and equipment
(M$5E11) (Note 11) (1.310) 50
— B ARBEFAEZENEE - Net fair value losses on financial
BENARBEERFHE assets at fair value through
(PfFsE11) profit or loss (Note 11) 126,582 17,571
— [N SHRFEE (f5E11) — Net foreign exchange losses (Note 11) 10,491 5,414
— BAESEAN (iEE12) ~ Financial costs (Note 12) 337 325
— AR EEFAEBZIHER - Interest income from financial assets
BEREARBEETA at fair value through profit or loss
Ht2ERANCREE and financial assets at fair value
FIF 2 (FF5E9) through other comprehensive
income (Note 9) (49,150) (38,687)
EiEE#T Changes in working capital:
-FE — Inventories (10,149) (6,209)
—ZEMIERBI D — Non-current portion of deposits 7,215 (2,277)
—BHNEE — Contract assets (44,066) (118,548)
— E F W8 — Trade receivables (219,264) (30,795)
— TENRIE - ke REM — Prepayments, deposits and other
e A receivables (240,622) (100,112)
— Bt — Provisions 258 1,412
—aHNEaE — Contract liabilities 131,743 216,403
— B REAMEN IR — Trade and other payables 306,647 218,188

913,443 877,075
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33 BREaRnEs 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) FRERERBMETE (b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
M12H31H
As at 31 December
202145 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
W A E Acquisition of right-of-use assets 16,083 3,094
VAR BERERI IR (FizE27)  Share-base payments (Note 27) 8,742 41,866
24,825 44,960
() FEERAGHE () Net debt reconciliation
TEE SR &R EAEAEA This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
BT RFEEES - movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.
R12831H
As at 31 December
202145 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Net debt:
He MIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,504,102 1,882,136
HEAE Lease liabilities (14,439) (4,577)

FEE Net debt 2,489,663 1,877,559
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33
(c)

RER () 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)
FEEAGR (E) () Net debt reconciliation (Cont'd)
REeRALEEY HE @t
Cash and cash
equivalents Leases Total
ARETR ARETR AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R2021E1 A1 BRF AR Net debt as at 1 January 2021 1,882,136 (4,577) 1,877,559
RenE Cash flows 632,457 6,558 639,015
RN E R E New lease agreement entered into - (16,083) (16,083)
HMERX Interest expenses - (337) (337)
EREHUEIRE LA EEY  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
iof- = cash equivalents (10,491) - (10,491)
R2021F12A31BEFAE Net debt as at 31 December 2021 2,504,102 (14,439) 2,489,663
202041 A1 BHEEE Net debt as at 1 January 2020 1,339,092 (7,700) 1,331,392
Rene Cash flows 548,458 6,676 555,134
T MRS New lease agreement entered into = (3,228) (3,228)
FERAX Interest expenses = (325) (325)
EXEHURERALZEN  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
iof- 2= cash equivalents (5,414) = (5,414)
722020412 831 BEEAHE  Net debt as at 31 December 2020 1,882,136 (4,577) 1,877,559
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3 FAHBIE 34 COMMITMENTS
(a) WE&EE (a) Investment commitment
R2021F &2020412 A31 As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, committed
H @ AGEEREWT : investments are as follows:
M®12831H
As at 31 December
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REEE R EH RN E Committed investments in an associate 84,000 =

(b)

KedEA® - FREAA
A

AN ES BB IR S 0 BUH AR & A 4Y
HAMAZRETIRESE - AN
NTF—ZRF  BRZHAYD
ThELRAE 5 52 B n] R HR 4
RIFEMEELD -

H2019%1 A1 8# » XEEE
RZENERRERAEEE -
LT EH R EEBERERI -

(b)

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases offices and staff dormitories under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 and 5 years, and the majority of
lease agreements are signed with related parties and
renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-
of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term and
low-value leases as below.

MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

1FR

No later than 1 year 72 96
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35 EFE

(a)

(b)

25

BB RN ERES NE
%

ARARBERRAR
Infinity Fortune Development
Limited + 7272 A5 5 &8 5E & BF
SEMAL o RAQ A &ARER
BREA/ELRE  HEBLRF
AR -

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Names and relationship with related parties

The Ultimate Holding Company of the Company is Infinity
Fortune Development Limited, which was incorporated
in British Virgin Islands. The Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wang and the
business is mainland China.

BHLE RS (b) Transactions with related parties
BZE12A31HLEE
For the year ended
31 December
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARET T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
12 AR 75 Provision of services
— FhRAEEFNER — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 1,313,023 1,008,158
—ETRAENGERIERE — Joint ventures and associates of
Mr. Wang 185,667 222,482
1,498,690 1,230,640
RITERF SR Interest income from deposit with
a bank
—REEETARENESR — Entities significantly influenced by
Mr. Wang - 7
RARE T AR B Payment on behalf of the Group by
related parties
— FREEFIRNELRE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 11,921 37,119
HEABHENT ERX Interest expenses related to lease
liabilities
— FREEFINERE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 84 325

LARBEREMRZNERS
RIZA K77 HEE & E W R E

=

E °

The prices for the above service fees and other
transactions were determined in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed by the contract parties.
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
() Key management compensation

Compensations for key management other than those for

FETH RN E ST MERIN) EF directors as disclosed in Note 37 is set out below.
R e
BZE12A31MBLEE
For the year ended
31 December
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Salaries 7,091 7,947
TE4T Bonuses 3,881 5,961
VAR AR 72 B B0 AT 3K Share-based payments 1,107 22,010
Bhe  AEAES  BE Pension, housing fund, medical
REg R H A& R insurances and other social insurances 932 215

13,011 36,133
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35 RBEEARSZ (@)
(d) EEEAEE S AR

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) Balances with related parties

R12A31H
As at 31 December
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JiE W B 5 ;A Receivables from related parties
B 5 FEWRIE Trade receivables
— FRAEETINER — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 136,635 88,644
—FEENGEREE R — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 58,553 48,885
195,188 137,529
H A e UK IR Other receivables
— FRAERINERS — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 24,842 12,762
—FREEMEERBETE — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 238,363 16,224
263,205 28,986
EREE Contract assets
— FRERGINEE ~ Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 231,365 194,378
—FhREENGEREERE — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 36,465 52,951
267,830 247,329
FEU R T I R A W B ELEE Total receivables and contract assets from
related parties 726,224 413,844
JE 1+ R BEE 77 500A Payables to related parties
EHAE Contract liabilities
— FhAE %'IE’J,\ﬁa ~ Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 11,093 17,069
— BRERATINE & R e — Joint ventures and associates of the
Ultimate Holding Company 7,580 5,143
18,673 22,212

HERE
- FREZHNER

Lease liabilities
— Entities controlled by Mr. Wang - 2,365

FE 1 BARE 7 SRR ABER

Total payables to related parties 18,673 24,577
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36 EEFERMEDNRS

HE2021F12 31 HILFE - AEH
AR EARBES,957,000 T W EES T

MEARMEEIINER - ANEEERIE
TR\ M e 38 N A R #65,957,0007T ©

37 EEMFIEKRER

BHZE2021F12H8318 ' U TFTEEES
REREELZTA

HiTES
BU/NARLE (BER)

RIS~
REBLRE

FHTES

EBRMREE
B/ FEEA
BERERSE A

BYEHITES

SRAL L
RERE
AR KL

: EESN2021FE7ASEEMH  BTE
EEBEARRNTESREAETHE
F3RE  HEREARZEEKE MR
A EERZEARNRRNITES RIR
B oHEBRERZEGKE - MAAER -

36

37

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
acquired addition interests in certain subsidiaries for total
consideration of RMB5,957,000. The Group recognised an
increase in non-controlling interests of RMB5,957,000.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

Until 31 December 2021, the following directors and senior
managements were appointed:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Chairman
Mr. Gao Xinli*
Ms. Wu Qiangian

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

* The Board announced on 5 July 2021 that Mr. Lan Ziyong resigned as an
executive director of the Company and ceased to be a member of the
environmental, social and governance committee while Mr. Gao Xinli has
been appointed as an executive director of the Company and a member of
the environmental, social and governance committee effective immediately.
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37 EEMFIZNER @) 37

(a)

EsMe

HE2021F12A31HIEF
E - EE B A E T A B
S (EHEZEAEEZAIN A
NEftEREEREESH) W

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in

their role as senior management and employee before

their appointment as directors respectively) for the year

ended 31 December 2021 as follows:

T
DRGHAER EERERER
e e A A HE L8 @t
Housing
allowances and
contributions to
Share-based a retirement
4 Name Fees  Salaries Bonus payment scheme Total
ARBTT ARETR ARETT AR¥Tx ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
HITES Executive Directors
BUNAEE Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 1,712 1,805 753 138 4,468
S v bk Mr. Gao Xinli - 1,465 1,047 3,101 121 5,734
REERL Ms. Wu giangian - 604 151 485 121 1,361
BUFHTEE  Independent non-executive Directors
RELL Ms. Zhang Yan 200 - - - - 200
KERE Mr. Zhu Wei 200 - - - - 200
AREE Mr. Xu Xinmin 200 - - - - 200
600 3,841 3,003 4,339 380 12,163
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37 EEMRZNER @) 37 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)
(a) ESME (B (a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)
B E2020F12A3181EHF The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
B EE B A E T A B their role as senior management and employee before
e (EEEZERESTZAID A their appointment as directors respectively) for the year
NEHREREREE HH) W ended 31 December 2020 as follows:
T
NRhAE  EEERRERAE
e ¥e T ERHET ST @t
Housing allowances
and contributions
Share-based to a retirement
e Name Fees  Salaries Bonus payment scheme Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
HITES Executive Directors
BNALE Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 1,985 1,414 4,531 30 7,960
REELL Ms. Wu Qiangian - 794 284 1,901 30 3,009
WrELE M. Lan Ziyong - 759 382 1,552 18 271
BUEHTEE  Independent non-executive Directors
RATL Ms. Zhang Yan 200 - - = = 200
KERE Mr. Zhu Wei 200 - - - - 200
AR AL Mr. Xu Xinmin 200 - - - - 200
600 3,538 2,080 7,984 78 14,280
(b) ESBHERAER (b) Retirement benefits of directors
REZE20215 %2020512 A During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
BTRLEEE  BRETER there were no additional retirement benefit received by
Bl R A6 51 B 3R R 48 I 51 81 1 51 the directors except for the attribution to a retirement
SN BEWAREBEINYRIK benefit scheme in accordance with the rules and
A e regulations in the PRC.
() ESWERERN (c) Termination benefits of directors
REE2021F 2020512 A During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,

BTHIEFE EFWAESH
BUARH o

there were no termination benefits received by the
directors.
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37

38

39

EENFFRER @)

(d) REBEBBBHE=E
AR

REZE2021F %2020612 A
3MBELEFE  BEESEMN
A EEmHMATEAEBK
BAERMESIEAMARER -
INAZ £ B 1% s B A AR SR B Y
HRE - IERBERAREE o 1
G BESINREUNESERA
REZEUSREEEHRS

(e) UNEE ZHHEZREH
HEAERREEBREN
ERAZEANER  EE
AR EMRZHEEER

REZE2021F %2020F12 4
B1HLIEFE » AXAFHIARQF]
B AR (EA) HEINE
EAFHEAFLIMER -
ERREMRS o

B EXCRratoh - MEIE 20214
}%2020F 12 8318 EFE=k
EZE2021F F2020412 A31
HIEFEREMER @ A2
BMET v EAEEEREA -
BARRESREFREEERE
NEEERANTAEARS
THRAHL -

HAREE

R2021F K 2020F12 A318 » A%
EmBE= AN REBLEEMELR
WARBBERABITER

HREE

MR2022F3 8 - ANEESEBR (ILE)
DEEBEAR QA G ERE R
o AERBERAKNERTERE
ERB AR ARIHNT0%ME - BUE
BEE @ BHRNGRIMERTERES
BRABKANEENHEAR - HE
EESHAEZSHRAMKHRERAE
ERERENE QRN S ST RE
W FA=EE BNERBEEERZ ¥
WEHBRETEER -

37

38

39

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available the services of directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no director or any of the five highest paid individuals
received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. Also, no
consideration was paid for making available the services
of the directors or senior management of the Company.

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
entered into by the Company or subsidiaries undertaking
of the Company, where applicable, in favour of directors.

Except for those mentioned above, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had interests,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities or outstanding guarantees in
respect of payment obligations to third parties.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In March 2022, the Group entered into an equity acquisition
agreement with Runhong (Shandong) Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd., agreeing to acquire its 70% equity interests in Suzhou
Health Catering Management Service Co., Ltd., which became
a subsidiary of the Group since the acquisition date. Up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements by
the Board of Directors, the initial accounting for such acquired
subsidiaries is incomplete and is still under review by the
management and thus no relevant financial information is disclosed.
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MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NEIL R 3 O Company statement of financial position
A20215 % 20205612HA31H As at 31 December 2021 and 2020
MW12A318
As at 31 December
20215 20204F
2021 2020
B zE AR%ET ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
hRBEE Current assets
FERNFIE - B MEMEK  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
IE 347,684 217,381
BAREE ABENER  Finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BE 217,822 200,529
BARBESAHLMEE Financial assets at fair value through other
WA S REE comprehensive income 52,390 -
BeRReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 109,426 25,518
MBEEBE Total current assets 727,322 443,428
FRBEE Non-Current assets
NG ke Investment in subsidiaries 50,608 41,866
ERBEERE Total non-current assets 50,608 41,866
BEEHBE Total assets 777,930 485,294
B Equity
ERA RS ABMGER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
B Share capital 25 59,900 56,641
& Reserves 900,939 428,005
(B5EBR)/ REEF (Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings (185,492) 360
R Total equity 775,347 485,006
nRBEE Current liabilities
ZHhEMENFIE Trade and other payables 2,583 288
MEBEEE Total current liabilities 2,583 288
BEAR Total liabilities 2,583 288
BnREERE Total equity and liabilities 777,930 485,294
REBEEFE Net current assets 724,739 443,140
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40

NN R O B R 40 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
(%) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
AR MBERRR (B) Company statement of financial position (Cont'd)
Bt R A B B S AR A 2k 78 B B A The above Company statement of financial position should be
—[FIBIRE - read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
RARMBRARELEETEN2022 The Company statement of financial position were approved by
FIA2SAMETHATEETRRE the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and were signed on its
& e behalf.
/N B R A Qi Xiaoming Gao Xinli
BE BE Director Director
REREEE Reserve movement of the Company
R12H31H
As at 31 December
20215 20204F
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A1H As at 1 January 428,005 522,976
EARnBEFAZERAD Changes in fair value of debt instruments

BHRIAAARBEEY at fair value through comprehensive income

(K$3E19) (Note 19) (75,444) _
Rz PR R BB EE Loss allowance recognised in profit and loss 71,949
RAEERE (FiFE31) Dividend paid by the Company (Note 31) (239,819) (147,258)
1B BB ERE — EE R Employee Share Option Scheme —

BE (kisE27) value of employee service (Note 27) 7,301 27,681
EE KD HEENTE — EBARTE Employee Share Reward Scheme —

B1E (fizr27) value of employee service (Note 27) 1,441 14,185
BEITERAR (FsE25) Issue of ordinary share (Note 25) - 10,421
fic A% Share Placing 861,149 =
RIE2019F BT 27T Exercise of share option under 2019

HE A share option scheme 19,183 =
AN EEE g Buy-back and cancellation of share (48,362) =
AR BIRH RENFEIUAERXD  Acquisition of shares for Employee

Share Award Scheme (138,836) -
TEEFERDFORZEHN  Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock shares 14,372 =

M12831H As at 31 December 900,939 428,005
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